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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small
and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
midsized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Flying Financial Service Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief: (i) the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive; (ii) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading; and (iii) all opinions
expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and
are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NAEER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Weijing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Guo Chanjiao
(duties suspended on 26 March 2021 and vacated on 28 June 2021)

Ms. Wan Suyuan (appointed on 9 December 2021)
Mr. Leung Man Kit (appointed on 1 February 2022)
Ms. Liu Yi (appointed on 23 May 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Vincent Cheng

Dr. Miao Bo

Mr. Hsu Tawei (appointed on 1 March 2021)

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho (appointed on 9 December 2021)

Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William (appointed on 11 March 2022)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chow Chi Wing
COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Zheng Weijing (resigned on 26 March 2021)

Mr. Zhang Gongjun (appointed on 26 March 2021 and
resigned as compliance officer on 23 May 2022)

Mr. Leung Man Kit (appointed on 23 May 2022)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zheng Weijing (resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun (appointed on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Chow Chi Wing

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Dr. Vincent Cheng (Chairman and redesignated as a member on 23 May 2022)

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho (Chairman) (appointed as a member on 9 December 2021 and
redesignated as the chairman on 23 May 2022)

Dr. Miao Bo
Mr. Hsu Tawei (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William (appointed on 23 May 2022)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
REEF ()

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hsu Tawei (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun
Dr. Miao Bo
Ms. Wan Suyuan (appointed on 9 December 2021)
Mr. Leung Man Kit (appointed on 1 February 2022)
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho (appointed on 9 December 2021)
Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William (appointed on 11 March 2021)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zheng Weijing (Chairman)
(resigned on 26 March 2021)

Mr. Zhang Gongjun (Chairman)
(appointed as the chairman on 26 March 2021 and redesignated as a member
on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William (Chairman) (@appointed on 11 March 2021)

Dr. Vincent Cheng
Dr. Miao Bo
Ms. Guo Chanjiao
(duties suspended on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Hsu Tawei (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Ms. Wan Suyuan (appointed on 9 December 2021)
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho (appointed on 9 December 2021)
Mr. Leung Man Kit (appointed on 1 February 2022)

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Shenzhen Excellence Century Centre Branch
1/F, No. 3, Excellence Century Centre

Fuhua Three Road

Futian District

Shenzhen, China

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10th Floor, 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
“NEEF ()

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1309, 13/F
Mirror Tower

61 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE “PRC”)

18th Floor, Block C, Building 1
Shenzhen Software Industry Base
High-tech Industrial Park
Nanshan District

Shenzhen, China

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

(formerly known as SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited)
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE
www.flyingfinancial.hk
STOCK CODE

8030

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

BEETRERMH

BB

3
KE
EHh3E 61 9%
T EE A L
1311309 F

BREERPEARINE
UG DEELF 0,

f BRI
AL

SRR EEE
RN EEE
TSRIBCIRI8E

RESHENTERDBFR
BRE

e

u

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

(B4 & SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited)
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

BERERODBFETIE

BEBFERLARAA
&5

SERKNBR 1835

A RN L

5418

A8k
www.flyingfinancial.hk
BRAD L8R

8030



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

2021 2020 Changes
—BC--f —ZTEF 25
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ETR ARBTT
OPERATING RESULTS RexE
Revenue g 20,059 19,721 1.7%
Loss for the year attributable to KRRHEB ANEGFE
owners of the Company BB (265,276) (468,725) -43.4%
Basic loss per share BREAERE RMB(15.32) cents  RMB(27.07) cents -43.4%
AR¥(1532)5 AR¥(27.07) 5
FINANCIAL POSITION FHARR
Total assets BERE 88,205 394,665 -77.7%
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR EHBEEE 14,086 7324 92.3%
Net (liabilities)/assets (BE)/EEFH (4,384) 301,703 N/A TR
Dividends RE
— Interim dividend paid (per share) —BNTHRE (BR) - -
— Proposed final dividend (per share) —EEARERE (BR) - -
EHSBBREERERAT —T-—F5§



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITRHRES

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Flying Financial Service
Holdings Limited (“Flying Financial” or the Company”), | am pleased to present
the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The macro environment has been increasingly unpredictable since the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, while the market in 2021 remains challenging,
we anticipate such market sentiment to continue in the year ahead. A year of
challenges and changes with deep impacts on the way we work and we live. In
the fight against COVID-19 pandemic, we are all immensely thankful to
healthcare professionals and support staff who have dedicated themselves to
keeping our communities safe. The Group has been undergoing certain
corporate restructuring activities to enhance our capability to the increasingly
challenging global environment ahead.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude for the continued
support and trust from our shareholders, customers, management team and
employees. Barring any unforeseen circumstances, | am optimistic that we will
step up to the opportunities and achieve an improved set of results in 2022.

Zhang Gongjun
Chairman

30 June 2022

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

RAZERKERSRRGIZERERLE ([ERE
Bl [ARARDESFE(ESEE])  MARR
AR REMBAR (GBI AEEDEHE_F
T FT AT BILEFENREREFE

o

il

=S

B COVID- 19O KRITIRN —E T FIEB K - &
BIRBBEHIUTEN B2 = —FHmEN5R
MPKE, - BRI ERN TR BEEERR—F

BB - AFRTmBB R ERE - HRANITIER
HEIEANERRLTE o LM E COVID-19 KRTT

HBIET - BPIPEFERH BN REL R L 2HE
BREEXABRZIEAR - AEE-BEHEET
ETEREERE  URSEHAKRBEAEKE
HIRIEMEES -

RAZRRREFE  HRR TP 8EEBERK
BTHOREFMEERTIROEHE © WEERA
T\TTE%'I%R RAHHEMERE—_T - —FiE

BREBMSEEREERESR

AR
FE

—E-FXRA=TH



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDT

LISTING STATUS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 1 April 2021, the
trading in shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) was halted with effect from 11:19 a.m. on 29 March 2021
and will remain suspended until further notice (the “Suspension”).

Reference are made to the announcements of the Company dated 4 June 2021,
28 June 2021, 28 September 2021 and 19 November 2021, the Board received a
letter from the Stock Exchange setting out the resumption guidance for the

Company on 3 June 2021 and 18 November 2021 respectively, details of all

resumption guidance (the "Resumption Guidance”) are as follows:

conduct an appropriate independent investigation into the custody of Mr.
Zheng, Ms. Guo and three employees of the Group by the Nanshan
Branch of Shenzhen Public Security Bureau since December 2020 pending
investigation regarding certain suspected illegal absorption of public
deposits conducted by a subsidiary of the Company, assess the impact on
the Company’s business operation and financial position, announce the
findings and take appropriate remedial actions;

demonstrate that there is no reasonable regulatory concern about
management integrity and/or the integrity of any persons with substantial
influence over the Company's management and operations, which may
pose a risk to investors and damage market confidence;

address the issues giving rise to the disclaimer of opinion on the Annual
Results Announcement, provide comfort that the disclaimer of opinion in
respect of such issues would no longer be required and disclose sufficient
information to enable investors to make an informed assessment of its
financial positions as required under Rule 17.49B of the GEM Listing Rules;

demonstrate that the Company has in place adequate internal control
systems to meet the obligations of the GEM Listing Rules;

announce all material information for the Company's shareholders and
investors to appraise the Company's position; and

demonstrate the Company’s compliance with Rule 17.26 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEE WD (&)

LISTING STATUS (CONTINUED)

Under Rule 9.14A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange may cancel
the listing of any securities that have been suspended from trading for a
continuous period of 12 months. In the case of the Company, the 12-month
period will expire on 28 March 2022.

The Company has continued to take active steps to address and comply with
the Resumption Guidance and the Company had announced its quarterly
update on status of the resumption of the Company on 28 June 2021, 28
September 2021, 28 December 2021 and 4 April 2022.

In response to the Resumption Guidance given by the Stock Exchange regarding
the matters, the Board resolved on 20 December 2021 to form an independent
investigation committee (the “Independent Investigation Committee”),
comprising Dr. Vincent Cheng, Dr. Miao Bo, Mr. Hsu Tawei and Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho,
all are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho has been
appointed as the chairman of the Independent Investigation Committee. The
purposes of forming the Independent Investigation Committee were to
commission an independent investigation on the matters to be conducted by
independent professional advisor(s) regarding the custody of Mr. Zheng, Ms.
Guo and three employees of the Group by the Nanshan Branch of Shenzhen
Public Security Bureau since December 2020 pending investigation regarding
certain suspected illegal absorption of public deposits conducted by a subsidiary
of the Company, as the request from the Resumption Guidance. Following the
formation of the Independent Investigation Committee, the Company has
engaged Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP, the PRC legal advisers, to conduct
independent investigation in relation to the Custodies in the PRC.

References are made to the announcement of the Company dated 22 February
2022, the key conclusive views of the PRC legal advisers in relation to the
Custodies including, but not limited to:

(1) With reference to the October 2021 Judgement, Mr. Zheng actually
controlled the illegal fundraising activities of SZ Flying Financial. The
proceeds of the illegal fundraising activities were used and allocated by
Mr. Zheng. The Offence was individually committed and was not
considered as corporate crime of the Company and SZ Flying Financial. In
view of the October 2021 Judgement, the Company and the existing
Directors shall not be responsible for criminal and civil liabilities in relation
to the Offence;

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEWED T (&)

LISTING STATUS (CONTINUED)

(2)  The probability and feasibility for the Group to recover those Seized Assets
(in whole or in part) would be extremely low with reference to the
applicable PRC law, the Company’s confirmation and the October 2021
Judgement in relation to the Seized Assets; and

(3)  Mr.Zheng, Ms. Guo and the three former employees of the Group who are
subject to the October 2021 Judgement shall not be eligible to be a
director, supervisor, or senior management of a corporate following the
sentencing in accordance with the applicable PRC law and regulations.

In addition, following the public search through the China Judgement Online
website conducted by the PRC legal advisers, there is no records of any criminal
proceeding in the PRC against the Group and the existing Directors of the
Company as of the date of the Report.

As announced by the Company on 15 March 2022, the Board resolved on 15
March 2022 to form a remedial actions committee (the "Remedial Actions
Committee”), comprising 2 executive Directors, namely, Ms. Wan Suyuan and Mr.
Leung Man Kit, as well as 2 independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Tsao Hoi Ho and Mr. Lau Jing Yeung William. Mr. Leung Man Kit has been
appointed as the chairman of the Remedial Actions Committee.

The main purpose of forming the Remedial Actions Committee is to allow the
members of the Remedial Actions Committee to recommend and facilitate the
implementation of remedial actions (with advice of external professional parties)
in relation to the loss (the “Loss”) incurred by the Company and/or the Seized
Assets (including such Loss in relation to the Offence and/or such Loss as
identified by the Company (if any)), without limitation to the remedial actions to
recover the Loss and the remedial actions concerning corporate governance of
the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEE WD (&)

LISTING STATUS (CONTINUED)

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 4 April 2022, the
Company submitted a letter to the Listing Division of the Exchange on 13 March
2022, in relation to resumption proposal and to address the Resumption
Guidance given by the Listing Division in resumption proposal on a case-by-case
basis, at the same time striving to demonstrate that during the four-month
period when the Company started to appoint new directors and acquired
funding to support the Company’s resumption of trading since December 2021,
the Company was able to complete a number of initiatives to resume trading
and to put the Group's business back on track during the particularly severe
COVID19 pandemic.

Meanwhile, in its resumption proposal, the Company had filed a petition for the
Listing Division to recommend the Listing Committee to extend the deadline for
the Company to commence the delisting process by four months. The
application of the extension is made because given the Additional Resumption
Guidance issued by the Listing Division of the Exchange on 18 November 2021,
the Company still tried its best to complete a lot of work with the cooperation
and follow-up of the Listing Division of the Exchange in just over four months,
even under the environment including Christmas and New Year holidays,
coupled with the fact that the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong was
uncontrollable during the period and that the Company was required to
conduct an internal control investigation in Mainland, especially in Shenzhen,
the main area of business of the audit subsidiary of the Company, where the
control of the COVID-19 pandemic was particularly stringent. The progress of
these resumption works has been disclosed in the Company’s announcements
published on the HKEXnews of the Stock Exchange since December 2021,

During the Reporting Period, the Company has tried its best to complete a lot of
work with the cooperation and follow-up of the Listing Division of the Exchange
and has used its best endeavor to act in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the Listing Division, make reasonable efforts and never give up the
case until the end.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEE R WD AT ()

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

As announced by the Company on 6 April 2022 and 6 May 2022, Despite the
Company has submitted an extension application to the Stock Exchange on 10
April 2022, the Company received a letter (the “Letter”) from the Stock Exchange
dated 6 May 2022 stating that the GEM Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Committee”) has decided to cancel the Company'’s listing under
Rule 9.14A of the GEM Listing Rules as the Company failed to satisfy all the
Resumption Guidance by 28 March 2022 (the “Delisting Decision”).

Under Chapter 4 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has the right to have
the Delisting Decision referred to the Listing Review Committee of the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Review Committee”) for review within seven business
days from the date of issue of the Delisting Decision (i.e, on or before 18 May
2022) (the "LRC Review"). If the Company decides not to request to have the LRC
Review, the last day of listing of the Company’s shares will be on 23 May 2022
and the listing of its shares will be cancelled with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 24 May
2022.

References are made to the announcement dated 6 May 2022, 17 May 2022, 27
May 2022, 9 June 2022 and 10 June 2022, after receiving the Letter date 6 May
2022 from the Stock Exchange in relation to the Delisting Decision, the Company
has submitted a formal request to the secretary of the Listing Review Committee
of the Stock Exchange on 17 May 2022 for the Delisting Decision to be referred
to the Listing Review Committee for review pursuant to Chapter 4 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The review hearing (the “Review Hearing”) of the Listing Review
Committee of the Stock Exchange to the review of the Delisting Decision has
been scheduled for 10:30 a.m. on Wednesday, 3 August 2022. The Board has
further made its written submission including the key addition information
required together with the respective supporting documents to the Listing
Review Committee of the Stock Exchange on 9 June 2022 for the purposes of
the Review Hearing.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 25 May 2022,
after obtaining and reviewing the PRC Investigation Report, the Board resolved
to appoint Beijing Dentons Law Offices, LLP (“Dentons”), the PRC legal advisers of
the Company, to conduct a supplemental independent investigation in relation
to the Custodies in the PRC (the “PRC Supplemental Investigation”). Dentons
issued the supplemental investigation report regarding the Custodies in the PRC
dated 17 May 2022 (the “PRC Further Investigation Report”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (CONTINUED)

On the other hand, the Board resolved to appoint CHENG HUAN S.C.'s
CHAMBERS (“CH Chambers”) and Patrick Mak & Tse Solicitors (‘PMT"), being
independent professional law chamber and law firm in Hong Kong, as the

independent professional advisor to provide Hong Kong legal opinion in relation

to the Investigation Issues. Such appointment was made further to the requests
received from the Stock Exchange in the Resumption Guidance. PMT and CH
Chambers issued the legal opinions regarding the Investigation Issues dated 19
May 2022 (the “"HK Legal Opinions”).

The key findings of PRC Further Investigation Report and the HK Legal Opinions

include, but not limited to:

M

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Based on the present information available and without undertaking any
investigative action, there is no evidence as to whether the Other Board
Members had actual knowledge of the illegal fundraising activities acted
through SZ Flying Financial. Further, it was also no evidence as to whether
the Other Board Members had actual knowledge of the Loan Guarantee.

As at the date of the HK Legal Opinions, there has been no Custodies
instituted against any Other Board Members in relation to the P2P Platform
and/or the affairs of SZ Flying Financial. Further, each of the Other Board
Members has confirmed that he or she was not involved in the Offence.

Given the circumstances that Mr. Zheng had dominant control over the
corporate structure of the Company, and had actual control over SZ Flying
Financial, it is possible that the Other Board Members had been
circumvented in any criminal activities or unauthorized civil activities
undertaken by the PRC subsidiaries of the Company. In this relation, there
is no sufficient evidence to support that there has been breach of the
Director’s Duties on the part of the Other Board Members.

However, the Custodies and the lack of knowledge of the Group's
operating subsidiaries exposed that the board of directors of the Company
has not been capable of ensuring an effective internal control and risk
management system within the Group. It is also questionable whether the
internal audit of the Group has been undertaken effectively. The corporate
governance practices of the Company, of which the board of directors are
ultimately responsible, had been unsatisfactory.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (CONTINUED)

The Remedial Actions Committee concurs with the findings of CH Chambers
and PMT that the Other Board Members, being the one executive Director and
the three independent non-executive Directors at the material time, have not
been capable of ensuring an effective internal control and risk management
system within the Group and the internal audit of the Group has not been
undertaken effectively at the material time. The corporate governance practices
of the Company at the material time, of which the Other Board Members were
ultimately responsible, had also been unsatisfactory.

Following the issuance of the PRC Further Investigation Report and the HK Legal
Opinions, Accordingly, the Remedial Actions Committee has recommended that
the Board adopt the findings of the Investigation. Further, the Remedial Actions
Committee has made recommendations (the “Recommendations”) to the Board.
The Board agreed with the Recommendations of the Remedial Actions
Committee and has resolved that the Recommendations of the Remedial
Actions Committee be implemented as soon as practicable.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 25
May 2022.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 23 May 2022,
the Board proposes to implement the Capital Reorganisation which will involve
the Share Consolidation, the Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-division. In
addition, the Company entered into the Subscription Agreement with the
Subscriber, pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue
36,042,067 New Shares at the Subscription Price of HK$0.72 per Subscription
Share to the Subscriber.

The Circular containing, among other things, further details of (i) the Capital
Reorganisation, the Subscription, the Specific Mandate, the Whitewash Waiver
and all the transactions contemplated thereunder; (ii) letters of recommendation
from the Independent Board Committees to the Independent Shareholders; (iii)
a letter of advice from the Independent Financial Adviser to the Independent
Board Committees and the Independent Shareholders in relation to the
Subscription, the Specific Mandate, the Whitewash Waiver and the respective
transactions contemplated thereunder; and (iv) a notice of the EGM and a form
of proxy, are expected to be despatched to the Shareholders on or before Friday,
8 July 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has been committed to developing itself as an influential real estate
financial service provider in the PRC and has been putting great efforts in
providing financial services to the real estate sector for many years. Leveraging
on our experience and expertise in serving as leading real estate developers, our
service coverage has been expanded to developers of different scales. We are
honored to be able to fulfill the business needs of our business partners and
support their continuous growth. During the year, the Group focused on the
development of pipeline property development projects and provided services
to our partners with our experiences and technologies through our financial
service platform. Our core customer base continued to expand. We strived to
mitigate compliance risks and reduce operating costs of the Group through
business transformation, in order to maintain stable growth and retain our
strengths during the downward cycle of the industry.

As at 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group, loss before income tax
expense and loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB20.1 million, RMB265.6 million and RMB265.3
million, respectively. In 2021, performance of our investment in property
development projects was further adversely affected by the cyclical downtrend
of the real estate industry in the PRC, which resulted in nil investment income
and related financial consultation services income and a significant decrease in
fair value of the investments. Secondly, due to the repayment abilities of the
Group's customers and business partners affected by economic environment of
the PRC, the Group had to make substantial provision on loss allowance for the
accounts receivables and other receivables. In addition, the Group had faced
unprecedented challenges, including the China-USA trade war and the outbreak
of coronavirus disease ("COVID-19"). The Group's operation has been affected in
certain ways due to the travel restrictions, social distancing and quarantine
measures in connection with the outbreak of COVID-19, as the Group has been
taking all practicable measures to cope with the potential transmission of
COVID-19 by striving for the highest caution standard to protect the health and
safety of our staff, business partners and customers.

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB14.1 million, which represented an increase of 92.3% as
compared to the previous year. The increase was mainly due to a substantial
increase in revenue in the fourth quarter of 2021. The Group recorded a net
liabilities of RMB4.4 million (2021: net assets of RMB301.7 million). The gearing
ratio of the Group was approximately 6.3%, representing year-on-year increase
of approximately 2.3 percentage point.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment in Property Development Projects

The Group's “investment in property development projects” segment was an
extension of the Group's financial solution provider business leveraging on its
experience in the financial services industry and also its understanding of the
operational environment of the real estate industry via the provision of financial
services to property developers of various sizes and other players along the real

estate development value chain or their stakeholders in prior years.

Investment in property development projects was the main source of revenue of
the Group in the past few years. In this segment, the Group'’s business and
revenue mainly include investment income and financial consultation services
income.

Since 2018, regulatory authorities have tightened real estate policies to curb
asset bubbles and prevent financial risks and the principle of “houses are for
living in, not for speculation” (B {E#) has become the core direction of
public opinion of the industry. The real estate industry highly relies on assets and
the application of financial instruments and is materially affected by the policies.
In 2019, the real estate industry decelerated. There were policies and regulations
imposed by the China Banking and Insurance Regulation Commission in second
half of 2019 to further crackdown the financing channels of property developers.
In 2020, due to the impact of the global pandemic, China’s economic grew
slowed as it navigated through risks and challenges. After the imposition of the
"three red lines’, the real estate industry was under mounting pressure. In order
to cope with the impact of the cyclical down trend of the real estate industry,
the Group focused on the development of pipeline property development
projects in 2020. The Group explored other business opportunities along the
business value chain and aimed to control business risks with prudent operation
through reducing cash expenditure relating to investment.

In the first half of 2020, with the impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 in the PRC,
the majority of the construction and sale activities of the Group's property
development projects were suspended and/or postponed. As a result, revenue
from the Group's investments in property development projects recorded a
significant decline during the year and, due to the expected delay in the
cashflow derived from the sale activities of the Group's property development
projects and the less than expected repayment to be received from the limited
partnerships arising from certain disposal of the equity interests in project
companies, a significant fair value loss of the relevant property investment
projects was also recorded in 2020 and 2021. In order to cope with the impact of
the cyclical downtrend of the real estate industry, the Group focused on the
development of pipeline property development projects in 2021. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, there was no investment income generated from the
property development projects of the Group. The Group explored other business
opportunities along the business value chain and aimed to control business risks
with prudent operation through reducing cash expenditure relating to
investment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment in Property Development Projects (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of investment in property development
projects held by the Group amounted to approximately RMB67.2 million.

Fin-tech Platform

In 2021, the Group has put great effort in transforming its internet finance
business segment and cooperated with internet small loan companies to
develop internet small loan business. The service of our financial technology
service platform was expanded to cover more property developers. Leveraging
on our experience and expertise of serving leading property developers, we
have fulfilled the business needs of many partners and enabled the industry for
further development. The financial technology service platform has established
comprehensive business process and technology system covering customer
acquisition, risk identification, risk assessment, loan distribution channel,
payment channel and big data analysis through cooperating with Tencent Cloud
and other licensed institutions. Business needs of our partners can be fulfilled
through quick access to the technologies. The platform facilitates asset-light
operation with low risk through technology services and consolidates the
position of the Group as a real estate financial service provider and its original
aspiration to grow with core customers during the downward cycle of the
industry.

With the impact of COVID-19, however, restrictions in travelling have greatly
slowed down the communication and cooperation with potential customers,
which hindered the development of the financial service platform and affected
the financial performance of this segment.

Provision of loan services, financial consultation services,
finance lease services

Under these two business segments, the Group provides short-term and long-
term financial consultation services, entrusted loans, pawn loans and other loans
to borrowers and financial institutions. The Group also provides long-term
finance lease services. The Group tailored different types of financial products for
its customers depending on their individual circumstances and funding needs in
order to resolve the financing needs of the customers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Cost Reduction and Internal Control

To cope with the industry downturn of its principal business, the Group further
reduced its costs and strengthened its internal control. During the year, through
optimising human resources and streamlining organizational structure of the
Group, the number of staff of the Group decreased from 90 to 30. The operation
efficiency and per capita efficiency were further enhanced. In addition, the
Group refined its business operation and improved its rules and regulations after
assessment and supervision of the internal control of various business segments.
Our internal control system was improved through supervising the
implementation of remedial measures for the loopholes found during our
inspection.

In general, the Group focused on its business and adhered to its prudent
approach in operation in 2021. Against the backdrop of cyclical downtrend of
the industry and the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group was determined to focus
on the development of pipeline projects and to build up its internal strengths.
All senior management members and our staff are confident and expecting a
prosperous future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB20.1 million, representing a slightly increase of approximately
1.7% from approximately RMB19.7 million in the previous year, primarily due to
the increase of platform service income during the year.

In terms of revenue breakdown, revenue from financial service platforms
amounted to approximately RMB19.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 27.6%. Revenue from interest income and finance lease service
income for the year under review amounted to approximately RMB401,000,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 87.1%. For the year under
review, there were no financial consultation services income (2020: RMB1.2
million).
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EEE WD (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Finance Costs

In the year under review, interest expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 80.7% to RMB228,000 from RMB1.2 million in the previous year,
which mainly resulted from the decrease in bank borrowings and lease liabilities
of the Group during the year.

Other (Expenses)/Income, Net

The Group's other (expenses)/income, net mainly comprised fair value loss on
investment properties, recovery of impairment on loans and accounts
receivables previously recognised, gain on disposal of a property, plant and
equipment, and bank interest income.

The significant increase in the other expenses due to the fair value loss on the
investment properties of the Group of approximately RMB47.9 million during the
year ended 31 December 2021. The investment properties of the Group became
the Seized Assets related to the Custodies. After learning the October 2021
Judgement (details refer to the point 2 of the section of Litigations, Claims and
Disputes), the Directors decided to adjust the fair values of the investment
properties to nil.

Administrative and Employee Benefit Expenses

Administrative and employee benefit expenses of the Group mainly comprised
salaries and employee benefits, rental expenses, and marketing and advertising
fees. In the year under review, administrative and employee benefit expenses of
the Group was approximately RMB31.0 million, representing year-on-year
decrease of 42.4%. The decrease was due to decrease in number of employers
and implementation of cost control of the Group.

Fair Value Changes in Financial Assets

Under HKFRS 9, investments in the property development projects through
limited partnerships and the assets-backed securities of the Group are stated at
fair value and classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
changes in fair values of these investments during the year of approximately
RMB196.0 million (2020: RMB362.3 million) was recognised as fair value loss in
profit or loss.

In particular, three of the investments in property development projects through
limited partnerships became the Seized Assets related to the Custodies. After
learning the October 2021 Judgement (details refer to the point 2 of the section
of Litigations, Claims and Disputes), the Directors decided to adjust the fair
values of the relevant property development projects to nil. As such, a fair value
loss of approximately RMB128.8 million was recognized for the relevant property
development projects during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Loss Allowance on Financial Assets

In the year under review, impairment loss on loans and accounts receivables and
other receivables aggregated approximately RMB10.6 million (2020:
approximately RMB89.5 million) due to the increase in credit risk of the existing
customers.

Loss for the Year Attributable to the Owners of the
Company

In the year under review, loss attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB265.3 million (2020: RMB468.7 million), which was primarily
due to (i) fair value loss in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
investment properties of approximately RMB196.0 million and RMB47.9 million,
respectively, and (i) loss allowance on financial assets of approximately RMB10.6
million.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately RMB14.1 million (2020: approximately RMB7.3 million), and the
Group’s borrowings amounted to approximately RMB5.6 million (2020:
approximately RMB15.7 million). The gearing ratio representing the total
borrowings of the Group divided by the total assets of the Group was
approximately 6.3% (2020: approximately 4.0%). As at 31 December 2021, 100%
(2020: approximately 100%) of the Group's borrowings would be due within one
year. As at 31 December 2021, 51.4% of the Group’s borrowings was
denominated in HKD, while 48.6% was denominated in RMB (2020: 100% was
denominated in RMB). As at 31 December 2021, 48.6% and 51.4% of the Group's
borrowings were carrying interests at fixed rate and interest free, respectively
(2020: approximately 19% and 81% of the Group's borrowings carrying interests
at fixed and floating rates, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

There were no charges on group assets as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB47.9 million were pledged for a bank
borrowing.

The Directors considered that, in the foreseeable future, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations in full when they fall
due. In the year under review, the Group did not use any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITIES

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced
cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality products and
services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

Please also refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report contained
in this annual report for further details of the Group's environmental
performance and relationship with its employees, suppliers and customers.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Group is undergoing a corporate restructuring, upon the completion of the
said restructuring, the Group shall continue its financial services businesses. The
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are confident that upon the
completion of the said restructuring, the Group's business and financial position
will be improved and have sufficient level of operation to maintain its listing
status.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks related to the Property Market in the PRC

The Group’s investments in property development projects are largely
dependent on the performance of property market in the PRC. A number of
factors would affect the property market in the PRC, including changes in
governmental policies, legal environment, social economy and consumers’
confidence and preferences. Default on the part of the Group’s business partners
in the property development projects may also have significant and negative
impact on the result of the Group's investments.

The Group pays attention to and monitors closely the property development
projects to ensure smooth progress and the compliance of the terms and
conditions of the cooperation agreements by its business partners.

Transformation of the Financial Services Platform

The financial services platform of the Group has undergone strategic
transformation according to the requirements of relevant policies and withdrew
from the existing development businesses in an orderly and compliant manner.
The financial services platform of the Group has also proactively cooperated with
internet small loan platforms to develop internet small loan business as part of
the transformation, which might last for a relatively longer period of time and be
exposed to uncertainties such as loss of customers, increased costs and change
of policies. The Group shall oversee the transformation dynamically and make
timely adjustments during the process in order to ensure the success of such
transformation.

Risks related to Cyber Security

The Group handles significant amount of personal data and credit information of
its customers, which is susceptible to cyber threats. The Group's operations,
reputation and financial performance could be adversely impacted if the Group
suffers from cyber-attacks that disrupt its operations.

The Group makes extensive use of multiple channels to keep informed of
emerging cyber security threats to identify and implement measures intended
to mitigate the occurrence and/or consequences of such risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MAJOR INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, as one of the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, the Group continued to invest in property
development projects through investments in certain limited partnerships,
which engaged in business of property development in the PRC.

The Group held investments in property development projects classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (“financial assets at FVTPL") of
approximately RMB67,172,000 as at 31 December 2021, which individually
constituted 10% or more of the total amount of the financial assets at fair value
(including financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income) as at 31 December 2021 and represented 5% or
more of the total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2021. Further details are
set out below:
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67,1720007C * @RI R =T =Z—F+= A
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bW EREE) 10% 8 A L RIGARER
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Dividend
received
Fair value from the
Fairvalue/  gain/(loss) investment  %tototal
carrying for the forthe  amount of
Land size amountasat periodended period ended financial
Expire of the Costof 31December 31December 31 December assets at %to
Description of investments Location date project  investment 2021 2021 2021 fairvalue total assets
EE ﬁé
R ZB=-f %=
B-F 1A 1A g
+ R =t-H =t-H YR
=t-8  LLEE6  LEEN B2
ERM AYE/ MYE  REFE  EREE  (HEE
REfd W iR A tHER  REEE BEE Ui/ (58) RE  #EEAM Bl
m’ RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
Thk  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Investment in Banan District, 2022 N/A* 45,000 29,285 (8383) - 436% 332%
Partnership_Chongqing_1801 Chongging
RERABLR1801MKE EEMEHRE ik Sk NER
Investment in Wanzhou District, 2022 N/A* 37990 24871 (6938) - 370% 282%
Partnership_Chongging_1802 Chongging
REEARLK 80MKE EEmEME -%-- TER*
Investmentin Dongguan Waterfront 2022 N/A* 20000 13016 (3725) - 194% 148%
Partnership_Dongguan_1801 Economic
Development Zone
RERGHAF 1801 R E REMKBEREER —T_— TER*
* Urban redevelopment projects. Relevant land has not been acquired. * MRERIER o B/ L= REEE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MAJOR INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the fair values individually for the remaining 9
investments in property development projects were nil.

Looking ahead, the Board is of the view that as a result of the PRC's economy’s
relatively rapid growth and greater demand for commodity housing in the first
and second-tier cities, the real estate industry is expected to maintain a
momentum of long-term development given its indispensable role in the
national economy. On the other hand, with the control measures such as region-
specific regulatory policies and category-specific guidance implemented by the
government, the real estate market shall see its development pace slowed down
for adjustment, which intensified market segregation and accelerated
consolidation of enterprises.

The Group had invested in property development projects (including urban
redevelopment projects) in, among others, Shenzhen, Dongguan, Fujian,
Xiangyang, Wuhan, Kunming, Guangdong and Chongqging. The Group will
closely monitor the changes of policies and market dynamics in different places
and adjust the investment direction and strategies of the Group in accordance
with the characteristics of different places and projects in due time. The Group is
actively looking for investment and development opportunities of Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and is committed to bringing the
underlying value of the urban redevelopment projects, with a view to securing
the returns to the shareholders of the Company.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend to shareholders
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

(1

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26 March 2021, a
writ of civil summons (“Writ") have been issued against two previous
directors of the Company (namely, Mr. Zheng Weijing (“Mr. Zheng”) and
Ms. Guo Chanjiao (“Ms. Guo")), two PRC subsidiaries of the Company
(namely, Qianhai Flying Financial PRC Service (Shenzhen) Limited (“Qianhai
Flying Financial”) and Flying Investment Service (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (“Flying Investment”)) in October 2020 in relation to the
repayment of certain loans and interest accrued thereon. Pursuant to the
Writ, (i) Mr. Zheng was demanded for the repayment of an aggregate
amount of RMB16,306,300 (“Claimed Amount”), alleging to be the principal
and interest accrued thereon pursuant for a loan agreement in 2019; (ii)
Ms. Guo, the Company, two PRC subsidiaries of the Company and a
number of PRC companies independent to the Group were alleged to be
guarantors of the Claimed Amount under a guarantee in 2019 (“2019 Loan
Guarantee”) in favour of the claimant under the Writ to secure the Claimed
Amount.

Pursuant to the judgement dated 24 February 2022 of Shenzhen Qianhai
Cooperation Zone People’s Court GRIIATEE EIE A RIEFR) (the “SZ
Qianhai CZ Court”), the SZ Qianhai CZ Court determined that, among
others:

(1) Mr. Zheng failed to repay the loan of RMB15 million (the “Loan”)
received from the lender (the claimant in the Writ);

(2)  the private lending as referred to in the Writ was not evidenced to
relate to the crimes of suspected illegal fundraising;

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES (CONTINUED)

(3)  the relevant document was only signed by Mr. Zheng and Ms. Guo
without the rest of the then board members of the Company at the
material time and there was no evidence to show that the Company
provided guarantee to the Loan, accordingly, the SZ Qianhai CZ
Court did not agree and did not rule that the Company shall be
responsible for the joint and several liability of the repayment of the
Loan;

(4)  Mr. Zheng was ordered to repay the Loan, the corresponding
outstanding interest of the Loan and relevant legal costs, to the
lender; and

(5)  Qianhai Flying Financial, Flying Investment, Ms. Guo, and two other
third party PRC corporate defendants shall be jointly and severally
liable for the civil liability of Mr. Zheng in relation to the Loan. They
are entitled to claim against Mr. Zheng following their fulfillment of
their responsibility under the relevant guarantee.

As stated in the Company’s announcements dated 8 December 2020 and
26 March 2021, Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo, and three employees of the Group
have been held in custody since the evening of 7 December 2020 by the
Nanshan Branch of the Shenzhen Public Security Bureau (R AL B
L% /B, the “Bureau”) in the PRC in relation to investigation regarding
certain suspected illegal absorption of public deposits (collectively, the
“Custodies”). The Custodies are related to certain unsettled repayment
funds (the “Unsettled Repayment Funds”) in relation to the online
financing intermediary business conducted by a PRC subsidiary of the
Company, Shenzhen Flying Financial Internet Financial Services
Corporation (“SZ Flying Financial”), the operation a peer-to-peer lending
platform of which has already been ceased in the fourth quarter of 2019
(the "Platform”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES (CONTINUED)

@

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(Continued)

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 26 March 2021,
certain assets of the Group had been seized by the Bureau during the year
ended 31 December 2020, including the Group's investment properties of
approximately RMB47,870,000, unlisted equity securities classified as
financial assets at FVOCI of approximately RMB54,129,000 and the equity
interests of the Group in certain property development projects through
limited partnerships in which the Group’s investments classified as
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately RMB128,838,000 (collectively,
the “Seized Assets”). The Seized Assets owned by several PRC subsidiaries
of the Company which are subject to certain guarantees (the “Guarantee
Documents”) provided by these PRC subsidiaries of the Company for the
Unsettled Repayment Funds. As further disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 26 March 2021, due to the tightening regulatory
environment in the PRC in 2019, the Group ceased the operation of the
Platform in the fourth quarter 2019. The then board of directors of the
Company (apart from the former directors Mr. Zheng and Ms. Guo)
became aware of the Guarantee Documents not long before 26 March
2021 when investigation was made by the Board and the PRC Legal
Counsels in relation to the Custodies. The Company was informed by Mr.
Zheng in March 2021 that, in order to provide the Guarantee Documents
to the relevant PRC authority and to exit the business of the Platform, the
Seized Assets were pledged pursuant to the Guarantee Documents for the
settlement of the Unsettled Repayment in November 2019. The Guarantee
Documents included signature of Mr. Zheng or Ms. Guo, and/or the
company chop of Qianhai Flying Financial, SZ Flying Financial or Flying
Investment, and stated all lenders/investors of the Platform to be
guaranteed party (without specifying any particular person/entity as
counterparty to the Guarantee Documents). For clarity, the Company did
not execute the Guarantee Documents, and the Seized Assets were not
authorised to be pledged by the Company in order to provide the
Guarantee Documents to the relevant PRC authority and the Company
could not speculate the details of interactions between Mr. Zheng and the
relevant PRC authority. According to the Company's record, SZ Flying
Financial did not borrow from the Platform and shall not have incurred
indebtedness to the relevant lenders/investors of the Platform. With
reference to the October 2021 Judgement, it was determined by SZ
Nanshan District Court that, among others, Mr. Zheng was the actual
controller of SZ Flying Financial and Mr. Zheng was the decision maker of
the use and allocation of the raised funds in relation to SZ Flying Financial.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

A RERMS ()

)

(&)

A RNRBAE—SE_—F =A==+~
BRRAERM Rz ST+ A
—+—HLEFE FAEEBETEECSES
BN EREEAEENRENELNA
R# 478700007 « DEAREAFEFTAHE
HEEREZ EMEEMNIEEMREAES
#ANREE 5412900070 * A EAEBBEBE
REBRETWHERBEFBRE -
MASEBEREFIRERD E AL AT ER
AEBZZSREE BEOARK
128,838,000 7T (S [FAMEE]) - W E
EAARRATHEWEARMEAE @ WX
RPN EMARNRFENEARGABES
SREME TERS ([EERXH]) - #m
RNARBBHAZZE-—F=A=+/HH
NEE—SBEE R T NLFPEHE
ERBWE  KAEBR -_ZT—AFFHENE
BRIEFEEE - ARRERMNESE (T
BIERESREAERBREIIN T =—F
ZAZ+ARBAMTARERE SR AEE
SR B 1T R 15 AR (R U -
ARBIRN T —F= AEMEESM
BEEETEE RREERSUFERED T
BER  WHIBEEER_E—hF+—
ARBER SRR - LB RBEE
T BRXHBEE CERBLZEIHE
% RRADGER SR - ORYIERS 5
SREBITE M AR ENE » WHHF A REAT
BEFH /A EEAERAT (W8S BEE
BXHEREMEFEEAL BEE) - A/EHE
R ARRWEE S FER MY - B0A
BEVHFHEARG ARPEEBRE BIRMH
BRI MBI - R T AR &
SEHEPRAAEREE B ZEEBMET - 1R
BARRBIMRE - RIITER S I & [
FEER T TEZEFEMNBEBER
AN RENEEER 2B _T=-—F+
R¥AE - FYImE L EERSE (Eh e
1) B A& RIRIIER & e T ER T
A MEEAERFYEBSRITEEES
RER EDBLRIREA ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEERWE

247 (&)

LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES (CONTINUED)

@

(Continued)

The Group contacted the Bureau through its representative and advisers
and were informed that the Seized Assets were not expected to be
returned to the Group, in particular, they were considered by the authority
in the PRC to be pledged in favour of the lenders of the Platform in
relation to the Offence of illegal absorption of public deposits.

Following the relevant investigations of the PRC authority and criminal

proceedings of first instance trial in the PRC, a criminal judgement was

made by the People’s Court of Nanshan District of Shenzhen (“SZ Nanshan
District Court”) on 18 October 2021 (the “October 2021 Judgement”)
against Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo and the three former employees of the Group.
With reference to the October 2021 Judgement, SZ Nanshan District Court
determined that, among others,

m

Mr. Zheng was the actual controller of SZ Flying Financial. Mr. Zheng
had actually controlled the illegal fundraising activities of SZ Flying
Financial (through online and offline channels) and was the decision
maker of the use and allocation of the raised funds;

Ms. Guo was the general manager of SZ Flying Financial, who was
responsible for the daily business of SZ Flying Financial including
the organization of the fundraising activities (through online and
offline channels), the sales of private placement products, etc,;

the three former employees of the Group were responsible for the
relevant matters of operation, finance and risk control of SZ Flying
Financial, respectively;

the Company and SZ Flying Financial were not regarded as subject
of crime. The criminal offence of illegal absorption of public deposits
(the “Offence”) was individually committed by Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo
and the three former employees of the Group;

Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo and the three former employees of the Group
were all convicted of the Offence and were sentenced to 18 months
to 7 years of prison with monetary penalties;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES (CONTINUED)
(2)  (Continued)

(6)  Mr.Zheng and Ms. Guo confessed to committing the Offence;

(7)  the three former employees of the Group confessed to committing

the Offence and their respective sentences; and

(8)  the outstanding amount in relation to the Offence subject to refund
to the investors was approximately RMB680 million. The assets
seized (which included the Seized Assets) in relation to the Offence
shall be distributed to the relevant investors in accordance with the

applicable PRC law and regulations.

(3)  Following online search (but without any access to the court documents),
the Company became aware recently that the Shenzhen branch of China
Guangfa Bank Co, Ltd. (EERITIRM AR 2 &R I51T) (the “CGB
Bank”) has sought and obtained a PRC civil judgement in November 2021
to discharge the loan agreement entered into between the CGB Bank and
Qianhai Flying Financial in August 2016 (the “CGB Agreement”), as well as
to require Qianhai Flying Financial, Huilian Technology (concerning the
Investment Properties) and Mr. Zheng to settle their joint and several
liability of approximately RMB12,947,000 (being the outstanding principal
and interest of bank borrowing under the CGB Agreement and the cost of
the civil litigation). As at the date of this report, the Company was not
aware of any change of status of the said PRC civil judgement sought and

obtained by CGB Bank in November 2021.

THE GROUP’S RESPONSE TO THE BASIS OF
DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and “Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion” in the independent auditors’ report contained on pages 120 to 124
of this annual report, the auditors of the Company (the “Auditors”) did not
express an audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group

for the year ended 31 December 2021 as a result of certain matters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEWED T (&)

THE GROUP’S RESPONSE TO THE BASIS OF
DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

The following paragraphs set out the Group’s response to the basis of disclaimer
of opinion:

()

(ii)

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

The Auditors are of the view that there is significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern because (i) the Group had
net current liabilities and net liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and
incurred a loss and operating cash outflow for the year ended 31
December 2021; and (ii) no sufficient supportable evidence that explains
the validity of the assumption in relation to the resumption of trading of
the shares of the Company.

After completion of the VSD Transaction, the Company had obtained sales
proceeds of HK$15.0 million to repay its indebtedness and enhance the
general working capital. On the other hand, the Company had entered
into the Subscription Agreement with the Subscriber to conduct the
Subscription (with net proceeds of HK$23.95 million) to strengthen the
business operation of the Company.

Coupled with the steady development of the financial platform services of
the Group, the Board and the audit committee of the Company are
confident that the Group could continue to operate as least 18 months
after the year ended 31 December 2021.

Scope limitation on PRC bank related balances

In the absence of the consent to use the personal seal of Ms. Guo, the
legal representative of the relevant subsidiaries in PRC, the Auditors are
unable to arrange certain confirmations to the PRC banks. Ms. Guo is still
under custody since 7 December 2020. Ms. Guo is the former director of
the Company who duties suspended on 26 March 2021 and a director and
legal representative of certain PRC subsidiaries.

Almost PRC subsidiaries that Ms. Guo is the director and legal
representative included in the disposal group of the VSD Transaction. The
Board and the audit committee of the Company concur with the view and
consider that the issue would be resolved during the year of 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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THE GROUP’S RESPONSE TO THE BASIS OF
DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

(iii) Opening balances and corresponding figure
The Auditors are of the view that the qualifications in the auditors’ report
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would affect the opening balances,
corresponding figure and related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Board and the audit committee of the Company concur with the view
and consider that the qualifications in the auditors’ report for the year
ended 31 December 2020 had been resolved during the year ended 31
December 2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2021.

After the reporting date, the Company had completed a very substantial disposal
on 29 June 2022 to dispose of its equity holding of Expand Wealth Limited, Profit
Success Technology Limited and Expand Thrive Limited and their subsidiaries
(the "Disposal Group”) to the buyer for consideration of HK$15 million (the “VSD
Transaction”). The Company and the buyer entered the sale and purchase
agreement of the VSD Transaction on 20 December 2021. The resolution of the
VSD transaction was approved by the shareholders of the Company in the
extraordinary general meeting on 1 June 2022. Upon the completion of the VSD
Transaction, the Company had ceased to hold any interests in the Disposal
Group.

For the details of the VSD Transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 26 January 2022, 18 February 2022, 1 June 2022 and 29
June 2022, and the circular of the Company dated 10 May 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEWED T (&)

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS AND EXPECTED SOURCES OF
FUNDING

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31
December 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

For the contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2021,
please refer to point 2 of the “LITIGATION, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES” section in
Management Discussion And Analysis.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

There were no charges on group assets as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB47.9 million were pledged for a bank
borrowing.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant capital commitments
(2020: nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation of HKS against RMB as its certain
bank balances are denominated in HK$ which is not the functional currency of
the relevant group entities. The Group has not made other arrangement to
hedge against the exchange rate risk. However, the Directors and the
management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure and will
consider utilising applicable derivatives to hedge out the exchange risk when
necessary.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury policies. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
evaluation of the financial conditions of its customers. To manage liquidity risk,
the Directors closely monitor the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEE WD (&)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 30 staff (2020: 90). Total staff
costs (including Directors’ emoluments) were approximately RMB7.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB25.3 million). Remuneration is
determined with reference to market conditions and the performance,
qualifications and experience of individual employee. Year- end bonus based on
individual performance will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward
for their contributions. Other benefits include share option scheme, and
contributions to statutory mandatory provident fund schemes and social
insurance together with housing provident funds to its employees in Hong Kong
and the PRC respectively.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the remuneration committee
of the Board, having regard to the relevant Director's experience, responsibility,
workload and the time devoted to the Group, the Group’s operating results and
comparable market statistics.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 27
July 2022 to Tuesday, 2 August 2022, both dates inclusive, during which no
transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers documents accompanied by the
relevant Shares certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration by
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 26 July 2022.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREER ZEBEFE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Gongjun (58 A 8 5£ 4E), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 December 2011 and re-designated to an executive
Director on 15 July 2015. Mr. Zhang was re- designated as the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 26 March 2021. Mr. Zhang obtained
the certificate of master’'s degree in business administration from the Peking
University in July 2013.

Prior to being re-designated as an executive Director, Mr. Zhang was the
managing director of Shenzhen Sino-investment Management Company
Limited, responsible for overall operational management. From August 2008 to
January 2012, Mr. Zhang served as a non-executive director of Sino Grandness
Food Industry Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore whose shares are listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited with stock code T4B. Mr. Zhang currently is also an
independent director of SZZT Electronics Co., Ltd, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002197) with the appointment date of 21
June 2019. Save as disclosed herein, in the three years preceding the date of this
annual report, Mr. Zhang did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in Hong Kong or overseas. Mr. Zhang is a member of the
remuneration committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang was appointed as the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Board on 26 March 2021 and
redesignated as a member of the nomination committee of the Board on 11
March 2022.

Ms. Wan Suyuan (B = Z =), aged 60, was appointed as an executive
Director on 9 December 2021. Ms. Wan has obtained a certificate of Business
Administration from China University of Petroleum (Beijing) in 2011. Before Ms.
Wan retired from the banking industry in July 2020, Ms. Wan worked as a
department head and was involved in the management of several branches of
banks in China, including China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd (Shenzhen branch)
and Baoshang Bank Co., Ltd (Shenzhen branch), with more than 25 years of
banking experience.

Ms. Wan was appointed as a member of each of the remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Board on 9 December 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENGREEECBEFE (&)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Leung Man Kit (2 3 £ % 4 ), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 February 2022. Mr. Leung is a Fellow Certified Public Accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as a Fellow
Member of the Association of International Accountants, Fellow Member of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also an Associate Member of The Society of
Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He obtained a Master Degree of Business
Administration in Financial Management from The University of Hull in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Leung has many years of audit and tax experience from
various listed and private companies in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Leung is also experienced in carrying out compliance duties of companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung was the company secretary and
authorised representative of China Bozza Development Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1069), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, during
the period from April 2014 to July 2020. Mr. Leung was also an executive director
of Modern Healthcare Technology Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 919), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, during the period
from September 2010 to February 2014.

Mr. Leung was appointed as is a member of each of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Board on 1 February 2022.

Ms. Liu Yi (213 Z £), aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 23 May 2022. Prior to the Appointment, Ms. Liu served various micro-
credit and money lending companies in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”") and is well experienced in the money lending business sector. Ms. Liu
graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (2 F EHg K
E2) in June 2007 with a bachelor degree in financial management (B4 7§ & 12 &

x84

Ms. Liu did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in Hong
Kong or overseas.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENGREEE2BEFE (&)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Vincent Cheng (¥f % 18 18 T), aged 59, FCPA (Aust), FCPA (HK), FCIS,
FTI (HK), CTA HK was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 20
December 2011. Dr. Cheng obtained a doctor degree in business administration
from European University, a master degree in business administration from
Deakin University in Australia, and a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from
the City University of Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng was admitted as a fellow of CPA
Australia, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He was also recognised by the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong as a
certified Tax adviser (CTA HK).

From December 1987 to September 2000, Dr. Cheng was employed by a
financial planning firm and the last post was finance director. During October
2000 and February 2002, he worked as a project manager to assist a company to
seek its listing status in Hong Kong. From May 2003 to July 2010, he joined a
listed company in Hong Kong and acted as a qualified accountant and company
secretary.

From 10 August 2013 to 22 October 2018, Dr. Cheng was an independent non-
executive director of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited* ( B R A B A
% 17 B BB A &)), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 3332). On 16 November 2018, Dr. Cheng was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of China Tontine Wines Group Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 389). Save
as disclosed herein, in the three years preceding the date of this annual report,
Dr. Cheng did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in
Hong Kong or overseas. Dr. Cheng is a member of the nomination committee of
the Board. Dr. Vincent Cheng was the chairman of the audit committee of the
Board and redesignated as a member of the audit committee of the Board on 23
May 2022.

*

For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Miao Bo (& i 18 £), aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 15 July 2015. Dr. Miao graduated with a bachelor of laws
from the China University of Political Science and Law in 2000, a master of laws
in Tsinghua University in 2003 and a doctor of philosophy in laws from the
Macquarie University in 2007.

From 2008 to present, Dr. Miao is an assistant professor in the Department of
Asian and International Studies from the City University of Hong Kong. In the
three years preceding the date of this report, Dr. Miao did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in Hong Kong or overseas. Dr. Miao
is a member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. Hsu Tawei (& K12 54 ), aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on T March 2021. Mr. Hsu obtained a bachelor degree in
science from National Taiwan University in 1981 and a master degree in business
administration from University of Bridgeport in 1992. From 1993 to 2006, he was
the vice-president of President Securities Corporation (Taipei). From 2006 to
2017, he was the executive director and responsible officer of President
Securities (HK) Limited. From 2017 to 2018, he was the director of DA Capital (HK)
Limited. Since 2018, he is the responsible officer of GSI Finance Group Limited.

Mr. Hsu was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee of the
Board and a member of each of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Board on 1 March 2021.

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho (& /& % 5t 4 ), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 9 December 2021. Mr. Tsao holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Warwick in the United Kingdom.
Mr. Tsao is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and an associate of the Australasian Institute of
Banking and Finance. He has over 20 years' extensive experience in auditing,
corporate finance and company secretarial practice. Mr. Tsao is an independent
non-executive director and the chairman of audit committee of Courage
Investment Group Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 1145; Singapore Stock Code:
CIN), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
and the Singapore Exchange.

Mr. Tsao was appointed as a member of each of the audit committee and
nomination committee of the Board on 9 December 2021. Mr. Tsao was
redesignated as the chairman of the audit committee of the Board on 23 May
2022.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William (2] iE 5 5t 4 ), aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 March 2022. Mr. Lau has over 13
years of experience in accounting, finance and consulting. Mr. Lau has been an
independent non-executive director of Huisen Household International Group
Limited (Stock code: 2127) since 2 December 2020. Mr. Lau has been the director
of Winning Brothers Capital Group Limited since 30 June 2015, mainly
responsible for strategic business development. He worked in the China
Yinsheng International Securities Limited, which provides asset management
services, broker services and advisory services, from September 2017 to January
2018 and his last position was Associate Director.

Mr. Lau was a manager of the direct investment department of Yuanta Securities
(Hong Kong) Company Limited, a licenced corporation registered with the SFC
to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts),
Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on futures contracts), Type 6
(advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities, from August 2014 to June 2015. He was also a manager in the
corporate finance department of Mazars CPA Limited from March 2012 to March
2014, and a senior associate of the corporate finance department in the Hong
Kong branch of KBC Bank N.V, from April 2010 to November 2011. Mr. Lau was a
senior accountant in Ferrier Hodgson Limited from May 2008 to February 2010,
an associate in Asian Capital (Corporate Finance) Limited from November 2006
to January 2008, and a staff accountant in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
January 2005 to June 2006.

Mr. Lau became a member of the CPA Australia in December 2010, a member of
the Institute of Certified Management Accountants in July 2012 and an associate
of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in June 2011. He
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business (Accountancy) and a degree of Master
of Business (Marketing) from the Queensland University of Technology in
October 2002 and October 2003 respectively.

Mr. Lau was appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Board and a member of the remuneration committee of the Board on 11 March
2022. Mr. Lau was further appointed as a member of the audit committee of the
Board on 23 May 2022.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Chi Wing (A & % % %), aged 43, was engaged to act as the
Company Secretary and an authorized person of the Company as an external
service provider with effect from 1 November 2020.

Mr. Chow is not an employee of the Group and Mr. Zhang Gongjun, the

executive Director, is the person whom Mr. Chow can contact for the purpose of
code provision F.1.1 of the Code.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Zhang Gongjun, an executive Director of the Company, was appointed as
the compliance officer on 26 March 2021 to replace the vacancy by the
resignation of Mr. Zheng Weijing.

Mr. Leung Man Kit, an executive Director of the Company, was appointed as

compliance officer to replace Mr. Zhang Gongjun on 23 May 2022.

Please refer to biography of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Leung above for details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\\/ \\
TEREG®RE

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Company’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important roles of its Board in providing
effective leadership and direction to the Group’s business, and ensuring
transparency and accountability of the Company’s operations. The Board sets
appropriate policies and implements corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company has applied and complied with the principles and code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2021
save as the deviations as mentioned in the sections headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” and “Board Composition” in this report.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance practices in
order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with the
increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising
expectations of shareholders and investors.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIRED STANDARD OF
DEALINGS IN SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquires,
all the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors adopted by the Company throughout the year under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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A. THE BOARD

A.1 Board of Directors
The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for
the Group's activities with a view to developing its business and
enhancing shareholder value.

A.2 Board composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zheng Weijing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Guo Chanjiao
(duties suspended on 26 March 2021 and
vacated on 28 June 2021)
Ms. Wan Suyuan
(appointed on 9 December 2021)
Mr. Leung Man Kit
(appointed on 1 February 2022)
Ms. Liu Yi
(appointed on 23 May 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Vincent Cheng
Dr. Miao Bo
Mr. Hsu Tawei
(appointed on 1 March 2021)
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho
(appointed on 9 December 2021)
Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William
(appointed on 11 March 2022)

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. The composition of the Board is well
balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive
corporate and strategic planning experiences that can contribute to the
business of the Group.
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A.2

THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Board composition (Continued)

As disclosed the announcement of the Company dated 19 November
2020, Mr. Leung Po Hon resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He also ceased to act as the chairman of the
remuneration committee, and the member of each of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Board with effect from
19 November 2020. Following the resignation of Mr. Leung, the Company
failed to comply with Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules as its number
of independent non-executive Directors fell below three; Rule 5.28 of the
GEM Listing Rules as the audit committee of the Board had less than three
members; and Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules as the remuneration
committee of the Board was not chaired by an independent non-
executive Director and did not comprise a majority of independent non-
executive Directors as members.

Following the resignation of Mr. Leung, the Company deviated from A.5.1
of the Code as the nomination committee of the Board did not comprise a
majority of independent non-executive Directors as members.

On 1 March 2021, the Company appointed Mr. Hsu Tawei as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of each of the audit committee and nomination
committee of the Board. The Company then re-complied with the
requirements under Rules 5.05(1), 5.28, 5.34 and A.5.1 of the Code.

Except for the matters mentioned above, during the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2)
and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors representing more than one-
third of the Board and at least one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. All
independent non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for
assessment of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Board has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors.
The Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2021

THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting
the success of the Company. This is achieved by setting up corporate and
strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of
operating activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and
acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relation(s) among members of the Board and between
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Formal service agreements and letters of appointment have been entered
into with the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors respectively setting out the key terms and conditions of their
respective appointments.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year ended 31 December
2020, Mr. Zheng Weijing acted as both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and since 26 March 2021, Mr. Zhang
Gongjun has acted as both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. As of the date of this annual report, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are not separate
and both are performed by Mr. Zhang Gongjun. The Company is in the
process of identifying a suitable person to act as the Chief Executive
Officer and shall make announcement as and when appropriate. Since the
Directors meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Company, the Directors consider that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Directors and
the management of the Company and believe that this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
efficiently.
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A.5

THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities and delegation of functions

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division
of functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the
management of the Group. The Board reserves for its decision on all major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary (the “Company
Secretary”) and senior management of the Company, with a view to
ensuring compliance with the Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations. Any Director may request independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's expense, upon
reasonable request being made to the Board. The day-to-day
management, administration and operations of the Company are
delegated to the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these
officers for the implementation of the Board decisions. The Board
periodically reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to
entering into any significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have to
obtain the Board's approval.

No corporate governance committee has been established by the
Company and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties, which included:

(1) to develop and review the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(3)  to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees;
and

(5)  toreview the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the Company.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Appointment, re-election and removal of directors

Each of Mr. Zhang Gongjun, Ms. Wan Suyuan, Mr. Leung Man Kit and Ms.
Liu Vi, being executive Directors, have renewed or entered his/her service
contract with the Company on 15 July 2021, 9 December 2021, 1 February
2022 and 23 May 2022, respectively, for a term of three years. The
aforementioned service contracts with the Company for each of the
executive Directors shall be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party.

Each of Dr. Vincent Cheng, Dr. Miao Bo, Mr. Hsu Tawei, Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho
and Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William, being the independent non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of two years commencing from 20 December 2020, 15 July 2020, 1
March 2021, 9 December 2021 and 11 March 2022, respectively. The
aforementioned appointment letters with the Company for each of the
independent non-executive Directors shall be automatically renewed and
extended for successive term of one year and may be terminated either
after the initial term by either party by giving at least three months’ notice
in writing or be terminated after one year of the initial term.

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's articles of association. According to the Company'’s articles of
association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from office at
each annual general meeting, provided that each Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Directors to
retire every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their
last re-election or appointment.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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A. THE BOARD (CONTINUED) A. EE8 (&)

A.7 Board meeting, general meeting and procedures A7 EXEESE BRRASRERF
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board convened a total of BE-_Z-_—4%+-_A=+—H JJ:iF
twenty-two board meetings and one general meeting was held. The i% @ ,\.7:.7 M-t RESeezxzN—
following is the Directors’ attendance record of meetings held by the RERE - J:AT?%ﬁ%ij‘i%@%ﬁE’]
Board and general meeting: HEEABREREML R L

Number of Number of
attendance/ attendance/
number of board number of

meetings general meeting
HERE HERE
ExeEeEYA RRAXEHE

Mr. Zheng Weijing BE R A
(resigned on 26 March 2021) (R=ZEZ—F=A=+/NHEIT) 0/2 0/0
Mr. Zhang Gongjun RAE A 22/22 1/1
Ms. Guo Chanjiao (duties suspended BELLET(R_E=—F
on 26 March 2021 and vacated A+ NBEEREM
on 28 June 2021) R-ZZE-_—FXAZ+N\REE) 0/2 0/0
Dr. Vincent Cheng e 22/22 11
Dr. Miao Bo EHREL 22/22 1/1
Mr. Hsu Tawei NS
(appointed on 1 March 2021) (R—BE-—F=A—HEZHF) 21/21 11
Mr. Wan Suyuan ExEZT
(appointed on 9 December 2021) (RZBE-_—F+-ANBHEZT) 8/8 0/0
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho eSS
(appointed on 9 December 2021) (RZE_—F+-_ANBEZRT) 8/8 0/0
Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely EFZgMENERHTE  #@HE  KEH
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. BER UFEEGXRERAGEMEITE
BE -
Schedules for annual Board meetings and draft agenda of each Board FEEECCARBMRNSESS A
meeting are sent to all Directors in advance. Notice of at least 14 days is ERVRORISEEMEES - FHE
given for a regular Board meeting. For other Board and committee EERELA THURMNBME - R H
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. Board papers together HEFeRTESEE —RIASELE
with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are dispatched to BEA -REEREFTLEIN - ORE
all Directors at least three days before each regular Board meeting to DERAIMEBESRREETS X HER
ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to review the related FiB#EE TERASZEN BRESS
documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting. THREEEREE X AeRExRDE
1o
The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board and AEMEBEMEESZEREZEEEEN
committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to all Directors BELE - BRERE—RENEERHE
for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final NAFBEERXTR OV RUAEES
versions are open to Directors for inspection. The Company's articles of i MEEATRUHSESTER - A2
association contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting RIERBREHBGRX  RAEUNESHES
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving TMBBAEBERSH S RERFE
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have a AIEEEEEHEBREZ I G R AN
material interest. BINE IS AGSEZIEEAE -
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Continuous professional development

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
each of the Directors (namely, Mr. Zhang Gongjun, Ms. Wan Suyuan, Dr.
Vincent Cheng, Dr. Miao Bo, Mr. Hsu Tawei and Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho) has been
given relevant guideline materials to ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in
relation to the Company's businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and
skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and GEM Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding listing rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are also
issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their awareness of best
corporate governance practices.

Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
and has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and compliance with the Code, reviewed and monitored the
continuous professional development of the Directors and reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements during the year as well as the disclosures in
this report.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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B.1

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference, which are
available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, to assist them in the efficient implementation of their functions.
Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 20 December 2011
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the Code. The terms of reference were last
updated on 1 January 2019 and maintained on both the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are mainly to (i) review the financial statements and reports
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the Company's
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or external auditors before submission to the Board; (ii)
review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the work
performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of external auditors; and (iii) review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated procedures.

B.1

BEEgRTHNEES

EFgCRV=-AEFEETNEZES
BAnmEZZE@((BE%EEE]) &
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LREAEE ()
B. BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED) B. EE2ETWZEES (&)
B.1 Audit Committee (Continued) B.1 BEXZEET (&)
As at 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee has three members HE-_Z-_—F+-A=1+—H8 B&Z
comprising Dr. Vincent Cheng (Chairman), Dr. Miao Bo, Mr. Hsu Tawei and g ’Q/ﬁ\’j E=RKE  BEmREL(E
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. F“ ) BEEL BRREXEREBRE
Lau Jing Yeung, William was appointed as a member of Audit Committee CMEYABYIERITEE - R EH L
on 23 May 2022. Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho was redesignated as the chairman of EE’\_ T _HFRA+t=ZHEZERE
Audit Committee on 23 May 2022. During the year ended 31 December ZEBEEKE BESZLEN_T_—
2021, the Audit Committee had reviewed the annual results and report of AAZ+=-HATAERZESEF - 8
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020, the interim results 2T F+-_A=+—HIFE &
and report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and REEEDRIBFARTEE T -_TF
first and third quarterly results and reports of the Company for the periods +=-—A=+—H JJ: FEMFEEE MR
ended 31 March 2021 and 30 September 2021 respectively. Subsequent S HEZE-_—FXA=1+HINEAR
to 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report, all members of the MAPHEENREAREKARAFHE_Z
Audit Committee attended a meeting to review the Group’s internal Z—F=ZA=F+—HEZZ=—FNA
control, risk management and the Structured Agreements (as set out in —tALHEMNE - FTEHE=FEEE
the section headed “Report of the Directors” of this annual report) for the NE - BEER T —i-f— A=4+—
year ended 31 December 2021. The Group’s final results and the annual HEARERY EXEEF2BKED
results announcement for the year ended 31 December 2021 and this HESHERIAEEEZ S - —F+=
annual report had been reviewed by the Audit Committee before A=T—HIEFEMNRNLER - BER
submission to the Board for approval. Members of the Audit Committee Rz (ERANFR[EFSRE| —
were of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the f) AEEEZ T - —F+-_A=1+—
applicable accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and that adequate HIEFENRPEERDFREREFEAE
disclosure have been made. FRICEZZEGERE  FIEREES
CEH BREZEGRERRRHZEFHE
BEREBEAgTER  GEM EWARAER
EHFR D HEE -
During the year ended 31 December 2021, six meetings of the Audit BT+ -_A=1+—HItFE "
Committee were held and the attendance of each member of the Audit EzZEgdRAREE  SE%ELZEY
Committee is contained in the following table: KEMEEIBRENTEK
Number of attendance/
number of meetings
FERY, aR8E
Dr. Vincent Cheng BeEiEt 6/6
Dr. Miao Bo BRI 5/6
Mr. Hsu Tawei RRERAE
(appointed on 1 March 2021) (W—ZE-—_—F=—F—BEZT) 4/5
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho = /i/?ﬂ?ﬁi
(appointed on 9 December 2021) (RZZ2EZ—F+ZANREZT) 1
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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B.2

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 20
December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code. The terms of reference were last updated on 1 January 2019 and
maintained on both the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to
(i) review the Board composition; (ii) develop and formulate relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors; (iii) identify
qualified individuals to become members of the Board; (iv) monitor the
appointment and succession planning of directors; and (v) assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The nomination policy aims to set out the relevant selection criteria and
nomination procedures.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the following factors
would be used as reference by the Nomination Committee, including but
not limited to:

(@)  ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company;

(b)  reputation for integrity and accomplishment and experience in the
relevant industry(ies);

() commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(d)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background and ethnicity; and

(e) effectiveness in carrying out the responsibilities of the Board, such
as participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgement, scrutinising the Company's performance and
monitoring the reporting of performance, etc..
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED) B. EE8RTWZEES (&)
B.2 Nomination Committee (Continued) B2 RRZEE (&)
For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make REZESHANEBEFERRERNEESIR
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval. For HEzm ftESeZ2ERILE - BIREE
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the BAZINMEARSIRE  ERERESEN
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its EFeRS HEFSZENES AN
consideration and recommendation. A circular setting out information as FeniRREEBIEAEERE R LRESR
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations of the BEREFFEZEEABEABR - HERE
proposed candidates will be sent to the shareholders. The Board shall BAZ KBRS RBOAEHEBEER
have the final decision on all matters relating to its recommendation of BEEGHRNTE -
candidates to stand for election at any general meeting.
As at 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee has six members BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—8 8%
comprising of two executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Gongjun (Chairman) BEE2RNEAKEHEAK BEMBINITE
and Ms. Wan Suyuan and four independent non-executive Directors, Dr. FARAEEE(EF) REXRLZ LTI
Vincent Cheng, Dr. Miao Bo, Mr. Hsu Tawei and Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho. Mr. Leung MU EBIERITES  BEEREL -
Man Kit was appointed as a member of Nomination Committee on 1 BEEELT BREELELREERLEAE -2
February 2022. Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William was appointed as the chairman XEBEEER - E-_—F - —HEZTE
of Nomination Committee on 11 March 2022. During the year ended 31 RBEZEGKE - B EHEAER T =
December 2021, three meetings of the Nomination Committee was held FZAT " HEZTAREZEGERE -
to review the structure and composition of the Board and assess the HE 22— F+-_A=+—HILHFE "
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The REZECBR-ASERTEESRE
attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is contained RABAKANFHEBLIERTEETNE L
in the following table: Mo ZERELZEENENEHEBRINRT
*x:
Number of attendance/
number of meeting
HERE EREE
Mr. Zheng Weijing BE R LA
(resigned on 26 March 2021) (R=ZZE=-—F=ZA=-F+/"HEMT) 0/1
Ms. Guo Chanjiao (duties suspended Eifctegeonn
on 26 March 2021 and vacated (RZZE-—F=ZA-FTAEFRBE&
on 28 June 2021) RT3 ABZ+/\BERE) 0/1
Ms. Wan Suyuan SEREZT
(appointed on 9 December 2021) (RZBE_—F+-ANBEZT) 0/0
Dr. Vincent Cheng BmEEL 3/3
Dr. Miao Bo ERELT 3/3
Mr. Hsu Tawei RARERE
(appointed on 1 March 2021) (W=—ZE-_—F=—F—BHEZT) 2/2
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho sk S
(appointed on 9 December 2021) (RZBE_—F+-ANBEZT) 0/0
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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B.2

B.3

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Board adopted on 29 August 2013 a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) and the Nomination Committee had made
recommendations to the Board on the measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy. The Board recognises that
increasing diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company's strategic objectives and sustainable development. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The measurable objectives
recommended by the Nomination Committee and adopted by the Board
include the following:

(i) At least 33% of the members of the Board shall be non-executive
Directors or independent non-executive Directors;

(i) At least 80% of the members of the Board shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

At least 33% of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(iif)

At least 33% of the members of the Board shall have more than
seven years of experience in the industry he/she is specialised in;

(iv)
and

(v) At least 33% of the members of the Board shall have China-related
work experience.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 20 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
Remuneration Committee adopted the approach under code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code and the primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are mainly to (i) make recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration; (ii) make
recommendations on the remuneration packages of executive Directors
and senior management; and (iii) review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time.
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED) B. EE8RTWZEES (&)
B.3 Remuneration Committee (Continued) B3 ¥MZE5g (&)
As at 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee has five members BHE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—"8 HFME
comprising three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hsu Tawei BERAEKEMAK  BIE=RBEILIEHN
(Chairman), Dr. Miao Bo and Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho, and two executive Directors, TEE BIGRKERE(EE)  BREIEL
Mr. Zhang Gongjun and Ms. Wan Suyuan. Mr. Leung Man Kit and Mr. Lau EERESSEE  AEMEBRTES A
Jing Yeung, William were appointed as members of Remuneration RABEERBERELZ T - BXXETER
Committee on 1 February 2022 and 11 March 2022, respectively. The A EHEEPIN —_E-__F-_A—HK
remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their TR CF-AT—HEZEAFHEZE
respective experience, responsibilities with the Group and general market SRE - EENNES N2 EREZTENKE
conditions. During the year ended 31 December 2021, three meetings of B HAEENETR —RMAERT - &
the Remuneration Committee were held to review the remuneration 2T F+-_A=+—HIFE %
package of the Directors and senior management of the Company, and MEES B -ZANSHEBTARAESTN
the attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is SREEEBNFMNEE  SFMEZE K
contained in the following table: BHHEBREN T :
Number of attendance/
number of meetings
HERE EEBE
Mr. Hsu Tawei TmRERE
(appointed on 1 March 2021) (R=ZE=—F=FR—HEZMT) 2/2
Mr. Zhang Gongjun RAE A 3/3
Ms. Wan Suyuan BRRET+
(appointed on 9 December 2021) (R—ZZBEZ—FE+-_ANBEEE) 0/0
Dr. Miao Bo HRE L 3/3
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho ESES S
(appointed on 9 December 2021) (R—ZE-—F+_-_ANBEZRT) 0/0
C. REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT C. SHEEBEENME
The biographical details of the senior management are set out in the SREEENBREHBEERAFRIESR
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” FrEaREEE s BRFIS] —8 -
of this annual report.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the number of senior BHE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE"
management other than the Directors who received/was entitled to & = LASMTER 7B #E U B LA T &5 1 B9 B
receive remuneration falling within the following band is set out as ETHERERERBASIIT ¢
follows:
Number of individual
AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 2 1,000,000 7 TT 0
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year and to ensure
that the consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement by the auditors of the Company about their responsibilities for
the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 120 of this annual report. The Board also ensures
the timely publication of the financial statements. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. The Board has developed its
systems of internal control and risk management and is also responsible
for reviewing the systems on an annual basis and maintaining adequate
internal control and risk management systems to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The internal audit department has performed annual review on the
Group's internal control and risk management systems, policy and
procedures for the year ended 31 December 2021 and reported to the
Audit Committee its findings and recommendations.

The Board, having taken into account the recommendations of the
internal audit department and the Audit Committee, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, and
considered the risk management and internal control systems effective
and adequate. The systems of risk management and internal control are
designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information

The Board has approved and adopted an Inside Information Disclosure
Policy (the “Policy”) for the Company since 2013 for monitoring and
disclosing inside information to ensure compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The procedures for
handling and dissemination of inside information as set out in the Policy

are summarised below:

(i

(ii)

Handling of Inside Information

(@)

Inside information shall be announced as soon as reasonably
practicable after it becomes known to the Board and/or is the
subject of a decision by the Board. In cases where a decision
by the Board is pending or in cases of incomplete
negotiations, the Group shall implement the procedures set
out in the Policy to maintain the confidentiality of
information. Until an announcement is made, the Directors
and the management should ensure that such information is
kept strictly confidential, and only the key personnel are
informed. If the confidentiality cannot be maintained, an
announcement shall be made as soon as practicable.

Business units shall keep inside information on transactions
confidential. If there is a leakage of inside information, they
shall inform the Directors immediately so that remedial
actions, including making an inside information
announcement, can be taken at the earliest opportunity.

The Group's Finance Department shall keep track of the
Group's threshold levels for disclosure pursuant to the size
tests under the GEM Listing Rules, so that an announcement
can be made as soon as practicable should a notifiable
transaction arise.

Dissemination of Inside Information

(@

Inside information is announced promptly through the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Interviews and Briefing sessions can be organised for the
analysts and the media after the designated officers having
the approval from the Chairman of the Company.
Presentation materials shall be reviewed in advance before
they are released at the briefing sessions.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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F. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION F.

The remuneration paid/payable to the auditors of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is set out as follows:

55

BAZBEMNME

BE_Z-_—S+-_A=+—HILEE
B/ BN AEEZESRNB ST ¢

Paid/payable

Services rendered R IRTE 1t S
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Statutory audit services EEE AR 950
Total a5t 950
G. COMPANY SECRETARY G. NEME

Mr. Chow Chi Wing (“Mr. Chow") was appointed as the Company Secretary
on 16 July 2015. According to the requirements of Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules, Mr. Chow has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2021.

BEEEE(RAEEDR=_ZE—HF+A
+RNBEZEARATWE - ﬁiﬁfGEMim
MAFESISERTE BREEREE
——F+=ZA=+— EJLEJ*%;;\T\ BC
15 B/ N BRI R 2457 -
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company has established various channels of communication with its
shareholders and the public to ensure that they are kept abreast of the
Company'’s latest news and development. Information relating to the
Company'’s financial details, property projects and major events are
available through publication of annual and interim reports,
announcements, circulars, press releases and on the Company’s website.

The Board believes that effective investor relations can help lower
financing cost, improve market liquidity of the Company’s shares, and
build a more stable shareholder base. Therefore, the Company is
committed to maintaining a high level of corporate transparency and
follow a policy of disclosing relevant information to shareholders,
investors, analysts and bankers in a timely manner.

Shareholders and investors may also write directly to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 1309, 13/F, Mirror
Tower, 61 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or via email to
“info@flyingfinancial.nk” for any inquiries. Inquiries are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company provide an
important channel for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen and/or other members
of the Board committees will endeavor to be available at the meetings to
answer any questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship
with its investors. A designated senior management and investor relations
team maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them informed of the Group’s developments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening extraordinary meeting on
requisition

Shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) shall follow the
following procedures as prescribed in Article 64 of the articles of
association of the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company (the "EGM"):

m

One or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings (the
"Requisitionist(s)”) shall have the right, by written requisition (the
“Requisition”), to require an EGM to be called by the Directors for
the transaction of any business specified therein.

The Requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
Company Secretary of the Company at both of the following
addresses:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

Address: Room 1309, 13/F
Mirror Tower
61 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Registered office of the Company

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
Requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene the EGM within twenty-
one (21) days of deposit of the Requisition, the Requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRE (&)

I. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for raising enquiries
Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share transfer, registration and payment of dividend to the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong (the “Branch Share
Registrar”), Tricor Investor Services Limited, details of which are as follows:
Tricor Investor Services Limited
Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Tel: (852) 2980 1333
Fax: (852) 28108185
Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of the Company
at the following designated contacts, correspondence address, email
address and enquiry hotlines of the Company:
Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary
Address: Room 1309, 13/F

Mirror Tower

61 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: info@flyingfinancial.nk
Tel: (852) 2152 9937
Fax: (852) 21529927
Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with their
detailed contact information for the prompt response from the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERERE (&)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meeting

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
Shareholder(s) should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal (the
"Proposal”) with his/her detailed contact information at the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong as specified above.

The Proposal will be verified by the Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong
and upon their confirmation that the Proposal is proper and in order, the
Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the agenda for the general
meeting. Whether a proposal will be put to a general meeting will be
decided by the Board in its discretion, unless the proposal put forward by
a Shareholder is (i) pursuant to a requisition by a Shareholder to convene
an EGM or (i) as special business to be considered at an annual general
meeting as described in Article 67(A) of the article of association of the
Company.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration of
the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s) concerned at the general
meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(@)  not less than twenty-one (21) days’ notice and not less than twenty
(20) clear business days' notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of any resolution of the Company in its annual
general meeting;

(b)  notless than twenty-one (21) days’ notice and not less than ten (10)
clear business days’' notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in the EGM;
or

(©)  not less than fourteen (14) days' notice and not less than ten (10)
clear business days' notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of any resolution of the Company other than those
specified in paragraphs (a) and (b) above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRE (&)

J. NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Details on the compliance of the non-competition undertaking by the
substantial Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out
in the paragraph headed “Non-Competition Undertaking” of the section
headed “Report of the Directors” of this annual report.

K. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
The Board confirm that there is no change in the Company’s constitutional

documents. The Company’s memorandum and articles of association is
available on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to present the annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are investment in property development
projects, operation of a financial services platform, provision of entrusted loan
and other loan services, financial consultation services, and finance lease services
in the PRC.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, an indication of the likely
future developments in the Group's business and the Company’s environmental,
social and corporate responsibility, can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. These discussions
form part of this report of the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and the PRC while
the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group's establishment
and operations accordingly shall comply with all PRC laws and applicable laws in
the jurisdictions where it has operations. During the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has complied with all
the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 8 December 2020, Mr. Zheng
Weijing ("Mr. Zheng"), the chairman, chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company, Ms. Guo Chanjiao (“Ms. Guo”), an executive director of
the Company, and three employees of the Group have been held in custody
since the evening of 7 December 2020 by the Nanshan Branch of the Shenzhen
Public Security Bureau (the “Bureau”) in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") pending investigation regarding certain suspected illegal absorption of
public deposits (collectively, the “Custodies”). The Custodies are related to certain
unsettled repayment funds (the “Unsettled Repayment Funds”) in relation to the
online financing intermediary business conducted by a PRC subsidiary of the
Company, Shenzhen Flying Financial Internet Financial Services Corporation (SZ
Flying Internet Financial”), the operation of which has already been ceased in the
fourth quarter of 2019.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Following the relevant investigations of the PRC authority and criminal
proceedings of first instance trial in the PRC, a criminal judgement was made by
the People’s Court of Nanshan District of Shenzhen (“SZ Nanshan District Court”)
on 18 October 2021 (the “October 2021 Judgement”) against Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo
and the three former employees of the Group. With reference to the October
2021 Judgement, SZ Nanshan District Court determined that, among others,

M

Mr. Zheng was the actual controller of SZ Flying Financial. Mr. Zheng had
actually controlled the illegal fundraising activities of SZ Flying Financial
(through online and offline channels) and was the decision maker of the
use and allocation of the raised funds;

Ms. Guo was the general manager of SZ Flying Financial, who was
responsible for the daily business of SZ Flying Financial including the
organization of the fundraising activities (through online and offline
channels), the sales of private placement products, etc,;

the three former employees of the Group were responsible for the
relevant matters of operation, finance and risk control of SZ Flying
Financial, respectively;

the Company and SZ Flying Financial were not regarded as subject of
crime. The criminal offence of illegal absorption of public deposits (the
"Offence”) was individually committed by Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo and the
three former employees of the Group;

Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo and the three former employees of the Group were all
convicted of the Offence and were sentenced to 18 months to 7 years of
prison with monetary penalties;

Mr. Zheng and Ms. Guo confessed to committing the Offence;

the three former employees of the Group confessed to committing the
Offence and their respective sentences; and

the outstanding amount in relation to the Offence subject to refund to
the investors was approximately RMB680 million. The assets seized (which
included the Seized Assets) in relation to the Offence shall be distributed
to the relevant investors in accordance with the applicable PRC law and
regulations.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any laws and regulations
which are industry specific, and have material implication or impact on the
business and operation of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees are valuable assets and regards the
personal development of its employees as highly important. The Group wants to
continue to be an attractive employer for committed employees. During the
year under review, there was no dispute on salary payments and all accrued
remunerations, in all kinds, were settled on or before their respective due dates,
as stipulated under individual employee’s employment contract. The Group also
ensures that all the employees are reasonably remunerated by regular review
and the policies on salary increment, promotion, bonus, allowances and all other
related benefits are updated from time to time. Being people-oriented, the
Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy workplace for its employees
and encourages them to have a work-life balance.

The Group appreciates the importance of maintaining good relationships with
its customers and suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term business goals.
The Group values the feedback from its customers through communication to
address their concerns in a timely manner. For suppliers, the Group assures the
quality of their delivered services and products.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, there is no circumstance of
any event between the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers
which will have a significant impact on the Group's business and on which the
Group's success depends.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 125 to 258.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy aims to set out the approach to target dividend payout ratio
of the Company.

The Company targets to distribute to its shareholders a dividend amount as
determined by the Board at its sole and absolute discretion, but subject to:

a. the requirements of the Company’s constitutional documents;

b.  the solvency requirements of the laws of the Cayman Islands;

BEES FRRHAEBBZ2EEBE

AEEFRREESEREEE YaEEREEZ
BAER - AEEABERBERBERS|BHER
MEEX ERFENR  BEABRHSIROY
o BFrE R HEONME B EABREKQAET
AZ B AR Z AT  NEEIRE iR AR
RERESESIERM - X AR EHERME
BT - TBAL - BB R PAE EAMARRREF S 2 K
R AREUAARK  HHARERELZE2RE
RO TIERIR - SB)E B TIER AR EIGF
a1 -

AEESERATFPMMEAERRIBEREZER
M NEIEEMEEREBRR AEEER
BFzRE S@EREEZFPHAEINER - 3t
IR S - 785 B 5 A #O R 7% L o
mE 2 KRBELEE °

BE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HBULHKREE K
EEEEES BFF LHEER 2 MBS AR
BHAEREZEEREXNNEEEEATENS
o

EEBERERE
AEBHE-_Z-—F+_A=+t—HIFEN
EERANR B BEAREBRZE R RERE 125
BEF28ENGATBHRE -

EFEeV TR ERNEBEE-_T-_—F1+=A
=t HIEMBEENERRERE -

IR BB

BEBREEHINAREERBRRE X
BTt o

AAFHEARRKBEETENEEETNRED
B M

a. BT ARAERXMRRE
b. NAEFSHSAEMNENENRE

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK



64

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

DIVIDEND POLICY (CONTINUED)

C. there being sufficient amount of retained profits and share premium of
the Company for the dividend payment;

d. any financial covenants and other restrictions that exist with respect to
certain of the Company’s financing arrangements and other agreements
by which the Company is bound from time to time;

e. the earnings, financial position, results of operation, expansion plans,
working capital requirements, and anticipated cash needs of the Company
and its subsidiaries;

f. the payment by subsidiaries of cash dividends to the Company; and

g.  otherfactors which the Board may deem appropriate.

With respect to restriction (e) above, if any of the subsidiaries incurs debt on its
own behalf in the future, the instruments governing the debt, such as the
indenture governing any notes/bonds, may restrict its ability to pay dividends or
make other payments to the Company, and the corporate laws applicable to the
subsidiaries also impose requirements that these subsidiaries must meet before
they may pay dividends to the Company.

The form and frequency of dividend declaration and payment shall be at the
sole and absolute discretion of the Board and the dividend policy does not
constitute a legally binding commitment in respect of the future dividends.

The Board will monitor the implementation of the dividend policy and will
review the dividend policy, as appropriate, to ensure the compliance of the
dividend policy and discuss and approve any revision as and when require.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out in the financial summary on page 259 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options during
the year are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in note 30(b) to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, there is no reserves available for distributions to equity
holders of the Company comprising share premium account less accumulated
losses. (2020: nil).

MAJOR COUNTERPARTIES

The Group's customer base is diversified. Revenue of the Group includes the
revenue earned from counterparties which are the limited partnerships in the
investment in property development projects segment. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the percentage of revenue attributable to the Group’s major
counterparties is set out below:

Revenue
— The largest counterparty 40.0%
— The total of the five largest counterparties 70.5%

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors nor their close associates
nor any Shareholders (which to the knowledge of Directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the five largest
customers of the Group.

Due to the business nature of the Group, the Group primarily relies on its
employee for the conduct of its principal business activities and only retain a
minimal number of suppliers for ancillary administrative support services. As
such, the Group considers that it does not have any major suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Weijing (resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun
Ms. Guo Chanjiao
(duties suspended on 26 March 2021 and vacated on 28 June 2021)

Ms. Wan Suyuan (appointed on 9 December 2021)
Mr. Leung Man Kit (appointed on 1 February 2022)
Ms. Liu Yi (appointed on 23 May 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Vincent Cheng

Dr. Miao Bo

Mr. Hsu Tawei (appointed on 1 March 2021)

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho (appointed on 9 December 2021)

Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William (appointed on 11 March 2022)

Pursuant to Article 105(A) of the Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles
of Association”), at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
and shall be eligible for re-election. Every Director, including those appointed for
a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

By virtue of Articles 105(A) and 105(B) of the Articles of Association, Dr. Miao Bo
and Mr. Hsu Tawei will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Dr. Miao Bo and Mr. Hsu Tawei, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting.

By virtue of Article 109 of the Articles of Association, any person appointed by
the Directors to fill a casual vacancy or as additional Director shall hold office
until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at the meeting. Ms. Wan Suyuan, Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho, Mr.
Leung Man Kit, Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William and Ms. Liu Yi, who were appointed
by the board of Directors of the Company as Directors pursuant to board
resolution with effect from 9 December 2021, 9 December 2021, 1 February
2022, 11 March 2022 and 23 May 2022, respectively, will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, Ms. Wan Suyuan, Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho, Mr.
Leung Man Kit, Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William and Ms. Liu Yi, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years unless and until (i) terminated by either party
thereto giving not less than three months’ prior written notice; or (ii) the
executive Director not being re-elected as a Director or being removed by
Shareholders at general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles
of Association.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed for an initial
term of two years (as set out in the section headed "Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report) and shall be subject to retirement, re-election and
removal in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Director being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

(1) Ms. Guo Chanjiao was suspended her duties and powers as an executive
Director and a member of the nomination committee of the Company on
26 March 2021 and was vacated pursuant to article 102(iii) of the articles
of association of the Company with effect from 28 June 2021. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 26 March 2021 and 28 June
2021 for further details.

(2)  Ms. Wan Suyuan was appointed as an executive Director, a member of
each of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Board with effect from 9 December 2021. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 9 December 2021 for further
details.

(3)  Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
a member of each of the audit committee, the remuneration committee
and the nomination committee of the Board with effect from 9 December
2021. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9
December 2021 for further details.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

4)

Mr. Leung Man Kit was appointed as an executive Director, a member of
each of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Board with effect from 1 February 2022. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 January 2022 for further details.

Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Board and a member of the remuneration committee of the Board with
effect from 11 March 2022. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 11 March 2022 for further details.

Ms. Liu Yi was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 23 May
2022. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23 May
2022 for further details.

Mr. Leung Man Kit, an executive Director, was appointed as the
compliance officer to replace Mr. Zhang Gongjun with effect 23 May 2022.

Dr. Vincent Cheng had been redesignated as a member of the audit
committee of the Board on 23 May 2022.

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho had been redesignated as the chairman of the audit
committee of the Board and was appointed as a member of the
remuneration committee of the Board on 23 May 2022.

Mr. Lau Jing Yeung, William had been appointed as a member of the audit
committee of the Board on 23 May 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there were no changes to the Directors’ information
since the date of the 2020 annual report of the Company required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all five
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing

Rules and the Company considers the independent non-executive Directors to

be independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the interests of Mr. Zheng Weijing, the previous director of the Company
(resigned on 26 March 2021) in & 3 [& & 8 & & 15 B PR A 7] (Guangdong
Huijin Pawn Stock Company Limited*) (“Guangdong Huijin"), being a party to the
transactions as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Non- exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” and the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive's Interests and Short Position in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” below, no Directors or controlling shareholders (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals with the
highest emoluments are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at the rate of approximately 14% of the eligible employees’ salaries
to the Schemes. The Group has accrued for the required contributions which are
remitted to the respective local government authorities when the contributions
become due. The local government authorities are responsible for the pension
obligations payable to the retired employees covered under the Schemes. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

*  Foridentification purposes only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors, substantial shareholders and controlling shareholders of
the Company and their respective close associates (having their meanings as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in any business which
compete or may compete with the business of the Group or any other conflicts
of interest which any person may have with the Group as at 31 December 2021.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2012
("Prospectus”), Ming Cheng Investments Limited and Mr. Zheng Weijing
(collectively, the “Substantial Shareholders”), among others, has executed a deed
of non-competition (the “Non-competition Undertaking”) through which they
have irrevocably warranted and undertaken to the Company, not to, among
others, directly or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or
render any services to or otherwise be involved in any business in competition
with or likely to be in competition with the business of the provision of (i) pawn
loan services; (i) entrusted loan services; and (i) financial consultation services
and business ancillary to any of the foregoing in Hong Kong, the PRC and any
other country or jurisdiction to which the Group provides such services and/or in
which any member of the Group carries on business mentioned above from
time to time.

The Substantial Shareholders have confirmed to the Company in respect of their
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance with
the Non-competition Undertaking during the financial year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report based on information and
confirmation provided by or obtained from the Substantial Shareholders, and
were satisfied that the Substantial Shareholders have duly complied with the
Non-competition Undertaking.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

UPDATES ON COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY
MATTERS AS DISCLOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, as a provider of pawn loan services to the
customers, Guangdong Huijin is subject to the requirements of the Measures for
the Administration of Pawning (E2 & &2 ##%) (the “Pawning Measures”). The
Pawning Measures prescribe certain thresholds which pawn loan providers have
to comply with in respect of the pawn loans advanced to customers and they
also govern the rate of interest and total fees that may be charged by a pawn
loan provider.

The Pawning Measures provide that the rate of interest charged on a loan
provided in respect of pawned property must not exceed the interest rate for a
six-month loan as published by the People’s Bank of China (the "PBOC") as
discounted by the pawn loan period. It further provides that the combined
monthly total fees (excluding the consultation fee and the amount of loan
repayment) (being administration fee in the business) payable by the pledgor
must not exceed 4.2% of the loan amount in respect of loans secured by
pledged movable property, 2.7% of the loan amount in respect of loans secured
by mortgaged real estate and 2.4% of the loan amount in respect of loans
secured by pledged property rights.

As regards the other thresholds, the Pawning Measures provide that the
maximum outstanding amount owing on property pledged or mortgaged by
any one legal person or natural person to a pawn loan provider must not exceed
25% of the registered capital of the pawn loan provider; and that the total
outstanding amount owing in respect of property right pledged by customers
must not exceed 50% of the registered capital of a pawn loan provider. It is also
provided in the Pawning Measures that, if the registered capital of a pawn loan
provider is more than RMB10 million, the maximum loan amount that may be
provided for a single real estate backed loan must not exceed 10% of the
registered capital of the pawn loan provider.
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ExeRS (A)

UPDATES ON COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY
MATTERS AS DISCLOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS
(CONTINUED)

For the two years ended 31 December 2011, there were nine incidents where
the loans granted by Guangdong Huijin were not in compliance with the
relevant thresholds prescribed by the Pawning Measures. According to the PRC
legal adviser of the Company, Guangdong Huijin may be subject to
administrative penalty as a result of its past non-compliance; the maximum
potential penalty that may be imposed by the relevant government authorities
on the Group for such non-compliance would be an order to correct the non-
compliance and a fine of up to RMB30,000 for each non-compliant transaction.
As administrative penalty for illegal acts shall be imposed within two years from
the date such illegal act is committed, no administrative penalty for the nine
incidents of non-compliant transactions occurred during the two years ended 31
December 2011 shall be imposed after June 2013. As advised by the PRC legal
adviser of the Company, customers of the non-compliant transactions are
entitled to claim against Guangdong Huijin for overcharged interests and
administrations fees within two years commencing from the full repayment of
the pawn loans. All of the customers have signed confirmation letters and agree,
among other things, not to take any action against Guangdong Huijin for their
rights and entitlements in regard to the non-compliant loans granted by
Guangdong Huijin.

As at the date of this annual report, the Directors confirm that the Group had not
received any order to correct the non-compliance nor any notice of fine from
the relevant PRC government authorities. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, as at the date of this annual report, the Group had not received any
claims against Guangdong Huijin from its customers for overcharged interests
and administration fees in respect of the past non-compliance.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

UPDATES ON COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY
MATTERS AS DISCLOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS
(CONTINUED)

Since November 2010, to ensure ongoing compliance with the Pawning

Measures and other relevant laws and regulations, the Group has implemented

the following measures:

0]

(i)

(iff)

(iv)

in the loan approval process, the business team will fill in details of each
loan application, including the party, amount, rate of administration fees
and interest of each loan application, in order to ensure all loan
applications are in compliance with the Pawning Measures;

the risk management team, with the assistance of the legal and
compliance team, will cross-check the loan application, in particular the
loan amount and the rate of interest and administration fees to be
charged, to ensure compliance with the Pawning Measures;

the legal and compliance team will keep themselves aware of any
changes to the official rate prescribed by the PBOC and notify the
management if there may be any risk of breach of any of the threshold(s)
prescribed by the Pawning Measures; and they will obtain updates on
relevant laws and regulations from time to time and check whether the
existing practice is in compliance with these updates and if not, conduct
remedial measures; and

the Group will consult the external legal advisers and seek their advice on
compliance matters as and when required.

For further details of the past non-compliance and ongoing compliance

measures with the Pawning Measures, please refer to pages 147 to 152 of the
Prospectus.

As at the date of this annual report, based on information and confirmation
provided by or obtained from the Group, the independent non-executive

Directors were satisfied that the Group have duly complied with the prescribed

thresholds under the Pawning Measures for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
follows:

Interests in the underlying Shares

R-Z=——F+—_A=+—H ARAEEK=E
ZOTBABRARB REEHZE(EERES
EOESNEEBSHSRBAEGA(FHFEBEK
B EXVER) 2 Bfn - HEBRMD RESTHEZA
BIEBEAF M EEIEREXVEBE 7 RN MME AN
NElRBR Tz #w (BEREES LR GG
EBBRXEESIRBEB  ERRAR) IR
BB S R HAE IR0 5 352 (6 R E B 0 8T SR I A
iz B e AR GEM _ETTAR RIEE 5.46
BEs67IEFTMAME AN R REE AT 2 RS
T

RAEE R D 2

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Number of underlying Shares the Company
RAED BRI
ExpE B EEME HERGHE BB
Long position Short position (%)
RE KB
(Note)
(B&E)
Mr. Zhang Gongjun Beneficial owner 800,000 - 0.05
RAERAE EnEBAA
Dr. Vincent Cheng Beneficial owner 120,000 - 0.01
BWmBE L EnEBAA
Dr. Miao Bo Beneficial owner 120,000 - 0.01
HRIEL EnEBAA

Notes: Being unlisted physically settled share options to acquire ordinary Shares, further details of

which are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which was
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEERE (A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERREHEMATRAKSD RBE
RAD R R KRR

R-ZB_—F+"A=+—8B BEFEHA T
AL (RRAREFRTIZTHRABRIN) KK
0 RABEARO P HEEALENARRREZES K
HIERPIE B IRRERAFEN B MR

WA
Interests in the Shares Rz s
Number of Shares held (Note 1)
BERGEE (M)
Interest of
Beneficial Interest Security controlled Approximate
Name of Shareholder Interest of spouse interest corporation Total percentage
RRZA B gz [T 3 BRERZ SErEER At BYBEIHE
(%)
Ming Cheng Investments Limited 367,739,567 - - - 367,739,567 21.24
ARKREBR AT (Note 2)
(P 5E2)
Mr. Zheng Weijing 40,630,202 - - 367,739,567 408,369,769 2359
BEREE
Sino-Africa Resources Holdings Limited 255,676,042 - - - 255,676,042 14.77
FIEERIERBR AR (Note 3)
(fEE3)
Peace Bloom Limited 145,429,087 - - - 145,429,087 840
BEARNT (Note 4)
(3 4)
Upsoar Limited 155,518,650 - - - 155,518,650 898
AABRAE] (Note 5)
(Bt 3% 5)
Mr. Huang Xiguang - - - 255,676,042 255,676,042 14.77
EHHEE (Note 3)
(Fft 3% 3)
EMSRREERERLR TR -FER
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Interests in the Shares (Continued)

FTERRREMALRR G REEHE
MR R R ROR B (8])

R 2 #Em (5)

Number of Shares held (Note 1)

BEERGEAE (FH:E)
Interest of
Beneficial Interest of Security controlled Approximate
Name of Shareholder Interest spouse interest corporation Total percentage
BEHA BERER [NRIEE £ ERER SELEER #it MO EIE
(%)
Mr. Hu Jinxi 22,200,000 - - 145,429,087 167,629,087 9.68
HEERE (Note 4)
(M54
Ms. Fu Shanping - - - 155,518,650 155,518,650 8.98
BEFzL (Note 5)
(MI5E5)
Kimberland Credit Limited - - 408,369,769 - 408,369,769 23.59
S AREEBRAR (Note 6)
(FtzEe)
Mr. Shi Andong - - - 408,369,769 408,369,769 23.59
i b e (Note 6)
(MF5E6)
Notes: BaE -

1. These represent the corporation’s/person’s long position in the Shares.

2. Ming Cheng Investments Limited is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Zheng Weijing.

3. Sino-Africa Resources Holdings Limited is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Xiguang.

4. Peace Bloom Limited is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Hu Jinxi.

5. Upsoar Limited is a company wholly-owned by Ms. Fu Shanping.

6. Based on the notices of disclosure of interests filed by each of Kimberland Credit Limited and

Mr. Shi Andong on 23 January 2020, these long positions in the Shares are held by Kimberland
Credit Limited which is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Shi Andong. Under the SFO, Mr. Shi
Andong is deemed to be interested in these long positions in Shares held by Kimberland Credit
Limited.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, there was no person who had

any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of the Company on 20
December 2011 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to the
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group and/or enabling the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme

Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive Director), any non-executive Director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest, and
any other party having contribution to the development of the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme and percentage to the issued
share capital as at the date of this report

173,143,250 shares (approximately 10% of the total issued share capital as
at the date of this annual report).

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme

Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options in excess of
such limit must be separately approved by the Company's shareholders in
general meeting.

FTERRREMALRR G REEHE
MR YR R ROR B (8]

B EXFREEN RZBE_—F+-A=1+—
B @ RIBA R EIRRBES KA EEHE 3361577
B2 ERMETR - WA TR S FERIRR (D
BEERIARE o

BT S

BREARNRRERRAZZT——F+_A=ZF+HMNE
FRZES - ANARIRM—IBRENES (IR
B D AEHAER2EE BASEEERS
THEENEEN SEAEESURELEES
BEBEENMESIUAEBGEENANER -

R BIFHIBIT -

1. BRESSHZEN
ERABERSEE/RAKEMFRR 2 2

2. BRESBZEENRSHEE
AR A S EALE A A A B
ERRFATMEEZEMNER 2IMA
BifER (TmEBERE - BREAHnT
BF) EAFRTES  TAER  EF
HEBLEMNERS  URHAEEERE
BIRZ ZEAEMBAL -

3. REBERETETMHBITZRAE
ERMEREAREBHERITREZ
B7tE
173,143,250 & B fn (ABE R AF i B B 3%
TTRR AN 4BREX) 10%) ©

4. ZTZRERBBREETERT
Z AT EE LR
RME[+ =18 A R BB AR R EEE
BATRRARZ 1% © BB ERRAOEE— 2
BE AL R U EE AR AR RRBRRAE
EHERAE o

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

5.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the date of offer
of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to the
grantee thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an
option before it can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of
the option and the period within which payments or
calls must or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 on or before the date
of acceptance (which may not be later than 21 days from the date of
offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price
Being determined by the Directors and being not less than the highest of:

a. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

b.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

C. the nominal value of the Shares.
The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years

commencing on 20 December 2011 (being the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme).

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

On 17 December 2015, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 76,000,000
shares of the Company have been granted by the Company to the existing
Directors, employees and advisors of the Group under the Share Option Scheme;
30% of share options have an exercise period from 1 June 2016 to 19 December
2021 ("2015 Share Option 1"); 30% of share options have an exercise period from
1 June 2017 to 19 December 2021 (2015 Share Option 2"); and the remaining
share options have an exercise period from 1 June 2018 to 19 December 2021
(2015 Share Option 3"). All share options are subject to the fulfillment of relevant
profit targets by the Company, as set out below, and share options shall not be
vested if any of the profit targets is failed to be met.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

BT E (&)

R-ZE—RAF+-A++tH  KRARBEERE
FEMAKEEREAES EERERREER
W - Al A H R AR F] 76,000,000 B o H e
0% BRIENTTERA S —ARFA—HE=
E-—F+ZA+hhB(ZZE—AFERE])
30% B ENITERA-_E—+FNA—BEZ
E-—FE+ - A+ NhB( - E—RAEERE
) - B TERENTEHA=-ZE—N\FA
—HE_Z-—Ff+_At+hB(=ZE—HEE
BRAEND) - FTEBARIEAF AR RIERE BAF
B2 TXAE) B AAIER - WAREEKE
BFEZE BRETSTUNEES -

FrEERIRBBERERMT

Exercise Exercise  Vesting
Date of grant Vesting date period price  conditions
RHAM BEAM yid TE BEEE
HKS
BT
2015 Share Option 1 17 December 2015 31 May 2016 1June 2016 to 146 Profit afterincome tax (out before share-based

“T-RERRE ZZ-RE+t-AtHRE ZE-SERA=T-8 19December 2021

2R FA A-AZ

payment expenses) according to the audited
consolidated financial statement of the Company for

ZEC-E+ZATNA the year ended 31 December 2015:

BEARREZ-Z-TET-A=t-ALE
EREEREAVERE  BEEH (BAMRR
PRFFES) %R -

— Equal to or more than RMB35 million, 100% of
2015 Share Option 1 shall be vested;
AERASRARKS BET - BIAR
BT RERE 100% :

— Equal to or more than RMB25 million but less
than RMB35 million, 50% of 2015 Share Option
1 shall be vested; and
AERASRARK 25 BETEIRA
REBSEET AARE_Z-NER
PR 1 8950% ¢ ]

— Less than RMB25 million, no 2015 Share
Option T shall be vested.
SRARBLEER MIBERE-F
—hEBRE

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BT E (&)
Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued) HERRIBIREFBOT - (8)
Exercise Exercise  Vesting
Date of grant Vesting date period price  conditions
RiHAM FEAM e ke SEEHE
HKS
B
2015 Share Option2 17 December 2015 31 May 2017 1June 2017 to 146 Profit after income tax (but before share-based

“E-REEREl ZE-RFET-A+HBE ZZ—+ERA=T-H  19December 2021
“E2—+ERA-AZ
—2--f+-AtAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

payment expenses) according to the audited
consolidated financial statement of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016:
BEARABE_T—"Ft_A=1t-RILF
EHEERESUHRE - RAGH(ERMRAER
(A FE ) BER -

- Equal to or more than RMB6S million, 100% of
2015 Share Option 2 shall be vested;
HERASRARK S BB - BIAR

ZE-DERREN100%

— Equal to or more than RMBS0 million but less
than RMBG65 million, 50% of 2015 Share Option
2 shall be vested; and
HERLSRARK 0 BETELRA
REeBET WERE_T-L4R
TR E950% : &

— Less than RMB50 million, no 2015 Share
Option 2 shall be vested.
SRARBOEER  MBEREB-F
—HERREN-



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued)

81

BT E (&)

FrEERBAERIET ¢ ()

Exercise Exercise  Vesting
Date of grant Vesting date period price  conditions
RiHAH FEEH e TkE BEEHE
HKS
AT
2015 Share Option3 17 December 2015 31 May 2018 1June 201810 146 Profit afterincome tax (out before share-based

“T-REBREN ZZ-RE+t-AttE ZE-AERA=1+-H  19December 2021
“E-\£xA-HE

payment expenses) according to the audited
consolidated financial statement of the Company for

—E-—#+-A+AH the year ended 31 December 2017:

On 15 January 2018, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 98,000,000 shares
of the Company have been granted by the Company to the existing directors,
employees and advisors of the Group under the Share Option Scheme; 10% of
share options have an exercise period from 1 June 2018 to 14 January 2023
(“2018 Share Option 1"); 20% of share options have an exercise period from 1
June 2019 to 14 January 2023 (2018 Share Option 2"); 30% of share options have
an exercise period from 1 June 2020 to 14 January 2023 (2018 Share Option 3");
and the remaining share options have an exercise period from 1 June 2021 to 14
January 2023 (“2018 Share Option 4”).

BEANTHE-F—LHF1+= H T-HLE
FE’Ji‘%W%EW#&i BRI (1B ARI0RR AR
AR ) KA -

— Equal to or more than RMB100 million, 100%
of 2015 Share Option 3 shall be vested;
BERASRARBI0BET  MES
BT RFBRRENN100%:

— Equal to or more than RMB80 million but less
than RMB100 million, 50% of 2015 Share
Option 3 shall be vested; and
BERASRARBOEETESRA
R¥I0EEL IEBE_Z-14E
TR IE950% ]

— Less than RMB8O million, no 2015 Share
Option 3 shall be vested.
PRARKQNBEL WBERE_Z
— RN -

R-T—NE—RATHB » AAGIREEREL
SMAEBERBES - BE RBEMIRTDERE -
Al & 52 B8 2K A 7] 98,000,000 A% A% 1"°EEP10%
BRENTERA-ZE—N\FA—HBEZ

Z=F—RATIEBA(ZZE—N\FHEREI] - 20%
BRENTESRA_S—NENA—BEZ
:EE—HWLEE(f—?—)\iﬁ%%%nﬁ
0% ERENITHEHAZZE-_TFH—HZE

Eo=F—-A+mBE(TZE— )\ﬂﬁﬂxﬁénu)&
ﬁ%T%HXE@E’JTT{iﬁﬂﬁ_?_ FXRA—HZ

Zo=F—A+HHA(=ZZ )\ﬂ%ﬂx%m)

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEERE (8

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
All share options are subject to the fulfillment of relevant profit targets by the
Company, as set out below, and share options shall not be vested if any of the

profit targets is failed to be met.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

B8 (|)
FEBREAS AR TERERARB BT
XET#) %7 AR - R eEER B BAT A
12 BRETETURE -

FrE R B IE T ¢

Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price  Vesting conditions
RHAH BEEH yid TEE BEEHK
HKS
AT
2018 Share Option 115 January 2018 31 May 2018 1June 2018to 0842 Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment expenses)

“E-\EERE —E-\F-A+ER “Z-NERAZT-B 14Januay 203

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

“E-\Exf-BE
—“Z--%—F+NHE

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

according to the audited consolidated financial statement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017:
BEAATBE Tt 1A=t B LERHEEYS
ARBRE - RAGH (ERNBRRONFER) &N :

— Equal to or more than RMB100 million, 100% of 2018 Share
Option 1 shall be vested;
RERIERARBI0EET  BIESB-S -1\
ERIRIEI#)100% :

— Equal to or more than RMBBO million but less than RMB100
million, 50% of 2018 Share Option 1 shall be vested; and
BERISIARK BETESRARKI0EE
T AERE T \EBREIN 0% &

— Less than RMB80 million, no 2018 Share Option 1 shall be
vested.

SRARK BB AIBERR_T-/\FRERE -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued)

BT E (&)

FrEERBAERIET ¢ ()

Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price  Vesting conditions
RHEH BREH s e HEKE
HKS
BT
2018 Share Option2 15 January 2018 31 May 2019 1June2019to 0842 Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment expenses)
“E-\ERREl —Z-NE-ATER ZE-AFEAST-H 14Januay 203 according to the audited consolidated financial statement of the
ZZ-NERA-RZE Company for the year ended 31 December 2018;
“ZC=§-ATMA BEARFEZE-S-\FT-A=T-ALFENEERE

AUBRE - RAER (ERNRRAAHER) KR :

— Equal to or more than RMB150 million, 100% of 2018 Share
Option 2 shall be vested;
BERISRARBI0EET  AERE -5 -
RN 100% :

— Equal to or more than RMB100 million but less than RMB150
million, 50% of 2018 Share Option 2 shall be vested; and
BERISIARBI0BETEIRARE 150EE
T BEGB- - \FRREIN S R

— Less than RMB100 million, no 2018 Share Option 2 shall be

vested,
PRARBI0BET  AIBERB_S—\FER
1Bl

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEERE (8

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BB 8 (&)
Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued) BTEHERERESEDT - (&)
Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price  Vesting conditions
RHAH GRAM L ke BEEHE
HKS
BT
2018 Share Option3 15 January 2018 31 May 2020 1June2020to 0842 Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment expenses)

“E-)\EEREN —Z-NE-A+EE “Z-EERASH-B 0 14Januay 03
“Z-Z55A-RE
- F-CE—

—<——

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

according to the audited consolidated financial statement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019:
BEARREE_T-NFT_A=T-HILFENEENE
AMBEE - BAGEH (ERIRRA AR REN -

- Equal to or more than RMB200 million, 100% of 2018 Share
Option 3 shall be vested;
BERFSRARB00EEL  AESEE-Z -
EREREN #100%

— Equal to or more than RMB150 million but less than RMB200
million, 50% of 2018 Share Option 3 shall be vested; and
BERISIARE 10 BETEIRARB00EE
T AASE T \FRREN 0% R

— Less than RMB150 million, no 2018 Share Option 3 shall be

vested.
SRARES0BET  AIBERE-_5-\FER
e



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued)

BT E (&)

FrEERBAERIET ¢ ()

Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price  Vesting conditions
RHAH BRAH yid ke BEEHK
HKS
AT
2018 Share Option4 15 January 2018 31 May 2021 1June 2021 to 0842 Profit after income tax (but before share-based payment expenses)
- \EBEREYV —E2-\E-A+EE “Z--FRA=+-B  14Janvay 203 according to the audited consolidated financial statement of the
“F-EXA-B%E Company for the year ended 31 December 2020;
“ZC=§-ATMA BEARABE_Z_ZET_A=T-RILFRNEENAE

On 31 May 2016, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 22,800,000 Shares,
being 100% of 2015 Share Option 1, have been vested to the grantees of the
options. On 31 May 2017, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 19,350,000
Shares of 2015 Share Option 2 have been vested to the grantees of the options.
On 31 May 2018, options to subscribe for an aggregated of 23,200,000 Shares
and 9,800,000 Shares of 2015 Share Option 3 and 2018 Share Option 1,
respectively have been vested to the grantees of the options. On 31 May 2019
options to subscribe for an aggregated of 6,840,000 Shares of 2018 Share Option
2 have been vested to the grantees of the options. On 31 May 2020, none of
2018 Share Option 3 have been vested to the grantees of the options. On 31
May 2021, none of 2018 Share Option 4 have been vested to the grantees of the
options.

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of securities available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme pursuant to its terms was 4,660,000 Shares,
representing in aggregate approximately 0.3% of the Company’s issued share
capital.

ARBERE - BAGSH (BAMRRG ) REMN :

— Equal to or more than RMB250 million, 100% of 2018 Share
Option 4 shall be vested;
BERASRARB2S0EET  AIERE_Z—)\
EERRARAE N 0 100% :

— Equal to or more than RMB200 million but less than RMB250
million, 50% of 2018 Share Option 4 shall be vested; and
BESRISRARE 00 BRTEIRARKE 506

T BEBB- T \FRRENN0%: &

— Less than RMB200 million, no 2018 Share Option 4 shall be

vested.

DIARB0EET  IBERE-S—\FHikE

Ve
mig—/_\iﬁﬂi‘f’—ﬁ'#\—fwg%
nmmmhhﬁm%wﬁm:% FFEERR A

1000 EMBRENEARAREE RZ2F
*tﬁﬂﬂ +—B RE_Z—RFERE
& $£19,350,000 A% f% 19 & B8 RS 4 © 7) B8 A% 4 A 7
BRARB -MR-_Z— ) \GHEA=+—H " 23IR
BT RFEREILRE = — \FERE
|4 #£ 23,200,000 A% & 9,800,000 A% BX 7 &9 BB AXAE 2
MEBERENEABERARE - RZ_Z—NLEHA
=+—8  RE_Z— \FEREHEIE 2£6,840,000
R DB MBI R IR AREB - R
ToTFERA=+—H —ZT— N\FERENL
EEBTEREARA - R-_ZTE-_—FHA

=t—H #HEgE_T— ﬂi%h%w FETBE
PRAE R AT A o

R-ZE-—F+-F=+—H  RIEERETE
1&5R - HIE T A (31T 548 305 4,660,000 %
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EEgRE (H)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BREE (&)
Details of movements of the share options granted under the Share Option #HZE_-_T=-—F+-A=+—HILFE - BiEHE
Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2021 were as follows: Re T B K R BB E R B B0 T ¢
Number of share options
ERESR
Outstanding as at Granted during Exercised during Lapsedduring  Outstanding as at
Name Date of grant 1 January 2021 the year the year theyear  31December 2021
R-E=-% RZB=-f
-R-H T-A=1-H
i BHES WA ERgin iy ERXN WARTR
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. Zheng Weijing 17 December 2015 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000 -
(resigned on 26 March 2021) ZE-RETZAttH
BEREE 15 January 2018 1,020,000 - - (1,020,000 -
(RZEZ-F=A-1/B8#) —F-\5-AtaH
Mr. Zhang Gongjun 17 December 2015 8,000,000 - - (8,000,000) -
RAERE “E-RETCATHA
15 January 2018 2,400,000 - - (1,600,000) 800,000
“E-\§-AThA
Ms. Guo Chanjiao 17 December 2015 8,000,000 - - (8,000,000) -
(duties suspended on 26 March 2021)  —E—RE+-A++H
PBEaT 15 January 2018 2400000 - - (2400000) -
(RZB--4=A-+5R “Z-\§-ATEH
LRE%)
Independent non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Dr. Vincent Cheng 17 December 2015 500,000 - - (500,000) -
DEEET ZE-RETZATEA
15 January 2018 360,000 - - (240,000) 120,000
ZZ-\§-ATHA
Dr. Miao Bo 17 December 2015 500,000 - - (500,000) -
HRET “E-RETCATHA
15 January 2018 360,000 - - (240,000) 120,000
—Z-)\§-ATHRA
Sub-total
et 24540000 - - (23.500000) 1,040,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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EEERE (A

87

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BT E (&)
Number of share options
BREXE
Outstanding as at Granted during Exercised during Lapsedduring  Outstanding as at
Name Date of grant 1 January 2021 the year the year theyear  31December 2021
R-B=-F RZB--F
-A-H t=ZA=t-H
i3] RAAH WA FRRM T ERAN GBS
Employees in aggregate 17 December 2015 21,000,000 - - (21,000,000) -
EER “E-RET-ATER
15 January 2018 18120000 - - (16,060,000 2,060,000
“E-\§F-ATLA
Sub-total
et 39120000 - S (37,060,000 2060000
Advisors in aggregate 17 December 2015 6,000,000 - - (6,000,000 =
EEast “T-RETZATLA
15 January 2018 4,680,000 - - (3,120,000 1,560,000
“E2-\§-AThA
Sub-total
NGt 10,680,000 - - (19,120,000 1,560,000
Total
L5y 74,340,000 - - (69,680,000) 4,660,000

No options were cancelled during the year. Further details of the share options

are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
companies a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company and/or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior officers arising
out of corporate activities. During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this annual report, save that (i) pursuant to the service contract of
each of the executive Directors, the Company shall indemnify such Directors
against, to the extent permitted by laws, all losses, claims, compensations,
liabilities or expenses incurred as a result of such Directors performing his/her
duties and responsibilities under such contracts, including but not limited to any
legal proceedings against such Directors and except for wilful default or
negligence; and (i) pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them, their or any of their executors or administrators, shall or may incur
or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts,
except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty, no other permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of
the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Cap. 622D of the Laws of Hong
Kong)) was or is being in force for the benefit of any of the Directors (whether
made by the Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated
company (if made by the Company).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions
which are subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Structure contracts

Arrangement under the Structured Agreements

The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow of economic benefits from
Guangdong Huijin to Flying Investment Services (Shenzhen) Company Limited
(“Flying Investment”) stipulated under the Exclusivity Agreement (as defined in
the Prospectus and set out below), the Equity Pledge Agreement (as defined in
the Prospectus and set out below), the Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian
Agreement (as defined in the Prospectus and set out below), the Power of
Attorney (as defined in the Prospectus and set out below) and the Supplemental
Agreement (as defined in the Prospectus) (collectively, the “Structured
Agreements”):

Power of attorney to exercise all shareholders' right in Guangdong Huijin
Exclusive option to acquire all or part of the equity interest in Guangdong
Huijin

Flying investment as custodian to manage the entire equity interest in
Guangdong Huijin

First priority security interest over the entire equity interest in Guangdong
Huijin

Flying Investment

EERE

Management and Management and

consultation fees

EELBERE

consultation service

A
EI8 T FR RIS i

<_______.

Guangdong Huijin
ERESE

TERREBEAERS

RAFER - AEEBEIT NIRRT GEM EH
HRAIFE0EH®R FEEN AEMBIRRE
HAERTENRERER S

REEN

EXAE kg

LT EEBERRBEER W Z(EX L ARER
KRBT - BREERHZ(EELBRERR
FRTIX) - BRBREMBEREHZE (EER
BARERMENTX) ZEE (ERLBRER
RERTX) Rz (EERBRER) (5E
BIREHRD IR EERESHLBENERA
PE Bt 4% B AR 7S ORI AR AR (TEBERE ) &
Big

TEZERRNERESNENNRES
WEERES 2 KD RAERNEK

e

Q) EBRREFEAMEAEEERERESZNZE
AR 2

@ RERESZIMAZENE —ELER
R

Original

Shareholders
REER

" ____ "denotes direct legal and beneficial ownerships in the equity interestand [— | 5 RN BEE S AR ERNEARER

".--> " denotes contractual relationship.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Structure contracts (Continued)

Operation of the Structured Agreements

In accordance with the Structured Agreements, the Original Shareholders (as
defined in the Prospectus), being immediate shareholders who are interested in,
in aggregate, the entire equity interest in Guangdong Huijin, have granted an
exclusive and irrevocable option to Flying Investment or its nominee(s) to
acquire all or part of the equity interest in Guangdong Huijin held by the Original
Shareholders as permitted by the then PRC laws and regulations. The Group has
the intention to acquire Guangdong Huijin or the pawn business it is carrying on
when PRC laws and regulations allow the operation of such business by foreign
invested enterprises. When Flying Investment or its nominee(s) exercise the
option and acquire all of the equity interest in Guangdong Huijin, the Structured
Agreements will be terminated. The PRC legal adviser of the Company confirmed
that it is sufficient for all immediate shareholders of Guangdong Huijin (but not
tracing to the ultimate beneficial owners of the corporate shareholders of
Guangdong Huijin) to enter into the Structured Agreements. Subject to
compliance with the PRC laws, Flying Investment or its nominee(s) may exercise
the option mentioned above at any time and in any manner at their sole
discretion.

The Structured Agreements, taken as a whole, enable the financial results of
Guangdong Huijin and the economic benefits of its business to flow onto Flying
Investment. In addition, all the directors, general manager and senior
management staff of Guangdong Huijin (except those elected by the employee
representatives) are to be nominated by Flying Investment. Through its control
over and supervision of the directors, general manager and senior management
of Guangdong Huijin, Flying Investment is able to effectively manage the
business, financial and operating activities of Guangdong Huijin so as to obtain
benefits from its activities and to ensure due implementation of the Structured
Agreements. The Structured Agreements also enable Flying Investment to, if and
when permitted by PRC law, acquire the equity interests in Guangdong Huijin in
accordance with PRC law. The Directors are of the view that the Structured
Agreements enable the Group to be managed coherently with the power to
govern the business, financial and operating activities of Guangdong Huijin for
the benefit of the Group as a whole. Based on the Structured Agreements, taken
as a whole, the Directors consider that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership in Guangdong Huijin, our Group controls Guangdong Huijin in
substance. On this basis, the Group is regarded as a continuing entity resulting
from these Structured Agreements such that the financial position and operating
results of Guangdong Huijin are included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Structure contracts (Continued)
Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)
The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Structured Agreements:

(1)  Exclusivity Agreement
Flying Investment and Guangdong Huijin entered into the Exclusivity
Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement) on 1
August 2011, pursuant to which, among other matters:

—  Guangdong Huijin agreed to engage Flying Investment on an
exclusive basis irrevocably to provide management and
consultation services in connection with its operations, including
but not limited to assisting in formulating the company
management mode and operation plans, assisting in formulating
market development plans, providing market information and
customer source information, being appointed to conduct specific
market research and investigation, providing staff training, assisting
in establishing sales channel, providing management, financial or
other services in relation to Guangdong Huijin's operations, assisting
in locating suitable fund-raising channels for Guangdong Huijin’s
operational capital needs, assisting in provision of customer
maintenance and management and assisting in provision to the
clients of Guangdong Huijin of feasible fund-raising solutions and
procuring the implementation of such solutions;

— unless Flying Investment consents in writing in advance,
Guangdong Huijin shall not accept management and consultation
services provided by any third party;

—  the board of directors of Guangdong Huijin shall be nominated by
Flying Investment, and such board of directors shall determine the
corporate management and business development and expansion
strategy of Guangdong Huijing according to the actual
circumstances of its operations;

91

TERREEBERS (&)

RBEH (E)
Rz B ()
REHHRZ T EERIFCREMNT

(1) BZiGE
B EEERESN —T——FN\A—
BRIV BRGE(KMAEHERT) &
It ERaE

— EREZREBRTAREZESER
BREREEERHEEE RBRRY
BIEEARRBEHE AT EEER
NMEEE - BBHEMISRES
= REMSERNREFPERER -
BZERRFEMSMERAE - 1=
HBEEI - BBV HERE 1R
HEFERESLENEE - Mgk
H A0 ARTS - 19 B RS B AN SR PE 2 48
LESHLNEBERERE  HEIE
HEFPHELREBI BB MERESD
MEPRHAIITHESE BRI R NRE

EEREZFRRTE

— KRFEBMREFLHAZERE &
AERES T SRMEMNE=T71R=MH
BB IR R R R AR TS

— ERESZMNEZSAHEBRER
% REZTQARBEERESEEN
ERBABELRER  XBERK
IR

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK



92

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Structure contracts (Continued)
Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)
(1)  Exclusivity Agreement (Continued)

—  Flying Investment shall be solely responsible for selection of
Guangdong Huijin's senior management and employees, its finance,
management and daily operations, and Guangdong Huijin shall
comply with all directions and opinions from Flying Investment; and

—  Guangdong Huijin shall pay to Flying Investment on a monthly
basis (or other methods agreed by both parties), management and
consultation fees equivalent to the total revenue less all the related
costs, expenses and taxes payable by Guangdong Huijin. Flying
Investment shall be entitled to appoint its employees or external
auditors to inspect the financial conditions of Guangdong Huijin to
audit the exact amount of the management and consultation fees.

The Exclusivity Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) commenced from 1 August 2011 and will expire on the date
on which all the equity interests in Guangdong Huijin are transferred to
Flying Investment or its nominee(s) and such transfers are registered.

(2) Equity Pledge Agreement
Flying Investment, Guangdong Huijin and the Original Shareholders
entered into the Equity Pledge Agreement (as supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement) on 1 August 2011, pursuant to which, among
other matters:

—  the Original Shareholders agreed to grant to Flying Investment a
first priority security interest over all their respective direct equity
interest in Guangdong Huijin and all related rights and revenue for
guaranteeing the performance of obligations of the Original
Shareholders and Guangdong Huijin under the Exclusivity
Agreement and the Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian
Agreement, such obligations include, among others, payment of
management and consultation fees for the management and
consultation service, interests, compensation etc,
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Structure contracts (Continued)
Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)
(2) Equity Pledge Agreement (Continued)

— during the term of the pledge, Flying Investment shall be entitled to
all dividends or distribution in any other forms derived from the
pledged equity interests and to exercise its right to deal with the
pledged equity interest in a manner permitted by the relevant PRC
laws if Guangdong Huijin and/or the Original Shareholders cannot
fully perform their respective obligations under the Exclusivity
Agreement and/or the Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian
Agreement; and

— during the term of the Equity Pledge Agreement, the Original
Shareholders shall not transfer, create or permit the existence of
other security interest over the pledged equity interests in
Guangdong Huijin without prior written consent of Flying
Investment.

The Equity Pledge Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) is effective from the date on which it has been executed by
the parties thereto while the pledge created thereunder shall become
effective upon such pledge having been duly registered in Guangdong
Huijin's register of members and having been duly registered with the
relevant Administration for Industry and Commerce of the PRC, and it will
remain effective until the termination of either the Exclusivity Agreement
(as supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement) or the Exclusive
Option and Equity Custodian Agreement (as supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement), whichever is later. The pledges under the
Equity Pledge Agreement were duly registered on 5 August 2011 with A
B LA 1T B E E B (Heyuan Administration for Industry and
Commerce Bureau).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Structure contracts (Continued)

Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)

(3) Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian Agreement
Flying Investment, Guangdong Huijin and the Original Shareholders
entered into the Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian Agreement (as
supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement) on 1 August 2011,
pursuant to which, among other matters:

—  the Original Shareholders granted, at nil consideration, an exclusive
and irrevocable option to Flying Investment or its nominee(s) to
acquire all or part of the equity interest in Guangdong Huijin held
by the Original Shareholders as permitted by the then PRC laws and
regulations during the term of the Exclusive Option and Equity
Custodian Agreement at nil consideration or the minimum amount
as permitted by the applicable PRC laws. The Original Shareholders
further covenant that if such minimum amount is required to be
paid by Flying Investment or its nominee(s) to the Original
Shareholders as consideration for the acquisition of the equity
interest of Guangdong Huijin, such amount would be waived by
the Original Shareholders subject to compliance with the then PRC
laws and hence there should not be any cash outflow or adverse
financial impact on our Group. If such option is exercised in full by
Flying Investment or its nominee(s), our Group will be interested in
the entire equity interest of Guangdong Huijin;

—  subject to compliance with the PRC laws, Flying Investment or its
nominee(s) may exercise the option mentioned above at any time
and in any manner at their sole discretion;

—  pending the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Guangdong
Huijin by Flying Investment or its nominee(s), the Original
Shareholders shall not, among other matters, transfer, pledge or
grant a custodian right over such equity interest in Guangdong
Huijin to any third parties without prior written consent of Flying
Investment and Guangdong Huijin;

—  the Original Shareholders, jointly and severally, irrevocably granted,
at nil consideration, a right to Flying Investment or its nominee(s) to
manage the entire equity interest in Guangdong Huijin as custodian
during the term of the Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian
Agreement;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Structure contracts (Continued)

Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)

Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian Agreement (Continued)

the Original Shareholders and Guangdong Huijin covenanted that,
among others:

(3)

(@)

Flying Investment or its nominee(s) shall exercise all
shareholders’ right of the Original Shareholders in
Guangdong Huijin, further details are set out in the paragraph
headed “Power of Attorney” below; and

Flying Investment shall have the exclusive right to nominate
directors, general manager and other senior management
staff of Guangdong Huijin, and the Original Shareholders shall
appoint such nominees as directors, general manager and
other senior management staff of Guangdong Huijin;

during the term of the Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian
Agreement, the Original Shareholders and Guangdong Huijin shall
not engage in any transactions which will materially affect the
assets, business, rights, operation or management of Guangdong
Huijin without prior consent from Flying Investment, including but
not limited to the following:

(@)

to amend the constitutional documents of Guangdong
Huijin;

to increase or reduce the registered capital of Guangdong
Huijin; and

during the term of the Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian
Agreement, the Original Shareholders and/or Guangdong
Huijin shall not transfer, mortgage, pledge or otherwise deal
with the assets of Guangdong Huijin; and

in case of liquidation or dissolution of Guangdong Huijin, Flying
Investment or its nominee(s) shall have the right to appoint a
liquidator to manage the assets of Guangdong Huijin as permitted
by the PRC laws and regulations.

The Exclusive Option and Equity Custodian Agreement (as supplemented
by the Supplemental Agreement) is effective from 1 August 2011 and will
expire on the date on which all the equity interests in Guangdong Huijin
are transferred to Flying Investment or its nominee(s) and such transfers
are registered.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Structure contracts (Continued)
Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)

(4)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Power of Attorney

Flying Investment and each of the Original Shareholders entered into the
Power of Attorney (as supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement) on
1 August 2011, pursuant to which, among other matters, Flying
Investment or its nominee(s), including its directors (and their successors)
were authorised by each of the Original Shareholders to exercise their
respective shareholders' right in Guangdong Huijin including the rights to
elect and change the directors and supervisors who are not elected by the
employee representatives, the rights to decide the increase or reduction
of the registered capital and the rights to receive or decline the dividends
or other distribution on behalf of the Original Shareholders.

The Power of Attorney (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) is effective from 1 August 2011 and will expire on the date on
which all the equity interests in Guangdong Huijin are transferred to Flying
Investment or its nominee(s) and such transfers are registered.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Flying Investment was not
entitled to any management and consultation fees (2020: nil) from
Guangdong Huijin in a manner as prescribed in the Exclusivity Agreement
(as supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement) on 1 August 2011.
The management and consultation fees are equivalent to the total
revenue less all the related costs, expenses and taxes payable by
Guangdong Huijin as extracted from the audited financial statements of
Guangdong Huijin for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“Audited
Financial Statements of Huijin"). According to the Audited Financial
Statements of Huijin, no dividend or other distribution had been made for
the year ended 31 December 2021 by Guangdong Huijin.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

TERREBEBERS (&)

RBEH (HE)
Rt R B ()

(4)

REE
EHRERTRRRR - T——F\A—
BRI EEE (KR hsfms) @ it (B
PR ERERREEBREXERS
ANBREES(REFHOMEAAN)ITER
FXEENERESHRREN  BEAXR
FRREZLEFEENERGHEERR
B R TE I DN K AR RE AR AR K W ER 3k
BB E A D AL RRER -

BiEE (KRxpzmr) B —T——FN
A—BREN  XHRERESHMARK
AEDEREEBREIERBARLZE
BRESTERAREM -

BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+t—HILFE
EEREEERN _E——F )\A—BHW
BRas (KHahaas) e 8
BRES KRBT MEEMERE(ZE =%
o) o BN EEEEER AU AR
BREBEA  AXRERESIZNHRIE
(g2 - —Ft+-A=+—H1t
FTEERRESNLECERMBRE((ES2
BEZMBEHRE]) - BIBES 2 KT ZH
BHwE ERESRBZE_ZT-_—F+=
A=+—HIFEWHEREERRENKE
HEAMDIK



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Structure contracts (Continued)
Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)

(4)

Power of Attorney (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Structured
Agreements and confirmed that: (i) the transactions carried out during the
year ended 31 December 2021 have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structured Agreements, have been operated
so that any revenue generated by Guangdong Huijin would have been
substantially retained by Flying Investment; (ii) no dividends or other
distributions have been made by Guangdong Huijin to the holders of its
equity interests which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to the Group; (iii) the Structured Agreements, any new
contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced between the Group and
Guangdong Huijin during the year ended 31 December 2021 are fair and
reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Group is concerned and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole; (iv) the Structured Agreements
have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; and (v) the Structured Agreements have been entered into on
normal commercial terms or better.

The Company'’s auditors has carried out procedures on the management
fee charged for the year pursuant to the Structured Agreements and
reported its conclusion to the Board, confirming that the transactions have
received the approval of the Directors, have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant Structured Agreements and that no
dividends or other distributions have been made by Guangdong Huijin to
the registered shareholders of Guangdong Huijin which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned/transferred to the Group. The Board confirmed
that the Company’s auditors have confirmed that none of the matters set
out in Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules has come to the auditors’
attention.

For the purposes of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, and in particular
the definition of “Connected Person”, Guangdong Huijin has been treated
as the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, but at the same time, the
directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders of Guangdong
Huijin and their respective associates have been treated as the Company’s
“Connected Persons” and transactions between these Connected Persons
and the Group other than those under the Structured Agreements shall
comply with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExeRS (A)

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Structure contracts (Continued)

Operation of the Structured Agreements (Continued)

(4) Power of Attorney (Continued)
Guangdong Huijin and each of the Original Shareholders have undertaken
that, for so long as the Shares are listed on GEM, Guangdong Huijin and
each of the Original Shareholders will provide the Group’s management
and the Company’s auditors with full access to its relevant records for the
purpose of the Company'’s auditors’ review of the connected transactions.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the financial year ended 31
December 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save for the transactions disclosed under “Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions”, details of the material related party transactions entered into by
the Group are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements which
do not constitute notifiable or connected transactions under the GEM Listing
Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements (if any) in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 20 December 2011. The
role, function and composition of the Audit Committee are set out in the
paragraph headed “"Audit Committee” of the Corporate Governance Report of
this annual report.

The Group's consolidated results and the results announcement for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
Board is of opinion that the preparation of such financial information complied
with the applicable accounting standards, the requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules and any other applicable legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (A)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirm that the Company maintained the amount of public float as
required under GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited resigned as auditors of the Company with effect from 23 December
2021 and Elite Partners CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 24 December 2021 to fill the vacancy following BDO
Limited's resignation. An nomination proposal will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Elite
Partners CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhang Gongjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS- HERERBHRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

We are pleased to present this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide ("ESG Guide”), as set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
information stated in this report covers the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 (the “reporting period”) which aligns with the financial year as
the 2021 annual report of the Group.

CORE BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

In the period under review, the Group’s main activities are investment in
property development projects, operation of financial services platform,
provision of entrusted loan, pawn loan and other loan services, financial
consultation services, and finance lease in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”
or “China”).

ESG APPROACH

This Report demonstrates Flying Financial Service Holdings Ltd.'s (hereinafter
referred to as “Flying Financial’, the “Company”) and its subsidiaries’ (the “Group”)
policy, approach and performance in terms of sustainable development for the
financial year ended on 31 December 2021.

The scope of this ESG report mainly includes the data and activities of the Hong
Kong and Shenzhen offices which are the major operating locations of the
Group.

In view of the nature of the business of the Group, the Group does not pose
significant environmental risks in its operation as compared to other engineering
or manufacturing focused companies. As such, the scope of this report focuses
mainly on the Group’s management approach in the areas of labour practices,
employee benefits, supply chain management, product responsibility, anti-
corruption and anti-money laundering activity and community investment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

R ERERERE (&)

STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

The Board of Flying Financial believes that the establishment of the ESG
management system can continuously promote the sustainable development of
the Company. As the decision-making body for sustainable development, the
Board of the Company is fully responsible for the Company’s sustainable
development strategies, and based on which conducts overall planning for the
Company's ESG management, including but not limited to providing guidance
on ESG working guidelines regularly.

The Group has appointed the management to oversee the Group’s ESG-related
issues and works, and identify and prevent major ESG risks in daily operations
through the ESG risk management, mainly comprising risks related to
environmental protection, safety and business operation. These risks are
periodically reviewed and reported to the Board.

The management of the Group have also been appointed to develop the
sustainable development policies and measures, and review the process of
implementation periodically. The communication with the stakeholders will be
strengthened and the sustainable development policies will be adjusted if the
progress does not meet the expected targets or the conditions of operations are
changed.

In the future, the Board will continue to monitor and improve the Group's
measures and performance on sustainability and commit to create long-term
values for all stakeholders and the communities where the business is located.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

Our approach to stakeholder engagement is designed to ensure that our
stakeholders’ perspectives and expectations are fully understood to help define
our current and future sustainability strategies.

The Group believes that the interests of all stakeholders must be taken in
account in order to strengthen relationship with our shareholders, employees,
customers, suppliers, government authorities and the society as a whole.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiR HEREREE (&)

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
(CONTINUED)

KhEnSRREEM (F)

The Group proactively engaged with the key stakeholder groups in a variety of ~ ZNEE @B Z B A HEE 1) & B LR ESEK
ways to ensure effective communication of our objective and progress in 4% ATERAI A TR B B E N ERETT

relation to the following areas of concern. BRUE® -
Major Stakeholder Major Communication Channels Major Concerns
FERHBE FEBBERE TEREH
Shareholders and Investors Press release, Corporate Announcements and Profitability
RERRIREE Circulars AT S
MrET - ARIAERBK Financial Stability
Annual and Interim Reports BIi5ieE
FHRERFP RS Information Disclosure & Transparency
Annual General Meetings EEHBEEBHE
RERBFRE
Employees Trainings and Team Building Activities Compensation & Benefits
&8 =l R B ERIE S g kA A
Business Meetings and Briefings Career Development and Training
Bl Ak Opportunities
Performance Appraisals B RS
ERGET A Health & Safety Work Environment
ERE;ZEHTIERE
Suppliers Procurement Meetings Cooperation on Fair Terms
HpEm REER N RN
Phone Calls, Conferences, Emails, Site Visit Integrity
B 8% BTEMY BT EAE
Customers Customer Complaint Hotlines Quality Products and Services
®F BEPRFRE = B i AR TS
Meetings and Correspondences Privacy Protection
e S8R LR &

Public Community
AHUE

Government and Supervisory
Institutions

B REEHE

Charitable and Volunteering Activities
BENRERELTY
Community Interactions

HEEE

Major Meeting and Policy Consultation
E- JUIEG i

Information Disclosures

ERIE

Institutional Visits

gD A
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Corporate Social Responsibilities
TEMEEMT

Community Investment and Charitable
Activities

HEERERESES

Compliance Operation
BREE

Corporate Governance
TEER

Environmental Protection
RGRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R ERERERE (&)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT B ARG

During the reporting period, the Group conducted the materiality assessment  $REHIN » AEEBBEERE M EB A BRAZ
through internal discussion of the management and the operational staff, and 136 @ IBIEAEBRRE BELBESZER
according to various factors such as its strategies, development and goals, and 2 - #1T T EAME(E - WESXBREHEDN
graded ESG levels identified in relation to its business and stakeholders and their [R5 « & R EASRET D HER - I
respective impact levels, and listed the top 6 major ESG issues of the Group ~ IRIEE (4RI HAEE M KIRIE - HERE

based on the results of the assessment. JARERE ©
Scope Material Issues
gE EWN 7
Operation Practices Customers Service Management
REER BEFPREER
Customers Privacy Protection
BEPEMLRE
Environment GHG Emissions
RIE R E RSP
Energy and Resources Consumption
BUR KR ERHRE
Labour Practices Employment Compliance
BIEER REEGR
Remuneration and Benefit
B PSSR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

i -

A.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

HERERRE (&)

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

As far as environmental management is concerned, though businesses of
the Group in property development investment and the provision of
financial services does not pose significant environmental risks, the Group
has actively paid attention to reduce the use of natural resources in
operations, and implement environmental control measures wherever
practicable towards to minimize its impact on the environment.

Emissions

In order to seek long-term sustainability of the environment, the Group is
prudent in controlling its emissions, and complies with relevant
environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong and China during its
daily operations.

Given the nature of the business of the Group, the largest contributor of
the Group’s carbon footprint is the Indirect Greenhouse Gas ("GHG")
emissions. The Group's GHG emissions are mainly due to electricity
consumption during the operation at the workplace and the consumption
of fuel for transportation by employees.

In order to achieve energy conservation and reduce GHG emissions, the
Group has established the “Energy Conservation Management Policy” and
adopted a number of energy conservation measures to ensure the most
efficient use of electricity, reduce emission of GHG and demonstrate our
determination to protect our environment, including but not limited to
the below:

Choose energy-efficient appliances and opt for low wattage lights;
Maximise the use of natural light and limit the use of artificial
lighting to the dark areas in the workplace that are out of the sun’s

reach;

Advise employees to put their computers in hibernation mode and
turn off all other office equipment when not in use;

Switch off air conditioning systems and lighting after office hours;
Keeping all the doors and windows closed when the air conditioners
are running; and

Teleconference and internet-meeting practices are also encouraged
to avoid unnecessary business travel.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R ERERERE (&)

A.1

A.2

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group will continue to improve the efficiency of resource utilization
and gradually establish the quantitative targets for future electricity
consumption based on the use of resource in the current year.

As far as waste management is concerned, due to our business nature, no
significant hazardous waste was generated from our operations during
the year under review.

Due to the nature of the operation of the Group, the non-hazardous waste
generated are mainly paper waste and waste generated from the daily
operating activities in the offices. The Group has implemented several
paper conservation measures to minimize the production of non-
hazardous waste, which are mentioned in section A.2 below.

During the year under review, the Group has complied with relevant laws
and regulations regarding the use of natural resources in operation and
has not received any notice of violation from government authorities.

Use of Resources

The main resources consumed by the Group are electricity, water and
paper. The water consumption of the Group is minimal while electricity is
consumed during daily business operations in our offices through the use
of indoor lighting, air-conditioning, functioning of office equipment,
function of equipment related to repair and maintenance etc. As
mentioned in section A.1, the Group has established energy conservation
procedures to help reduce the use of resources.
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A.1

A.2
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR HEREREE (&)

A. ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

A.2 Use of Resources (Continued)
In order to enhance environment protection, the Group has also followed
a number of energy saving and efficiency measures stipulated in the
“Energy Conservation Management Policy” to promote paperless office
and minimize the use of water, including but not limited to the below:

Water Conservation Measures:

Cultivate the concept of saving for employees;

Look for water leaks in fittings and use a water meter or flow

restrictor where possible;

Report leaking taps, toilets and showers;

Install rainwater tanks and water-saving devices where possible; and

Consider re-using or recycling water where possible.

Paper Conservation Measures:

Use printers that can print on both sides of the paper; try to look
into this option when replacing old printers;

Recycled paper is used for intra-group informal documents and

draft papers;

Send electronic greetings over email or other forms of electronic
applications, such as WhatsApp or WeChat, rather than faxing or

writing; and

Engage third parties for collection and handling of waste paper.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R - g RERHRE (H)

A3

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

Environment and natural resources

This aspect is not applicable to the Group’s operations, as the Group's
environmental impact and use of natural resources is minimal.

2021 Key Performance Indicators

A‘

A3

RERE (&)

RERBRER
MRAREZBEVERERNERE
BT RE  HWBETERRAEEZ ¥
e

—EC-FHREANER

These tables present a quantitative overview of our 2021 Environmental TRV B FREGEIXRBENTES
aspect performance. e o
Percentage
Increase (+) or
A.1.Emission — GHG Units 2020 2021 Decrease (-)
#hn(+) =k
ALBH—RERE B TE-TF —EZ-F EL GBI
Total GHG emission tonnes 7297 26.35 -63.89%
RERBAYNE e
Total GHG emission per floor area tonnes/m? 0.03 0.01 -63.89%
B OREEEERERBAYNE a5 K
GHG emission for air travel per number of air travel ~ tonnes/no. of air 0.17 0.00 -100.00%
travel
BRMZERITHIREREHHE 18, fif 22 2 Hi
IR
Indirect emission
I HER
Electricity tonnes 64.09 22.19 -65.37%
E Wi 158
Air travel tonnes 3.98 0.00 -100.00%
fnzE Z Ik 7]
Paper consumption tonnes 4.90 4.16 -15.18%
JEES 145
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiR HEREREE (&)

A. ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

A.3 Environment and natural resources (Continued)

2021 Key Performance Indicators (Continued)

A. RERE(E)

A3 RENRBAER(E

—EC-FHRANERE ()

Percentage
Increase (+) or

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

A.2. Use of resources Units 2020 2021 Decrease (-)
#in(+) =%

A2 EREA B —EEF —B2--F RELESH

Total energy consumption kWh 73,160.00 38,189.00 —-47.80%

R EEESE TR

Total energy consumption per floor area kWh/m? 33.39 17.43 -47.80%

B AOREHEEERRERERE TREFHAK

Total paper consumption kilograms 996.00 842.00 -15.46%

A E TR

Total paper consumption per floor area kilograms/m? 047 0.40 -14.89%

BYHREEEERRES Fr/FHAK

Total water consumption Gallons 493.00 284.00 -42.38%

BKEE e

Total water consumption per floor area Gallons/m? 0.25 0.14 -42.38%

Y AEEEERAKEE s,/ H K

Notes to KPls: BB RURIEI AT

1. The above KPIs are calculated based on the Hong Kong and Shenzhen offices’ data T BARERUERAREEN E Bt —

which are the key operation sites of the Group. Emission factors were made reference
to Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set out by

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, unless stated otherwise.

2. The indirect greenhouse gas, carbon dioxide is calculated based on Hong Kong and
Shenzhen offices’ electricity usage and business travel. Figures are calculated based on
the offices’ electricity usage, the flying distance and frequency of business travels of all
staff in Hong Kong and Shenzhen offices. There was no air business travel throughout

the reporting period due to the lockdown of the countries and cities.

3. Water usage of Hong Kong office is not included as the water supply is shared with

other tenants in the building.

4. Emission factor of 0.61kg CO,e/kWh was used for purchased electricity in the PRC.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R ERERERE (&)

A.

A3

A4

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION (CONTINUED)

Environment and natural resources (Continued)

During the year, the GHG emissions were 26.35 tonnes with an intensity of
0.01 per square foot. This figure represents a reduction of approximately
46.62 tonnes, or 63.89%, compared to the total GHG emissions in 2020.
The Group will continue to assess and record its greenhouse gas emissions
and other environmental data annually and compare it with last year's
data to assist the Group in further developing emission reduction targets
in the future.

Climate Change
In view of the nature of the business of the Group, the Group does not
have any significant impacts on or by the climate-related issues.

A.

A3

A4
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiR HEREREE (&)

B.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

SOCIAL COMMITMENT

Employees are the most valuable asset to the Group. The Group provides
employees with competitive remuneration, benefits and development
opportunities to encourage them to reach their full potential. The Group
complies with the relevant laws and regulations on labour issues to
protect the rights of employees and to establish mutual relationship with
them.

Employment and Labour Practices

As demonstrated in our Policy, the Group is committed to providing a
workplace free from any form of discrimination and harassment and
provides opportunities to employees with different backgrounds and
characteristics so as to build a diversified workforce.

Any form of discrimination against our potential or current employees on
the ground of nationality, age, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity,
ethnicity, disability, pregnancy, political inclination is strongly prohibited.
The Group also forbid unlawful harassment, harassment and victimisation
of any type at workplace.

The Group has formulated “Staff Handbook”, “Human Resource Policy” and
“Compensation and Benefits Management Policy” as guidelines for
employment, termination, business conduct, social security funds,
compensation, employee benefits, leave benefits, working hours/overtime
and performance benefits to ensure all the process complies with the
Labour Law of the PRC and the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R ERERERE (&)

B. SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED) B. #EHIE (&)
B.1 Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) B1 ERERZEIER (&)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 30 employees. Below R-E-_—F+-_A=+—8 A£ER
figures are the detail composition of the Group's workforce. HEWNWREIL - U THFAAEEES K
REYFFARRERK ©
Total Workforce by Employment Type Total Workforce by Gender
RRERNE S NELE S RMRIE 2 NEEE D

<

W Full-time 28  m Part-time 3&H% W Male B W Female &1k
Total Workforce by Age Group Total Workforce by Region
RERAREISNELE D Rt B &I D BB E S

5" %

51 or above i
21-30 mW31-40 W41-50 Mgyl | mPRC B m Hong Kong &8
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiR HEREREE (&)

B. SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED) B. #&EE (H)
B.1 Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) B1 ERERZIER (&)
During the reporting period, 57 employees left the Group, representing an EREHRN s7RETHRAEE BER
overall turnover rate of 95%. Below figures are the detail composition of KERBS% e UTHFTAREEE TRK
the Group’s employee turnover rate: KE)FFABK o
Employee Turnover Rate by Employment Type Employee Turnover Rate by Gender
RAEEHETNEIRER RUERESTHETIRER

B Full-time 284 mMale 1% mFemale ZlE
Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group Employee Turnover Rate by Region
RFERERSINETRRE REBEEIMNETREAR

o :

m21-30 m31-40 m41-50 mPRC FEl  mHong Kong &8
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R ERERERE (&)

B.1

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

The Group provides a wide range of incentives, including competitive
remuneration and benefits packages, which are based on individual
performances and qualifications of employees and benchmarked against
our industry peers on an annual basis. Benefits to full-time employees
include social insurance (endowment insurance, medical insurance, work-
related injury insurance, unemployment insurance, childbirth insurance),
housing provident fund and annual leave benefits. In addition, the Group
also provides additional supplementary benefits to employees, including
but not limited to the below:

1. Festive occasion benefit (monetary benefits for all statutory holiday,
birthday, marriage, childbirth);

2. Medical care benefits (employees who have worked for the
company for more than a year are entitled to have a free annual
body check package and certain monetary benefits);

3. Incentive bonus (incentive activities are organized regularly to
praise well performed employees); and

4. Other benefits (training, compassionate leave and allowance).

The Group distributed year-end bonus to employees based on individual
performance in recognition of their contributions.

During the Year, the Group implemented different measures to reduce
employee turnover rate, such as strengthening recruitment controls, so
that applicants can fully understand the working environment and control
of the Group. The Group also strengthen the staff trainings system to meet
the career development requirement of employees at all levels; focus on
the work pressure of employees, expand the development prospects of
the group so that competitive career platform can be provided to the
employees.

During the year under review, the Group did not involve in any cases of
illegality related to employment during the year.

HEEE (&)

B.1 EEREIER (&)

FEEERNEEBAARERERE  BF2
ZRZFKT  RESRHEEBREF IO
MBEMNFEERZHBER - 2RIESN
RABET SRR (BZRE - BERR
ITERRE  KERRE  £5RR)  EEAQ
BeRFREM - N AEBTRESR
REBINEREN  BRETERNATH
18

1. EREMN(AMEEERS  £8 -
1R EERMBASREMN)

2. BEENVARBEER —F8E
EZA2BEFERBRIETHRER
)

3. HBEA(CEERAREBUARY
REMHERR) &

4. HAbEA (GFH - MR SREE) o

AEBERNE B EARRBERFLIELLIA
REPTIERR

FA- AEERRESEERESEE RS
EMMRBIEEE  AERFEETS
AR A B TIERE M BN - N&
Bk EB THIGE  HEEREED
BEBER® R BMIERENTIEES &
AAEENERAS KM AEERER
BREONBEFS -

REBEFE  AEBETERFARBALE
BAEBNTAEETS -

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK

113



114

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiR HEREREE (&)

B.2

B.3

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Health and Safety
The Group concerns about the health and safety of its employees and is
committed to reduce the occurrence of dangerous accidents.

The Group has established “Employee Code of Conduct” and
"Occupational Safety Policy”, requiring all employees to strictly abide by all
safety rules and regulations during their work in the office. In addition, the
Group provides employees with comprehensive set of insurance,
including both medical and non-medial insurances as well as child
benefits.

During the year under review, the Group did not notice any violations of
Hong Kong health and safety laws and regulations.

Development and Training

The development of employee professional skills is one of the Group's
priorities. The Group has established the “Training Management Policy” to
ensure all employees receive an adequate level of training. Different levels
of internal trainings are provided to employees to enhance their
professional skills.

New hires are provided with orientation programmes to be familiarized
with the culture and structure of the Group and relevant department(s).
For front-line employees, technical trainings are provided with the aims to
achieve operational excellence and to enrich the employees’ knowledge
in relation to the businesses and services of the Group. Our annual training
plan requires each employee to attend at least 12 hours of training every
year.

Specifically, for mid to high level officers, the Group has cooperated with
an external consulting firm in the year and launched the Future Leader
Training Program to organise training course to help participants to
develop leadership and decision-making skills through multiple learning
channels and integrated learning models. The Group also provides
trainings to employees based on departmental or functional needs. For
instance, employees from the finance team are provided training in
corporate governance and new accounting standards.

The Group evaluates the training objectives, training arrangements,
training content according to the business needs each year and make
changes when necessary. The results of the training and the performance
of each individual will also be assessed annually to ensure that all
employees benefit from the training.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B

B.4

B.5

CHERERRS (A)

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Labour Standards

In line with the local employment laws and relevant provisions of the
International Labour Organisation, the Group prohibits the employment
of child labour or any other form of forced and illegal labour.

According to the recruitment procedure, the Group requires all candidates
to provide identification documents to determine if their age meets the
legal age requirements. The Group strictly abides by the relevant labour
regulations in China and Hong Kong regarding working hours and
holidays to ensure the physical and mental health of all employees.

Employees are not encouraged to work beyond working hours. Overtime
hours, if necessary, must not exceed legal time and overtime pay will be
paid in accordance with the relevant standards.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
employment and labour practices, or occupational health and safety.

Supply Chain Management

Due to the nature of the business, the Group has only a handful of
suppliers and does not have high reliance on its suppliers. The Group has
selected a list of suppliers for office and computer equipment, stationary
and promotion activities gifts. With a comprehensive “Purchasing Policy”,
the Group is able to select and evaluate suppliers or service providers
based on their reputation and performance records to ensure that the
goods or services purchased are in compliance with national standards.

In relation to the risk management of the financial service platform, the
Group's responsible team screens and monitors the lenders and borrowers
who use the platform. It also performs Know-Your Customer (“KYC")
procedure to access the background and sources of fund of both lenders
and borrowers, ensuring the best match between the lenders and
borrowers. During the reporting period, the platform did not experience
any delinquency, attributed to constant risk management screening,
monitoring and the maintenance of high quality and reliable users within
the platform.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RiR HEREREE (&)

B.6

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Product Responsibility

Investment in Property Development Projects

The Group provides tailor-made financial services to customers of real
estate developers and has entered into strategic partnerships with a
number of well-known real estate developers.

The Group recognizes the importance working with its business partners,
especially real estate developers who have a significant impact to the
society. Before deciding to work with the potential business partners, the
Group has taken rigorous procedures to assess their reputation and ethics.

The Group is committed to working with environmentally conscious
companies; and make efforts to reduce energy use, waste and pollution.
The Group seeks socially responsible companies that work with high-
quality suppliers who have high ethical standards, are able to exceed
customers’ expectation, interact with the government and regulators with
integrity, make sound operational decisions to maximise positive impacts
while minimising negative impacts on community. The Group evaluates
these companies and focuses on their transparency and accountability,
corporate governance and their performance in environmental, social and
workers' rights.

Financial Consultation Services

The Group provides customers with convenient and quick access to short-
term finance as well as financial consultation services to meet the
customer’s financial needs. We have put in place specific procedures in
ensuring the quality of the services and products provided. The financial
services or products provided to customers are tailored to their financial
background, trading experience and risk tolerant level after performing
the KYC procedures and assessment. The Group is committed to provide
clear information to customers including product details, terms and
conditions (such as loan repayment period, administration fee, interest
rate, etc.) and any associated risks are communicated to enable customers
to make an informed decision. Moreover, the Group has set standards for
advertising and sales literature which require information contained in all
advertising and sales literature to be true and prohibit the use of false,
misleading or inaccurate statements in any form of our communication.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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B.6

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Financial Consultation Services (Continued)

For financial consultation services to trust companies, the Group
introduces borrowers with substantial assets (including listed and unlisted
shares) to trust companies for setting up their trust funds. In addition to
introducing borrowers to the trust companies, the Group also perform
due diligence on borrowers by conducting feasibility studies on the
background and the financial condition for the trust companies. The
Group also devises financing plans for the borrowers, including the cost,
duration and size of the proposed trust fund. The Group also liaises with
banks regarding the sale of the trust funds after agreements are signed
between the trust companies and the borrowers.

Protection of Customer’s Data

The Group handles a large amount of personal data and credit information
of its customers and regards the maintenance of customer privacy as an
important area for maintaining good corporate governance. To protect
the confidentiality of customer data, the Group has implemented rigorous
policy and procedures ensure a high degree of alertness among staff
members in protecting customer data.

The Group has established “Customer’s Data Confidential Policy” as a
guideline of handing customer’s data. As specified in the “Staff Hand
Book”, the Group's employees are required to sign a “Confidentiality
Agreement” acknowledging their rights and obligations under data
protection and to provide employees with an understanding of
confidentiality and clear guidelines regarding handling of confidential
information.

In addition, access to confidential information or documents is restricted
and granted on a need-to-know basis. During the reporting period, the
Group did not receive any complaints from customers regarding the
confidentiality of personal information.
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B.6

B.7

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Handling of Complaints

The Group has established policies and procedures for the handling
complaints. The Group's Customer Service Department is responsible for
reviewing all complaints, collecting evidence and providing advice and
comments on general complaints.

Specific or complex complaints will the forwarded to the responsible
person of the relevant department for special treatment. The Group
provides an initial response upon the receipt of all complaints and the
follow up accordingly.

During the reporting period, the Group has not been notified of any
violation of law regarding product or services responsibility.

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering
The Group stands against any form of bribery, extortion, fraud, and has a
zero-tolerance policy towards misconduct.

To achieve this, the Group has established the “Anti-Fraud Management
Policy”, “Anti-Money Laundering Internal Control Policy” and “Whistle-
blowing Policy” in accordance with the relevant regulatory laws and
standards to promote anti-fraud principles and consistent organisational
behaviours by providing guidelines and assigning responsibility for the
development of controls and conduct of investigations.

The Group's risk management department also gathers information on
our existing customer’s use of proceeds, the source of funding for
repayment, the operating condition of our customers, from time to time
in obtaining their updated status and promptly reports any abnormal
situation for the purpose of risk management.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R ERERERE (&)

B.7

B.8

SOCIAL COMMITMENT (CONTINUED)

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering
(Continued)

A whistle blowing channel has been in place for our employees to raise
any concerns in good faith if they have their concerns and address in
proper manner without any fear of receiving any negative impacts.
Employees are also required to sign a statement of acknowledgement and
agreement to their obligation and responsibility regarding to anti-
corruption and anti-money laundering policies to ensure that all staff have
been notified that no bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering would
be tolerated. The Group encourages the reporting of suspected business
irregularities and provides clear channels specifically for this purpose. The
Company is committed to creating a corporate culture of integrity and
justice by accepting internal complaints and whistleblowing. All
employees may directly contact the Human Resources Department and
the senior management in charge of such matters for lodging a complaint
or whistleblowing. The current whistleblowing procedures of the
Company include direct mails to the senior management of the Company
for reporting any misconduct or dishonest activities such as suspected
corruption, fraud and other forms of crime. The Group is committed to
adhering to the highest integrity and ethical standards.

The Group did not involve in any cases of violations related to corruption
in this year, nor was involved in ant corruption litigation cases related to
the Group and the employees.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to exert available resources to support our
community and encourage our employees to participate in various
charitable and voluntary activities.

The Group will continue to uphold the principle of being responsible for
its shareholders and investors, employees, suppliers, customers, public
community and will seek further development opportunities to maintain a
harmonious relationship with its stakeholders.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEAMRE

elite
’ partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FLYING FINANCIAL SERVICE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Flying
Financial Services Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 125 to 258, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

(@) Material uncertainties relating to going concern

(M) As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities and
net liabilities of approximately RMB75,623,000 and RMB4,384,000,
respectively, and incurred a loss in financial performance of
approximately RMB265,604,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021. These conditions indicate a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS (&)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

(a)

Material uncertainties relating to going concern (Continued)

(i)  On 6 May 2022, the Company received a letter from the Stock
Exchange relating to its decision to cancel the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange under Rule 9.14A of the
GEM Listing Rules as the Company failed to satisfy all the
Resumption Guidance by 28 March 2022 (the “Delisting Decision”).
On 17 May 2022, the Company submitted an application requesting
the Delisting Decision to be reviewed under Chapter 4 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The review hearing is scheduled to be held on 3
August 2022; hence the outcome of the review hearing is uncertain
as at the date of this report.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the
outcome of the measures as set out in note 3(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, which are subject to uncertainties. As of the date of
our report, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence from
the management to assess the appropriateness and reasonableness for
their underlying assumptions relating to the going concern, including but
not limited to the successfulness of receiving additional financial resources
through placing of the Company’s shares with gross proceeds of
approximately HK$25,950,000, which is subject to (i) the resumption of
trading of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange; and (ii) approval
by the independent shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting.

Should the Group fail to carry out the measures as mentioned in note 3(c)
to the consolidated financial statements, it might not be able to operate
as a going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying amounts of the Group's assets to their net realisable
amounts, and to provide for any further liabilities that may arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)
(b) Opening balances and corresponding figures

The auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2020 Financial Statements”)
contained qualifications on the limitation of audit scope relating to (i) the
valuation of investments in limited partnerships; (i) the valuation of assets-
backed securities; (iii) PRC bank related balances, PRC loans and accounts
receivables, PRC other payables and disclosures; and (iv) material
uncertainty relating to going concern (“Qualifications”). Details of which
has been set out in the auditor’s report for 2020 Financial Statements

dated 31 March 2021.

As the 2020 Financial Statements formed the basis for the corresponding
figures presented in the current year's consolidated financial statements,
any adjustments found to be necessary in respect of the Qualifications
would have an effect on (i) the opening balances on the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021; (i) corresponding
figures in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
and (iii) the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2021;

December 2021.

(c) Scope limitation on certain bank balances in the PRC
As at 31 December 202

circularisation procedures. The Bank Balances were deposited in the PRC
licensed banks under the name of certain subsidiaries of the Group in the

PRC ("PRC Subsidiaries”).

For the purpose of our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, we arranged bank
confirmations for the Bank Balances that require the acknowledgement by
the legal representative of the PRC Subsidiaries before sending out to
those licensed banks to confirm the existence and balances of the Bank
Balances as at 31 December 2020 and 2021. However, the management of
the PRC Subsidiaries represented to us that they could not able to obtain
the personal seal of Ms. Guo Chanjiao, being the legal representative of
the PRC subsidiaries, for the acknowledgement of those bank
confirmations. Under these circumstances, there was no bank

confirmation circularisation could be performed for the Bank Balances.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

1, the Group had aggregate bank balances and
segregated client’s accounts of approximately RMB3,104,000 (“Bank
Balances”) were unable to perform appropriate bank confirmation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS (&)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

(c) Scope limitation on certain bank balances in the PRC (Continued)
Given the limitation as mentioned above, there were no alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to (i) the
existence, completeness and accuracy of the PRC Bank Accounts; and (ii)
whether any other additional transactions to be accounted for or to be
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021, including but not limited to third parties
guarantee, borrowings or pledged of the Group’s assets, if any. Any
adjustments to the Bank Balances that might have been found necessary
would have a consequential impact on the Group's consolidated financial
position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated financial performance
and the presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
HKICPA and to issue an auditor's report. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

However, because of the matters described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Yip Kai Yin with Practising Certificate number P07854.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor

8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SmEED

HftZmEW =R

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 EHE=ZT = —

E+ZA=+—HILFE

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ihE=s AR¥ET T ARETTT
Revenue W25 7 20,059 19,721
Other (expenses)/income, net Bt (X)), WAFEE 8 (47,829) 12,675
Employee benefit expenses BRERFIRXY (7,774) (25,322)
Other administrative expenses HEMITHRAX (23,235) (28,552)
Provision loss &5 18 - (16,306)
Fair value changes in financial assets at BAFEFABR (EAFE
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") FFABEDNEREE
NFEEE 37 (195,987) (362,272)
Loss allowance on financial assets SREERBERE (10,601) (89, 535)
Finance costs BTSN 9 (228) (1,184)
Loss before income tax expense Ffﬁfr SHHASRISE 10 (265,595) (490,775)
Income tax (expenses)/credit B (X)), &% 12 (9) 20,428
Loss for the year EIE EEE (265,604) (470,347)
Other comprehensive income Htt2mKA
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T~&@EHHIEEIBLENIER ¢
— Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ — 12 A EH A B2 E
at fair value through other Was (MR RFEETA
comprehensive income ("FVOCI") HEarmlE ) R
REN RN EES (54,129) 13,829
Itemn that may be reclassified subsequently to  E & AJpEEFT D LEE1BRH
profit or loss: HE
— Exchange differences on translating — BINETEIRE HIE K ERE
foreign operations (843) 965
Other comprehensive income fortheyear FEHEfME2EUW A (54,972) 14,794
Total comprehensive income for theyear FEZHUAEEE (320,576) (455,553)
Loss for the year attributable to: EEFEERE
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSIEZ SN (265,276) (468,725)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (328) (1,622)
(265,604) (470,347)
Total comprehensive income for the EBEEE2XEIBAZLE :
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZ PN (293,725) (455,972)
Non-controlling interests IEERR R 2 (26,851) 419
(320,576) (455,553)
Loss per share BREE 13
— Basic (RMB cents) — ERN(AEESD) (15.32) (27.07)
— Diluted (RMB cents) —EE (AREES) (15.32) (27.07)

SRR IERERAR

—EC-FEH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

aE MR R R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER2021 R=ZE=—F+=A=+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BT 5T AR%T AREFTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B REE 15 646 1,270
Investment properties wEMZE 16 = 47,870
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEGAEEN
TREE 17 67,172 263,159
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFESFAHEM RS
e B E 17 - 54,129
Loans and accounts receivables B R ERERK 18 3,540 5,242
71,358 371,670
Current assets REBEE
Loans and accounts receivables BB AR 18 1,616 10,055
Deposits paid, prepayments and other BES  EERER
receivables Hth fE W sIE 19 1,107 5615
Amount due from a non-controlling interest eI FEYE i M 2 FOR 20 1 1
Tax recoverable AT EI R IR 37 -
Cash and cash equivalents HehIReEHEEE 21 14,086 7,324
16,847 22,995
Current liabilities REEE
Receipts in advance, accruals and TEWFRIE - EETER &
other payables H e FRIE 22 70,884 50,651
Contract liabilities araE 23 4,555 3,712
Amount due to a shareholder FE IR R IE 20 - 11,506
Dividend payable FERTAR B 103 106
Loan from a director KE—RBRESZEX 24 2,862 -
Bank borrowings RITIEN 25 2,705 15,735
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 263 155
Current tax liabilities BEAFIE & (& 11,098 11,097
92,470 92,962
Net current liabilities REBAETFE (75,623) (69,967)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERREBAE (4,265) 301,703
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 26 119 -
119 -
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (ﬁ{ﬁ)/ﬁé}?%ﬁ (4,384) 301,703
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

e BRI R (&)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER2021 R=—ZE=—&+=-A=+—8

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ihE=s AR¥TR ARBT T
EQUITY En
Equity attributable to owners AAREBAELER
of the Company
Share capital N 27 142,004 142,004
Reserves & 30(a) (131,761) 147,475
10,243 289,479
Non-controlling interests IR E R 32 (14,627) 12,224
TOTAL EQUITY QB (4,384) 301,703
On behalf of the board of directors REXESE
Zhang Gongjun Leung Man Kit
ROME R4
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEFE
EHESBREZERERAR —EC-FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERmEER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 & &

=

Er=A=+-HIEE

Non-controlling

Attributable to owners of the Company interests Total
ARTERAEL iR %
Fairvalue Retained
through other eamings/
Share Share Merger Statutory Exchange  Shareoption  comprehensive  (accumulated
capital premium reserve eserve Teserve feserve  income reserve losses) Total
RATE
HALGRE  REER)/
e e AfEE e EnfE  BRERE YERE  (R0ER) k]
(note30(0))  (note30(c)il)  (note30(c)fil)  (mote30(c)iv)  (note30(c)v)  (note 30(c)(vil)
(Wikso0m)  (WEoom)  (HEsom)  (FEo0e) (30w (RE3o0m)
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB00 RMB000 RMB000 RMBO0O RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMBO0O
ARETR  ARBTT  ARMTR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR ARBTRT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZ5-NF
TZR=t-BER 142004 27853 116659 51199 W3 803 (9664) 196655 745451 11778 7571209
Lossforthe year EEER - - - - - - - 468,725) (468,729) (162 470,347)
Fair value gain on financal assets EATEG A
athiod EpENLE
BEMRTENS = - - - - - 11788 - 11788 201 13829
Bichange differences on transhting  EANERAER
foreign operation EfZE - - - - %5 - - - %5 - 95
Total comprehensive income EFREYEEE
for the year - - - - %5 - 11,788 (468725) (455,972) 419 455,553)
Disposal of a subsiciary HE-FHBAA - - - - - - - - - 7 b
Share options lapsed (note 28) BRAERRE (i 2s) - - - - - ) - il - - -
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-Z-%%
toAZT-RER 142004 217853 116659 51199 3697 25286 21 (269343) 269479 1224 301703
Non-controlling
Attributable to owners of the Company interests Total
ERAREAER FERER 1
Fair value
through other
Share Share Merger Statutory Exchange  Shareoption comprehensive  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  income reserve losses Total
#1%E
HARMRE
k& RipaE AitRE EERE EXfE  BREER bERE ZitEE A%
(note 30(c)(i))  (note30(c)(ii)) (note30(c)(iii)) (note30(c)iv))  (note30(c)(v)) (note 30(c)(vii))
(WEE30))  (R¥&E30(c)Gi)  (R¥&E3o(clGii))  (HFEE30(iv)  (KEE30() (i 30(clvi))
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZE=-F
—F-RE# 142,004 217,853 116,659 51,199 3,697 25,286 2,124 (269,343) 289,479 12,224 301,703
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - (265,276) (265,276) (328) (265,604)
Fair value loss on financial assets EATEALS
athvod 2ERENLE
LENNTESE - - - - - - (27,606) - (27,606) (26,523) (54,129)
Bichange diferences ontransating  1Sh £ T ER)
foreign operation EXZE - - - - (843) - - - (843) - (843)
Total comprehensive income FREENEEE
for the year - - - - (843) - (27,606) (265,276) (293,725) (26,851) (320,576)
Transfer & - - - 8 - - - 8 - - -
Share options lapsed (note 26) BRMERE (i) - - - - - (24,219) - 2,219 - - -
Waiver of amount due toashareholder - A fEfi — 4B R5E - - - - - - - 14,489 14,489 - 14,489
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZE=-F
TZAZt-R&H 142,004 217,853 116,659 51,207 2,854 1,067 (25,482) (495,919) 10,243 (14,627) (4,834)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 B ZE=—ZE——F+_A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF k=t £
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREET T
Cash flows from operating activities RELETHNRETE
Loss before income tax expense BRETSH A ATEE (265,595) (490,775)
Adjustments for: B TIIEIHRE -
Bank interest income RITFISUA (8) 29
Interest expenses B 228 1,184
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMREBITE 624 3,660
Gain on disposal of property, plantand equipment  HEWE - BE KREBTEWE - (3,138)
Written off of property, plant and equipment MEDE  BERKRE - 783
Written off of deposits paid, prepayments and WIEE &S - BRIEREMEKEIE
other receivables 2,639 1,533
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment ¥ « BE K& 3R @ RIE & - 248
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEENREBR 529 =
Fair value loss on investment properties BEWENFESR 47,870 1270
Fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL BRATESABGZNEREERTES 195,987 362,272
Loss allowance on financial assets CRIEEEERE 10,601 89,535
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNB AT - 7)
Recovery of impairment of loans and accounts W e AR RN E R M EMBR T
receivables and other receivables previously Hi B ERE
recognised - (10,118)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes & EE @ EHAINELRERE (7,125) (43,622)
(Increase)/decrease in loans and accounts receivables &/ 3% & FE U8R 18 (32 40) /54> (115) 13477
Decrease in deposits paid, prepayments BfRE « B FEREMERGIER D
and other receivables 1,404 123
Increase in receipts in advance, accruals TEUCRIE ~ EET B A K L fth JE N SRR
and other payables 10,048 19,771
Increase in contract liabilities BHRAEEM 843 1,246
Cash generated from/(used in) operations mEmE/ (R HRe 5,055 (9,005)
Income taxes paid ERAEH (8) @
Income taxes refunded BEREMER - 1,891
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities RETBRE/ (A RLFE 5,047 (7,118)
Bk SR REERERAT R -FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
mERERER (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E--F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Cash flows from investing activities REREZBNEERE
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary BIELEWBAF = @
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE BERR - (27)
Interest received BYHE 8 29
Net cash from investing activities RETBERSFE 8 =
Cash flows from financing activities REBETHNEERE
Advance from a shareholder IR = 4,436
Repayment to a shareholder B EEEE - (5676)
Advance from a director B8R 2,904 =
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERATERIE S 6,720
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITER (285) (5,345)
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities BEEEaEREHS (294) (1,725)
Interest paid BERFLE (228) (1,184)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BMETEE/ (A REFE 2,097 2,774)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBREESEEREM (RD)FE
cash equivalents 7,152 (9,892)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REMHRERESSEER
of the year 7,324 16,973
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net fERZLE - F5E (390) 243
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERANBRERESESEER 14,086 7,324
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 B ZE=—ZE——F+_A=+—HItFE

1.

GENERAL

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4
May 2011. The registered office of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Room 1309, 13/F,
Mirror Tower Centre, 61 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The Company'’s shares have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) since 7 May 2012.
Trading in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange has been suspended on 29 March 2021. As at the date of
approval of the financial statements, the trading of the Shares remains
suspended.

The Group, comprising the Company and its subsidiaries, currently
engages in investment in property development projects, operation of
financial services platform, provision of entrusted loans and other loan
services, financial consultation services and finance lease services mainly
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Company acts as an
investment holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 31.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company is Ming Cheng Investments
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI").

As stated in the Company's announcement dated 8 December 2020, Mr.
Zheng Weijing ("Mr. Zheng"), the chairman, chief executive officer and an
executive director of the Company, Ms. Guo Chanjiao ("“Ms. Guo”), an
executive director of the Company, and three employees of the Group
have been held in custody since the evening of 7 December 2020 by the
Nanshan Branch of the Shenzhen Public Security Bureau (the “Bureau”) in
the PRC pending investigation regarding certain suspected illegal
absorption of public deposits (collectively, the “Custodies”). The Custodies
are related to certain unsettled repayment of funds to the lenders (the
“Unsettled Repayment Funds”) in relation to the online financing
intermediary business conducted by a PRC subsidiary of the Company,
Shenzhen Flying Financial Internet Financial Services Corporation ("SZ
Flying Internet Financial”), the operation of which has already been ceased
in the fourth quarter of 2019.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2021

GENERAL (CONTINUED)

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 26 March 2021,
certain assets of the Group had been seized by the Bureau during the year
ended 31 December 2020, including the Group's investment properties of
carrying amount of approximately RMB47,870,000 as at 31 December 2020
(note 16), unlisted equity securities classified as financial assets at FVOCI of
carrying amount of approximately RMB54,129,000 as at 31 December 2020
(note 17) and the equity interests of the Group in certain property
development projects through limited partnerships in which the Group's
investments classified as financial assets at FVTPL of carrying amount of
approximately RMB128,838,000 as at 31 December 2020 (note 17)
(collectively, the “Seized Assets”). The Seized Assets are owned by several
PRC subsidiaries of the Company which have provided certain guarantees
(the “Guarantee Documents”) for the Unsettled Repayment Funds. As
mentioned in the same announcement, Mr. Zheng has agreed in
November 2019 with the relevant government authorities that the Seized
Assets be pledged pursuant to the Guarantee Documents as security for
the settlement of the Unsettled Repayment Funds.

The Group contacted the Bureau through its representative and advisers
and were informed that the Seized Assets were not expected to be
returned to the Group, in particular, they were considered by the authority
in the PRC to be pledged in favour of the lenders of the operation in
relation to the Offence of illegal absorption of public deposits.

In addition, the Company seals of the Group's PRC subsidiaries were taken
into custody by the Bureau. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the PRC subsidiaries would apply to the Bureau for using their company
chops as needed. After the reporting date, all of the PRC subsidiaries with
business operations had been released their company chops by the
Bureau.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

January 2021

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
has issued a number of new or amended HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4 HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform-Phase 2

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-related rent concessions

The application of the amendment to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's accounting policies.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's consolidated financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group's current intention is to apply these changes on the date
they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current*
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use'
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’
HKFRS 17 and Amendmentsto  Insurance Contracts®®
HKFRS17
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021°

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction?
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards'
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle Financial Instruments’
Annual Improvements to Illustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle HKFRS 16, Leases'
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 41, Agriculture’

1

HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or contribution of
assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

3.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and
certain financial assets, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Going concern

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred a net
loss of RMB265,604,000 and as at 31 December 2021, the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB75,623,000
while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB14,086,000
only. In addition, the Group is involved in various litigations or
claims as detailed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The aforementioned conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern such that it may not be able
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course
of business.
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(c)

Going concern (Continued)

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and performance
of the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern. Certain measures have been taken to
mitigate the liquidity issues facing the Group, including, but not
limited to, the following:

(i) The Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement to
dispose of its subsidiaries for a cash consideration of HK$15
million. The disposal of subsidiaries was completed on 29
June 2022;

(i) The Group will implement operation plans to control costs
and to generate adequate cash flows from operations.

(i) On 23 May 2022, the Company proposed to issue of
36,042,067 shares under subscription at a price of HK$0.72 for
a cash of approximately HK$25.95 million.

Despite the effort of the Group thus far, on 6 May 2022, the
Company received a letter from the Stock Exchange stating that the
GEM Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange has decided to
cancel the Company’s listing under Rule 9.14A of the GEM Listing
Rules as the Company failed to satisfy all the Resumption Guidance
by 28 March 2021 (the "Delisting Decision”). On 17 May 2022, the
Company submitted an application requesting the Delisting
Decision be referred to the listing review committee of the Stock
Exchange for review pursuant to Chapter 2B of the Listing Rules.
The review hearing is scheduled to be held on 3 August 2022.

The subscription of shares is subject to the resumption of the
trading of the Company’s shares and the outcome of the review
hearing is unknown as at the date of this announcement.
Nevertheless, the directors considered that the subscription of
shares would be successful.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Going concern (Continued)

Assuming the successful issuance of shares under subscription, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from the date of authorisation for issue of these
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether management will be able to achieve its plans and
measures as described above. Whether the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern would depend upon fulfilment of
resumption guidance which would affect the subscription of shares.

Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollar
("HKS"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB") since most of the companies comprising the
Group are operating in RMB environment and the functional
currency of most of the companies comprising the Group is RMB.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between companies of the Group
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-controlling
interests even if this results in those non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: (i) power over the investee, (ii)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (iii) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off
their cost net of expected residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Office buildings The shorter of the lease terms or
20 years
Other buildings leased for Over the lease terms
own use carried at costs
Leasehold improvements Over the leases term but not
exceeding 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3years to 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds and its
carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment
properties are measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised in
profit or loss.

Government grant

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance leases)
are required to be capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease term less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and would comprise: (i)
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by
the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liability.

The depreciation method used for right-of-use assets is the same as
that used for property, plant and equipment. Right- of-use assets in
which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term are
depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Leasing (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right of use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in
future lease payments arising from change in an index or rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the underlying
asset.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

4. ERESFEHE(H)

(f)

HE ()
HEAE
HERBIIZYIFNHEERLG B X

RORER RRERT - HRERS
FORIE A ST - BIRE AR
PRI AT « 3 R ok 5
R A BRI A R W R
Fl o

THIWIEREEF S B B S r7E H
PITLE R AR R A S A D SRR AR AR
ATEERF () B E R FORAE A U
HEEE () TIRERRFELS A HH
RS EGFENFHREN (B
IR FEBERA ) ¢ (i) A THAREHR
HREEERESSENINEE (v
BEEEENTEE(WMABASGE
BETEZEESE)  RVRILHEE
B B A 3R (i 7 A e BR AT A TT {6
EEERLEE)

REAE B HIR - ARREB TR
FFEHERE  (VBINREENARER
MEBENFE ()R REER
BRAFH BN - R(NEHHE
FREEARREMEGHREEER
AR B A R E B ORI E R
2% HH2E  BEHREEHEENK
EHREERBEENTHED -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Leasing (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the
carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments to
make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised
when the variable element of future lease payments dependent on
a rate or index is revised, except the discount rate remains
unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the
carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any
further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with
the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more additional
assets being leased for an amount commensurate with the
standalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the
modification is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other cases,
where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or one or more additional
assets being leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-
use asset being adjusted by the same amount. With the exception
to which the practical expedient for Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions applies, if the renegotiation results in a decrease in the
scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease liability
and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect
the partial or full termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then further adjusted
to ensure its carrying amount reflects the amount of the
renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term, with the
modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable on the
modification date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a accounts receivables without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Account
receivable without a significant financing component is

initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group's business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its

debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on

derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(@

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(@

(ii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at FVOCI
are measured at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods. All other equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") on loans and accounts receivables, other
receivables, deposit paid, financial asset measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured at FVOCI. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
financial consultation service income receivables, platform
services income receivables and finance lease receivables and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit- impaired
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in “FVTOCI reserve (recycling)”.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value and
financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including other payables,
contract liabilities, amount due to a shareholder, bank
borrowings, accruals, lease liabilities, corporate bond and
convertible bonds issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit
orloss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(vi) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to the
financial asset expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

(h) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to
the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period between
the payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.

() Consultancy services fee income from limited
partnership
For consultancy services from limited partnership there are 3
categories of consultancy services:

The 1st category of service is to assist investors in
concluding contracts with the property developer and
setting up the limited partnership (“LP") for investment
in property development project. Revenue is
recognised at a point in time when investor injects
capital into the LP, which represents the acceptance of
the setup of LP by the investor and the investor is
obliged to pay for the satisfied performance obligation
("PO").

The 2nd category of service is to provide general
financial advisory and support to the LP, with timely
reporting to the investor within contract period which
normally lasts for around 2 years. Revenue is recognised
over time, as the investor is simultaneously receiving
and consuming the benefits for general financial
advisory and support from the Group and the investor
is obliged to pay for the satisfied PO over time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Consultancy services fee income from limited

partnership (Continued)
The 3rd category of service is to assist the investor in
assisting the LP to withdraw the property development
project. Revenue is recognised at a point in time when
LP successfully withdrawn from the property
development project company, at which point in time
the PO is therefore satisfied and the LP is obliged to

pay.

There is no variable consideration for above consultancy
services. The Group uses the expected cost plus a margin
approach and adjusted market assessment approach to
estimate the stand-alone services price.

Investment income

Investment income is derived from returns in proportion to
the Group’s investment contribution in the LPs, after
deduction of fixed returns of premium level limited partners
and operating expenses of the LPs. The investment income is
recognised at the point of date when the dividend return is
approved by the board of the LP. The dividend income is
recognised when:

the right to receive payment of the dividend is
established;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group; and

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Platform services income
For the platform services, there are 2 categories of services:

The 1st category of the service is to match borrower’s
financing target with investor's fund. Service charge is
recognised at a point when matching is successful and
the borrower draws down the loan, which representing
the borrower accepts the service performed by the
Group. PO is satisfied at the point and the borrower is
obliged to pay for the service.

The 2nd category of service is to provide community
finance by monthly instalment plan (normally 2 years)
to the borrower. Service charge is recognised over time
when monthly instalments are repaid. The borrower
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits for
the instalment services from the Group and the
borrower is obliged to pay for the satisfied PO over
time.

There is variable consideration for above platform services.
The Group used the expected cost plus a margin approach
and adjusted market assessment approach to estimate the
stand-alone services price.

Interest income

Interest income (as the case may be, including the
administration fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate) from financing services (including pawn loan,
entrusted loan and other loan services) is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Financial lease service income

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Financial consultation service

The financial consultation service is to provide general
financial advisory to the borrower for fund raising. Revenue
will be recognised at a point in time when the Group
provided the funding proposal to the customer. The borrower
has the legal title which indicates that he has obtained
control of the proposal. Thus, the borrower has obliged to
pay for the satisfied PO.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group completes
the services under such services contracts but not yet billed
to the client due to contracted billing term, if any, or (i) the
customers retain retention money to secure the due
performance of the contracts. Any amount previously
recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to accounts
receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances received
from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

(i)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vii) Contract assets and liabilities (Continued)
However, the Group considers the impact from recognition
of contract assets is immaterial and therefore no contract
assets is recognised during the year.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when
an investment property is carried at fair value under HKAS 40
“Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties are measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

()

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”).

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined and are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Foreign currency (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group's presentation currency, have been
converted into RMB. Assets and liabilities have been translated into
RMB at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
exchange reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
exchange reserve.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related service.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plans
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme ("MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employee’s basic salaries.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of
employees’ salaries to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
employees render services during the year. The Group's
obligations under these plans are limited to the fixed
percentage contributions payable.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the options at the date of
grant is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in the employee share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to vest at the
end of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based on the number
of options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all
other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(m)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before
they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification, is also recognised in
profit or loss over the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than
employees and others providing similar services, the fair value of
goods or services received is recognised in profit or loss unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets. A corresponding
increase in equity is recognised. For cash-settled share based
payments, a liability is recognised at the fair value of the goods or
services received.

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of the following assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets);

investments in subsidiaries.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under the
HKFRSs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

(n)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the reversal
of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset or cash generating unit, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs
Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended use or sales, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing cost capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event and it is probable to result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

U]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Company’s parent.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

0) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person'’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is determined
using the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of capital are
deducted from capital (net of any related income tax benefit) to the
extend they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HE=ZZF =

4.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

—F At A=t RiFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Segmentreporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group's business components and for
their review of the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported to the
executive directors are determined following the Group’s major
operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 5. BRESGTHERMETTEES
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY ENETERIFE)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (a) FEAZEBUER VB H &
(i) Subsidiary (i) MEBAR
Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) BEAEEAEEEHEARRRKRGD
carried out by the Group to rationalise the structure of the B B 22 BT GEM L T i B4k
Group in preparation for the listing of the Company's shares AREB v REBRETHNERE
on GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Company HTEHR] ARAIKLBHEK
became the holding company of the subsidiaries comprising AEBHHWEBRARMIZERA
the Group. The contractual arrangements under the Al REEHZAEHNTHTAE
Reorganisation (“Contractual Arrangements”) enable the BB ANRE) A ERE
Company to exercise control over Guangdong Huijin Pawn SHERMDAR AR EBRE
Stock Company Limited (“Guangdong Huijin"), a joint-stock %J RARREMRAIORDE
limited company incorporated in the PRC. NCIDESE: Skl 3
The Contractual Arrangements were entered into in order for SINAKNTHERSAEEE
the Group to manage and operate the business of BrREBEERESEPHMNE
Guangdong Huijin in the PRC, under which Flying Investment %o BBEHTHE K2 AMH
Services (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Flying Investment”) is BEARIERIEERSCEI) A
exposed, has rights, to variable returns from its involvement @iﬁﬂﬂﬁ%?xﬁji;ﬂ,,\
with Guangdong Huijin. Flying Investment, one of the J& TR E & B 3 15 m A = e
subsidiaries of the Company, has the ability to affect those AP G R ER A & Bl 3R o [ERS &
returns through its power over Guangdong Huijin, and the BRBHYERESHNENY
variable returns are transferred to Flying Investment by means 2y SO %R - fya] & O I|)iFH B
of management and consultation fees payable by ERESAEMMEESNEIE
Guangdong Huijin to Flying Investment. Further details of the FERERN GBS FERK
Contractual Arrangements are set out in the paragraph & o /—\Z’JQHFE'J?E—*/FE?’%%Z
headed “Structure Agreements” in the prospectus of the RAR —E—-—FMmWA
Company dated 20 April 2012 in connection with its listing. —+H E‘J’_t i #m ) B E
IR ERE] K-
Accordingly, Guangdong Huijin is accounted for as a Hit - BaK s HERE
subsidiary as a consequence of the Contractual Agreements. ER—KMERRMA
Significant judgments have been exercised by management R EE M TERES A
in assessing and concluding Guangdong Huijin as a subsidiary REBRKE QR E1E
of the Group. BAYEHERHE -

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 5. BAESHHAHRATIRES
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY HENEERIR ()
(CONTINUED)

(b) The key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) At FrEEHEEZENEERR
In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these financial MR Z B RERBREZERIN - R
statements, other key sources of uncertainty at the end of each RIPEAREEANRBRTEE T —E
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material BHREENEENEBEEREZRATE
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within RAFABN I EEEREZNEMEE R
the next financial year, are discussed below. JRETERAOT o
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) <SREERE

The Group adopts the impairment policy to recognise loss 7N £2 (B BE B R E R g e U R
allowances for ECLs on receivables, financial asset measured IH - IREEKASEZERE
at amortised cost and debt investments measured at FVOCI. EREATESAHMBEZERK
ECLs are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses and K7 EBIEENTEBREEER
the Group has to make judgement to determine whether the ﬁgf’ BiEEE - BHEEEE
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since BEEEEOM X MEGET

initial recognition by considering and analysing on the $’% HAELEEZEERELNS T AREER
Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment B RS N2 HEEET (G (8
including forward-looking information. HERTEMEER) BIELR A - &

TeRMEENEERBRES

M tER R AR AN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(b) The key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(ii) Fair value measurement
The fair value measurement of the Group'’s financial assets
utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how observable the
inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”).

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs;

Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures investment properties (note 16), equity
investments at FVOC| and at FVTPL and debt investment at
FVTPL (note 17) at fair value. For more detailed information in
relation to the fair value measurement, please refer to the
applicable notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HE T - —&F+ - A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to make

strategic decision.

The Group has four (2020: four) reportable and operating segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers different
services and requires different business strategies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:

Investment in property
development projects

Operation of financial
services platform

Provision of entrusted loan,
pawn loan, other loan
services, and financial
consultation services

Finance lease services

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Investments income and relevant
consultation service income generated
from LPs, which invest in property
development projects and are accounted
for as financial assets at FVTPL;

Provision of financial consultation services
and financial services platform;

Provision of short-term and long-term
loans and financial consultation services to
borrowers and financial institutions; and

Provision of long-term finance lease
services.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DHER(E)
Segment information about reportable segments: Al 2w/ EPE R
(a) Business segments (a) EKDE
Provision of
entrusted loan,
pawn loan,
other loan
Investment ~ Operationof ~ servicesand
in property financial financial
development services  consultation  Financelease
projects platform services services Total
REZTER
REE - Hit
RERME EfEem ERRER
¥RER RHTE HBEEERY AMERERY b
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
For the year ended BZ-%--F+-A=1-H
31 December 2021 LEE
Revenue from external customers PRI e - 19,658 401 - 20,059
Reportable segment (loss)/profit AEHFH(ER) /G (198,021) 907 (13,387) (89) (210,590)
Items included in the measure of SR EENS BRI HEE
segment profit or loss or SHEMER
segment assets:
Change in fair value of financial assets  RATE NBH 74 HEE
at FVTPL RTEED 195,987 - - - 195,987
Other expenses/(income), net Hifs/ (WA ) F8 (1) (36) (1) - (38)
Depreciation of property, plant and 0% BERSERE
equipment - 594 30 - 624
Impairment loss on property, 0% HERIEREEE
plant and equipment - - 529 - 529
Witten off on deposits paid, MEERRE  BENFER
prepayments and other receivables Htb ez 1,336 802 501 - 2,639
Loss allowance on financial assets CHEERBRRE - 467 10,134 - 10,601
Addition of non-current assets RNEFTEEE - - 529 - 529
Salaries and wages Feh1E 282 4122 833 - 5,237
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--%+-A=1-H
Reportable segment assets 2R PEE 67,599 13,178 4,933 176 85,886
Reportable segment liabilites DEE RN 14,452 25,751 6,660 4,952 51,815
EHSBBEERERAT —T-—F5%K
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

6. TDEBER (1E)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HE T - —&F+ - A=+—HIFE
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(a) Business segments (Continued) () EBHIP(E)
Provision of
entrusted loan,
pawn loan,
other loan
Investment Operation of services and
in property financial financial
development services consultation Finance lease
projects platform services services Total
REZTER
ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%m ity
RERDZ EfFeR SRRER
BRIEH RBTe UBERRE  RERERE a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL ARBTL ARBETFL ARETR ARBTL
For the year ended BE-_E-Z%4+-F=1-H
31 December 2020 LLEE
Revenue from external customers RENMPEP R M 823 15410 3471 17 19721
Reportable segment {loss)/profit EFDHB(EE)/EF (444384) (16,/696) (24,165) 4% (484,749)
Items included in the measure of FANEEFREER S HEE
segment profit or loss or FTERER
segment assets:
Change in fair value of financial assets W ATEFFABZZEREE
at FVTPL RTERY 362272 - - - 362072
Other expenses/(income), net Hitfs /(WA 28 105 (10,244) (949) (1,504) (12592)
Depreciation of property, plant and 5}%% BEREETE
equipment 239 1,585 1836 - 3,600
Witten off of property, plant and WEnE  BELRR
equipment 86 - 697 - 783
Impairment loss on property, nE BERRENESE
plant and equipment 27 - 0 - 248
Gain on disposal of property, LENE - BEREHENNE
plant and equipment (128) (370) (1,191) (1449) (3,139)
Written off on deposits paid, WEDRe  BNFER
prepayments and other receivables EiEWFE 30 1,020 240 143 1533
Loss allowance on financial assets SREEFERE 78409 5897 4971 258 89,535
Recovery ofimpaiment of loansand Yt &5 R YR Z R
accounts receivables and EtRYERRE
other receivables - (9,271) (847) - (10,118)
Addition of non-current assets REE-HEE - 2,041 27 - 2,068
Salaries and wages HERIE 1179 10177 11,647 53 23,056
As at 31 December 2020 RZBZBF+ZA=1-H
Reportable segment assets ERNHEE 235978 61,586 47954 265 345,783
Reportable segment liabilities ERNHEE 5206 18375 31,095 4952 59628




171

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DHER (&)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, (b) ATE2HRD U - BRFTBHE
(loss)/profit before income tax expenses, assets YR (EE) BA - BEREA
and liabilities B ZH iR

2021 2020
—EB--F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTFT
Revenue &=
Revenue from external customers RE ISR E 20,059 19,721
Loss before income tax expense MRET SRR ATE B
Reportable segment loss A2%HHEE (210,590) (484,749
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR - 47
Fair value loss on investment properties KEYENTEBE (47,870) (1,270)
Unallocated finance costs AR B B 5 K AR 192 -
Unallocated corporate expenses RABLARIFAE (7,327) (4,803)
Consolidated loss before income tax expense  BRFTS T M AI4R & 18 (265,595) (490,775)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A2HNHEE 85,886 345,783
Investment properties HEYE - 47,870
Amount due from a non-controlling interest FEWSEYE AR HE 25 5K 1R 1 1
Cash and cash equivalents REMHRSEMEER 2,318 931
Unallocated corporate assets RAOBAREE - 80
Consolidated total assets SGARBEERE 88,205 394,665
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AEmoyHasE 51,815 59,628
Amount due to a shareholder JE A5 I R F A - 11,506
Dividend payable FEAT AR B 103 106
Loan from a director KE—REBEZEXR 2,862 -
Bank borrowings RITER 2,705 15,735
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEARIAE 35,104 5,987
Consolidated total liabilities e BERE 92,589 92,962

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R M ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 & ZE =

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

e S ER T

=

i)

HER (&)

(c) Geographicinformation and disaggregation of (c) BEFEHARZENHEERRD
revenue from contracts with customers b
In the following table, segment revenue of the Group's reportable TREHIZETEWETIS  TEER
segments are disaggregated by primary geographical market, major KRG IE B R ERNEEE D IRa A
products and service lines and timing of revenue recognition. E BN IRE D ELH D EpULES ©
Provision of entrusted loan,
pawn loans, other loan
Investment in property Operation of services and financial
development projects  financial services platform  consultation services Finance lease services Total
REZTEN REEX.
Forthe year ended REMIZRRERERS B E RS
31 December HEt-A=1-H RENMEREER HEETA NREBERRE RERERE Eh
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZRC-F CBC%F ZBC-F CTC%E ZBC-f CEC%F CRC-F CFC%F CZBC-F O CEC%E
Primary geographical markets  ¥EHETH
PRC h - 823 19,658 15410 38 2,648 - 26074 19,696 18898
Hong Kong Ak - - - - 363 83 - & 363 8
Totel a5 - 83 19658 15410 401 3471 - %% 20,059 19721
Revenue )6
Investment income REMA - - - - - - - - - -
Financial consultation senvices income B X BB ARSI A - 83 - - - 370 - - - 1193
Platform services income TaRBRA - - 19,658 15410 - - - - 19,658 15410
Interest income FBMA - - - - 401 301 - - 401 3101
Finance lease senviceincome BARERBUA - - - - - - - 17 - 17
- 823 19,658 15410 401 347 - 17 20,059 19721
Timing of revenue recognition W A BEsZIE
Atapoint intime thERh - - 19658 15410 - 30 - - 19658 15,780
Over time RERED - 8 - - 401 3001 - 17 401 3941
- 83 19,658 15410 401 3471 - 17 20,059 19721
The Group's non-current assets (excluding financial assets) are AEEMERDEE(TEFEEME
predominantly attributable to a single geographical region, which is E)XZ2HEERE —ME  BIhE-
the PRC. Therefore, no analysis of non-current assets by At - Wik E 25| 3EmEEESD
geographical region is presented. #r o
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. ZHER (&)
(d) Information about major customers d) EEEFEH
The Group's customer base is diversified. Revenue of the Group AEERNTFEMRER - AEBKaS
includes the following revenue earned from counterparties with BIEB TR 5HBiBEA S B 10%
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue, all MR SHFESHKE - BRAWED
of which were derived from revenue by the operation of financial REHE-_ZE-_—FR_T_TF
services platform segment for the years ended 31 December 2021 +_ A=+t HILEFERBEESRH
and 2020: BRTSF & 7 B Ry de s
2021 2020
—F--fF —ZT-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFT
Counterparty A REEFA 8,019 N/A N3
Counterparty B RHEFB - 3,396
Counterparty C RGHEFC - 3,396
N/A: The relevant comparative figures for the corresponding period RNER: - FR —_E-FFRF
in 2021 and 2020 representing revenue from the relevant customers BB AR P TS Uz A FE B8 L B8R
did not exceed 10% of the Group's revenue. FABBARERKET10% °

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HE=ZZF =

7. REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the income from

—F At A=t RiFE

its principal activities. Revenue recognised during the year are as follows:

W 5
Yozt (AR EBNEEE) HREHEE

BB o FAREREUEIAT

2021 2020
—E-—F TETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T

Revenue from contract with customers within -~ 76 81 ¥ 2 &5 #E B 55 1558

the scope of HKFRS 15: HEANEFA LN
Financial consultation services income B 755 R 1 AR 75 LA - 1,193
Platform services income FE RBEUWA 19,658 15,410
19,658 16,603
Revenue from other sources: EH A 2RRUA -

Interest income B WA 401 3,101
Finance lease service income REREREA - 17
401 3,118
20,059 19,721

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by the timing
of revenue recognition and by geographic markets is disclosed in note
6(c).

The following table provides information about loans and accounts
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

BRUABIRELRSRTSEINEFS
wl a2 D PR BRI R 6(C) ©

TREJNEBEPANER R EYRIRR K
BRAENER -

2021 2020

—E-—F —TTF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AREFT

Contract liabilities (note 23) GHBaE (FFE23) (4,555) 3.712)

Contract liabilities increased by RMB843,000 in 2021 as a result of the
advance consideration received from the customers for platform services.

The transaction price allocated to the performance obligation that is
unsatisfied, has not been disclosed, as substantially all of the Group's
contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 have a duration of
one year or less.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

HRRFTEeRBESFUBMBRRE &
HEER T - —F1E AR #843,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

8. OTHER (EXPENSES)/INCOME, NET 8. Hit(Bi%)/ WAZRHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
e AR%T R ARETT
Bank interest income RITH WA 8 29
Fair value loss on investment REYERNTEESR
properties 16 (47,870) (1,270)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB Ak - 47
Recovery of impairment on loans and W B LA RERR I B 30 B R
accounts receivables and other BR 3% % L th FE U R IR R (B
receivables previously recognised 18 - 10,118
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WFE MR AW
equipment - 3,138
Others HAh 33 613
(47,829) 12,675
FINANCE COSTS BF# A A
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET_TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt aE AR%T R ARETT
Interest on bank borrowings RITHE AR 25 192 793
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 26 36 391
228 1,184

SRR IERERAR

—EC-FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR M (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

g

>3

—F At A=t RiFE

10. BRFFEBAXAIE IR

2021 2020
B C—T-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B = AR®T R ARETT
Auditor's remuneration ZEE < 1,087 912
Depreciation charge HERX
— Owned property, plant and —BEYE BERRE
equipment 15 624 1,153
— Right-of-use assets included within — s AT R IEHE A
HEE
— Other buildings leased for — RS BRIAEB AR
own use carried at cost HiniE=F 15 - 2,507
Short-term leases expenses RHHEERY 558 2,349
Legal and professional fees FERRBEEE 13,309 8,321
Technical service fees Rt AR 75 & 1,086 4,745
Impairment loss on property, Wz - BB MR EREEE
plant and equipment 15 529 248
Written off of property, plant and WiEME - WE RRE
equipment 15 - 783
Written off of deposits paid, WHEENIZE - BRFIER
prepayments and other receivables H{th B U Fx 78 2,639 1,533
Employee benefit expenses including EERAMAY (BIEESHM)
directors’ remuneration 11 7,774 25322
Salaries and wages HeRTIE 6,587 23,438
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFH B
— defined contribution plans —FRHEE (a) 1,187 1,884

Note: FifeE -

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Ministry of Human Resources and Social (a) %§§:§:§¢+: A Eﬂ'f E' EFE A
Security (“MHRSS”) issued an announcement regarding the administration of Chinese NABRMEERE (AN ERALERES )
social security contributions during the period of prevention and containment of the ﬂgﬁﬁﬁfﬂ " A %ﬁ@iﬁﬁg%ﬁﬁﬁ%@?%ﬂﬂﬁﬁ A
spread of COVID-19 (Renshetingmingdian 2020 No. 7, hereinafter referred to as Bt & (RIZ 45 ) B 12 S E (A4 BRAA S 2020 4F
“Announcement No. 7"), to ensure appropriate measures are stipulated by local Social 75% . T (7%11*73@@”) n A ﬁ@ﬁi@ﬁﬁ’g%@
Security Bureau (“SSB"). Several local SSBs also released their respective local practices B(#HgRER]) Al 1A E 83 © S AL &R
for the administration of social security contributions in response to Announcement ERMEEE7 B - %8S REHRD
No. 7. In addition to Announcement No. 7, the Standing Committee of the State EEEED éi‘\ﬁﬁﬂgﬁ o BR7SRBANSN - BIFERT
Council met on 18 February 2020 and decided to reduce or waive employer obligations FHEZERTR_T_TF_A+/\BAHE
on social security contributions for a specified period of time to ease the burden of & - WREAIRTE K H ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁﬁfﬁ'ﬂi
enterprises during the year ended 31 December 2020. EREUREL  UFBCEREE_Z_F

F+Z A=+ ALFENEE-
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited



11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

N EEFMREZEaMESAL

Directors’ remuneration (a) EE=HTHN
The remuneration of each of the directors for the year is set out FRNEBEZESHMSWT :
below:
Salaries Equity-
allowances settled
and benefits  share-based Pension
inkind  payments scheme
Fees (note a) (note b) contributions Total
e DY £
BER  LERGH
ENER EHIAR Bikg
ne BT (MzEb) =M @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR AR%TR AR¥BTR AR¥TRT AR%Tn
Yearended 31 December 2021 HBE-ZE=-—-&
TZAZ+-HLFE
Executive directors: HTESE :
Mr. Zhang Gongjun RREIEAE - 533 - - 533
Ms. Wan Suyuan BzEuL - 24 - - 24
- 557 - - 557
Independent non-executive BUFNTEE
directors:
Dr. Vincent Cheng i 117 - - - 117
Dr. Miao Bo ERET 117 - - - 117
Mr. Hsu Tawei BREXE 98 - - - 98
Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho LEREE 10 - - - 10
342 - - - 342
Total 45t 342 557 - - 899

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R M ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)

M ESFMREEESME AL

(%)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) EEFHM(E)
Salaries Equity-
allowances settled
and benefits  share-based Pension
inkind payments scheme
Fees (note a) (noteb)  contributions Total
e DA
R BERNOA
EMER  ERZER HE N
ikn (et (Bstb)  FHEIER Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARB®TT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Yearended 31 December2020 EHZE_-Z-ZF
TZA=t—-HLEE
Executive directors: HiTEE
Mr. Zheng Weijing BERLE - 778 - - 778
Mr. Zhang Gongjun RREFEAE - 433 - - 433
Ms. Guo Chanjiao SEET L - 687 - - 687
- 1,898 - - 1,898
Independent non-executive BUFNTEE
diirectors:
Dr.Vincent Cheng B=EET 125 . _ _ 125
Mr. Leung Po Hon REESE 104 - - - 104
Dr. Miao Bo HKEL 125 - - - 125
354 - - - 354
Total @5t 354 1,898 - - 2252
Notes: Bt sE
@ The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their @) FRATHBITESEHeTERHHEER
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and RRE RAEEEBEEBRSTX
the Group. The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown e ERIIABIUIFATEEHEEE
above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company. RUEBEBERRRESHRBZA -
(b) These amounts were based on the estimated value of share options granted to (b) ZECHARBALRBRETERT

the directors under the Company's share option scheme. The value of these

share options is measured according to the accounting policies for share-based

payments as set out in note 4()) to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included one (2020:
three) directors whose emoluments are included above for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The analysis of the emoluments of the remaining four (2020: two)

1. %ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬂ&i%%%ﬂ%ki

(b) EEESMEAL

AEEEE_T_—FR_FT_FTF
TZA=+— a¢¢r£m~m@+|i
ATHEE—G(ZE_FF : =fI)
B REZHMEERERN LEX -

HAMA (Z T —FF : ML) &=

highest paid individuals is as below: i}\:tE'J@H/\’VFﬁZZDT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYET 1,514 1,125
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIE R 31 29
1,545 1,154

Their emoluments were within the following band:

BREHMBELT -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECFF

Number of Number of

individual individual

ATEE ATEE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 57T 4 2

(c) No director or any of the highest paid individuals waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments for the year (2020: nil). No emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid
individuals of the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for the year (2020:
nil).

(d) The emoluments paid or payable to member of senior management
other than the directors were within the following band:

(c)

FR MEBEEEREMNESMEAL
HEXRBEHREEFAMS(ZT-F
FE)-FR AEEHMERNLAK
BHEFR T A HFHME A LIME
WM - (EREMASINBE R EER
MBESAMBEE( T _FF:
&) -

(d) AEREREKE (EEHRINEMNK

FEfTROFF NS E 20 T

2021 2020

—E==-——F —E-TF

Number of Number of

individual individual

ATEEB ATEE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 57T 1 1

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK



180

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT AND DEFERRED
TAX LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

12. IEH(BAX) % RIELES

HAE

2021 2020
—E-—F ket 25
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B PEM
— Provision in current year — REEEE 9 -
— Over-provision in respect of prior years — BAFERERE = (20,428)
9 (20,428)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising in
or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operated.

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") arising from the PRC for the year was
calculated at 25% (2020: 25%) of the estimated assessable profits of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC during the year. According to the EIT law,
the taxable income of an enterprise shall be the total revenue of such
enterprise, deducted by any non-assessable revenue, exempted revenue,
other deductions and amount of offsetting any accumulated tax losses.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC were approved as qualified
small and thin-profit enterprise with an annual taxable income of
RMB500,000 or less, and accordingly, they were subject to a reduced
preferential corporate income tax rate of 10% for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020. The PRC corporate income tax for the relevant
subsidiaries of the Company filing for this preferential tax treatment has
been provided for at their respective prevailing tax rates during the year.
Upon receipt of notification, the relevant subsidiaries of the Company will
be entitled to corporate income tax rate of 10% and corresponding tax
adjustments will be accounted for.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

BHNPAEHR -

RERNHFESEMESHE((DEMER]D
BENIEFELBHPENB ARG ER
TR A 250 (— T B F @ 25%)5tE - 1R
BOEMSHE  CENERRBKARS
R EMWE BRI IEERTW
I B U S - E AR EE N A LA 8
R R HIEEBAE -

AEBRTENETHBARENLAEE
EE N CER R FEBRBERAT
Bl AR S00000T  BtEE=T=—
FRZZFZFFTA=T—HIEFE"
ZEMB AR 10%NRIEEEDER
SBREET - XA RFANIEEREZIE
R EENEBEHRB AR B REERITH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

12. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT AND DEFERRED

TAXLIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2021 is calculated at 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year, except for
one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the
two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million
of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this
subsidiary was calculated at the same basis in 2020.

Withholding tax was calculated at 5% of the dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by a PRC subsidiary to its intermediate holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

12. ISR (FAX) K% RIELED

HEE(E)

- FREBNEGRBENRAFE
AR RN 165%(ZTE T F
165%) 5T 8 - MREFSHMAFNBEE
BARN—EAREEETHBAGRI -
MEZMBARME  B2EB B THER
Fissm F 32 8 25% B R BER - SR T R IEERTR
i F32 16.5% B R B - ZMBARIMNE
BREHBEIRE T - TERARNEE
HE-_ZT-_—FR-_ZE-_ZTF+=A
=+—HIEFE ENHERTRENEAR
A BB A A 0 B S s A S 2 AR R R AR
NRTIRRERS%ETE o

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before AEEMEHRREEGEEBRNEMSE
income tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit and loss and YR 25 2R BT 2 B TS % 5 2 AT /65 18 4 BR
other comprehensive income as follows: O
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Loss before income tax expense bR FTS BRI SZ AT E A (265,595) (490,775)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate of B R FR R 25%
25% (2020: 25%) ZETF 25%)FHFEMKRIA (66,399) (122,694)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries A RLERE S & 8
operating in other jurisdictions MEARIMH R ERNFTE 765 592
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT 0% S R R 7S 65,865 95,638
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEERBIMARNTR G & (40) (33)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR EE RIS 281 26,497
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEHEERE - (20,428)
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised E) A R R FE SR B IE S 1R (463) -
Income tax credit FrigTiis e 9 (20/428)
EHSBMBEERERAT —S_—FFRK
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INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT AND DEFERRED
TAXLIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with the PRC subsidiaries’ undistributed retained earnings for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised is approximately
RMB52,506,000 (2020: RMB67,662,000). No deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is in a
position to control the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.

The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in Hong Kong and the PRC
of approximately RMB16,030,000 (2020: RMB16,501,000) and
RMB373,379,000 (2020: RMB373,636,000) respectively. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax assets to be utilised. The tax losses can be carried forward
with a maximum period of five years in the PRC while the tax loss in Hong
Kong can be carried forward indefinitely. In the opinion of the directors of
the Group, there are no other deferred tax assets which will have a
significant impact to the Group.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

12. IEHE (%) G RIELES

HEE (&)

N_E-_—F+-A=+—H - BARHER
FEEHBEENPBRMBRRARDRKRE
BFHENTSEZEAENABARE
52506000L( Z T Z T F: AR
67,662,0007T ) o FR R AN 5 B ] 12 i) 3% S Bt
BATMREKE  BZS=8NA R
RAKATRER A - M R X = R RE R
EEFRIEAE -

REBREBRTPHEADBIEERFRIEE
BHARE1603000TT(ZTE-TF: A
R # 16,501,000 7T ) & A K % 373,379,000 7T
—E_ZTF: AR¥3736360007T) ° M
R KA REIES S ER B FILAS B 2
BB BERIBEE - WL ERZS
EEERELEHIBEE - RPBINTIEE
BAR&EZRAFTANEE  MREBSMNHIE
B T EHAE  c AEEEERAE I
EHMEEHBEEBREAEEELESE X

=471
= °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB265,276,000 (2020: RMB468,725,000) and the weighted average
number of approximately 1,731,433,000 (2020: 1,731,433,000)
ordinary shares during the year.

Diluted loss per share
The Company has one category of potential ordinary shares: share
options.

The diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the shares issuable in
respect of the outstanding share options have an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic loss per share.

14. DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:

Nil).

13. BREE

(a)

(b)

BRERERE

FR - BRERNBEDEALTHES
AFE(EEE ) A R#E 265,276,0007T( =
T T AR¥468,7250007C) K
T 33 A% h0 A& - 39 £ %Y 1,731,433,000 B&
(ZB-F4F 1 1,731,433,0000%) 51 & o

TREFER
ARERE - REELBR
W

-3

R &R/ TR AE 2 A] BT D Y
FRERBEERRESHE B2
TE - FR-ZF-FF+ A
—t—HIEFEERESHEESY
fEEAE AR o

14. KR

EEgUITERAARFRFEREHE
T —F+ A=+ RIEFERHRE
(ZZ=ZF  |) o

SRR IERERAR

—EC-FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRE
Other
buildings
leased for Furniture,
own use fixtures
carried Leasehold and office Motor
atcost improvements equipment vehicles Total
REASI B
RIEERM B £E
Hitig HEZE  RBARE RE ok
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Cost: KA
At January 2020 W-Z-F%-HF—-H 10,768 6,080 9,839 1,083 27,770
Additions NE 2,041 - 27 - 2,068
Disposals HE (12,809) - - (194) (13,003)
Written off HisE - (4,200) - - (4,200)
Exchange realignment ERAR - (4) (7) (23) (34)
At 31 December 2020 WZE-ZF+-R=1+-H - 1,876 9,859 866 12,601
Addition NE 529 - - - 529
At31 December 2021 W-E-—-#+-A=1-H 529 1,876 9,859 866 13,130
Accumulated depreciation and ZARERAE :
impairment:
AtT January 2020 R-Z-2£-8-0 6,847 4,982 7,859 640 20,328
Charge for the year EERX 2,507 313 737 103 3,660
Disposals HE (9,354) - - (101) (9,455)
Written off i - (3,417) - - (3,417)
Impairment JERE] - - - 248 248
Exchange realignment ERAZ - (2) (7) (24) (33)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-2F+-A=1+—H - 1,876 8,589 866 11,331
Charge for the year EERY - - 624 - 624
Impairment HiE 529 - - - 529
At 31 December 2021 WZZEZ-4%+-A=1-H 529 1,876 9,213 866 12,484
Net carrying amount: REFE -
At 31 December 2021 WZE--%+-R=1+—H - - 646 - 646
At 31 December 2020 WZE-ZF+-R=1+—H - - 1270 - 1270

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

15. Y13 - WERRE (&)

BT
Right-of-use assets (@) EREEE
Other
buildings
leased for own
use carried at cost Motor vehicles Total
R LA 5 R
HEBRAN
Hiigs RE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE=-_TF—A—H 3,921 93 4,014
Additions NE 2,041 - 2,041
Disposals e (3,455) (93) (3,548)
Depreciation e (2,507) - (2,507)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-TFE+_HA=+—H - - -
Addition NE 529 - 529
Impairment A (529) - (529)
The impairment charges related to property, plant and equipment and right- of-use (b) ME -  BEREERFEREEENEBRES

assets amounting to approximately RMBnil (2020: RMB248,000) and RMB529,000 (2020:
RMBnil), respectively, have been recorded in other administrative expenses.

For the impairment assessment as at 31 December 2020, Management of the Group
concluded no impairment for furniture, fixtures and office equipment, and impairment
loss should be recognised for the motor vehicle of the Group.

AR ARARBEL(ZZ_ZF : AR
2480007C) M AREE529000 L (ZZE=FF : A
REZT) Bt AHMITERAX -

RR T -_TF+ A=+ —BHRETED
S AKEEEERA ASEMNEA - BE
HERPAEZRELERE  BARTERR
SEREE ©

I

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HE=ZZF =

B F AR Y (AR
—ETZ A=t RUFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REYZE
2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
Fair value RNF¥E
At 1 January w—H—H 47,870 49,140
Change in fair value (note 8) NHEES) (H5E8) (47,870) (1,270)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 - 47870
All the investment properties of the Group are held under long-term land REBMATENAEREYENESRL
use right in the PRC. Ho{PE FRAEREA o
At 31 December 2021, the Group's investment properties with a carrying R-FE-——F+—-AF= —1—— H KA&EBHE
value of RMBnil (2020: RMB47,870,000) were pledged to secure certain HEARBZET(ZDE-_ZTF . ARK
bank borrowing of the Group (note 25). 47,870,000 75) WITEYEE FPHEE - BE
AR BE THRTER (325 -
At 31 December 2021, the Group's investment properties were seized by R-E-——F+—-_A=+—H &~NEHH
the Bureau and pledged pursuant to the Guarantee Documents for the EYERE S BN - WBEER R
settlement of the Unsettled Repayment Funds as stated in note 1 to the W AEEEEMBEHmEM T 1AM
consolidated financial statements. As advised by the Company's PRC legal KEEES BEALATHIREZERN
advisor, and with reference to the valuation report issued by Eidea B WREETEEERBEERAFTEA
Professional Services Company Limited, in view of the low probability and g’ﬂg{g;&i EBAREBINEIRE Y EN
feasibility for the Group to recover the investment properties, the Group AREE R Al ITHEIE - KREBEIERKRE
recognised RMB47,870,000 for the change in fair value of the investment a&xé%%ﬁ?fﬁﬁiﬂ/\iﬁ%ﬂﬁmpwn o
properties in the profit of loss.
As at 31 December 2020, the investment properties held by the Group R-_EB-—FTE+—-_A=+—H ~AEHEE
were valued by a qualified valuer namely RHL Appraisal Limited, an ﬁa@&g%%mgﬁ%ﬁﬁgﬁi&@i%ﬁ
independent firm of chartered surveyors who holds a recognised and S| 2 B sk A ﬁ STEEE AR AE ﬁ {a
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the 15 RIEAEZRA R Eﬁﬁ%éif&
location and category of the investment properties being valued. The ,H\,qﬁ;\ﬂXﬁ#@%E@i@%ﬁ&;ﬁﬁljg_fﬂﬁﬁa’q
valuation was carried out in accordance with the International Valuation 4B o {5 BEREEEREELENZE 2
Standards Council ("IVSC"). (TIVSC | ) 34T o
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the valuation was determined by adoption of
direct comparison method which was based on the principle of
substitution, where comparisons were made based on prices realised on
actual sales and/or asking prices of comparable property. Comparable
properties of similar size, scale, nature, character and location were
analysed and carefully weighed against all the respective advantages and
disadvantages of each property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of
market value. The significant input into this valuation approach was price
per square meter.

Information about fair value measurement using significant unobservable

16. REY= ()

R-ZB-Z2F+-_HA=+—8 ' HEHE
REBERAUFBERLBAERE A&
HEME 2 ERHERMERERE RE
BETLER - AW AN FHE K
B BUuRMHEE 2 ELEYE &
EOEREMERAZ—ES @ #FiE
BAFZTELER ZAEEEHNEIEGA
BIBEREF T RER -

ERERTABRHABR(F=A)NAQ

inputs (level 3) is provided below. FEAEEHEHINNAT

Relationships of Range of unobservable
unobservable inputs input (probability-weighted

Description Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs to fair value average) 2020

TABRHABENEE

TABRRAZE (T BEME — MAEF19)

it L ER EATIEERARE HAVLEZRR “RC°RE

Investment properties Market approach Price per square meter ("sqm”) using ~ Good orientation will resultin -~ RMB61,194/sqm —

inthe PRC market direct comparable which corresponding higher value RMB64,246/sqm

has been adjusted to reflect the

time of transaction, size,

location, amenities
FEIRENE ik ERAMSATEZELBMEL D

AEARBRZ ZHE -« 18 -

fi & RAEFRIEHGT K

(IFEAK]) B

RIFEMBESIIEBEEL ARB61UT/ AR

il

AR 64246 7T,/ F oK

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 or any other level. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end
of the reporting period in which they occur. There were no transfers
between Level 1,2 and 3 during the years.

The fair value measurement was based on the above properties’ highest
and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

BREWE (&)

HE-_ZT-_—"FR-_ZE-_ZTF+=A
=+t BILEE  F=@RS{EMEMmE
MW EEASEL - AEBEZBER AR
R s RERARERLAFLEEAM &
Bo RN F— =MW EER o

ATEHBIVER LR R
B -

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL/FINANCIALASSETS 17. B A P E A BEZNWEH &
AT FVOCI E/RAFEFAHMGZENK
EHNERMEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFIT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEGFTABRNEREE
— unlisted equity securities (note afi)) — FEETRARFES (Mt al) 67,172 231,351
— unlisted debt securities (note b) — FLEMERKFES (D) - 31,808
67,172 263,159
Financial assets at FVOCI BRAFEGTAHMEEREN
SREE
— unlisted equity securities (note a(ii)) — 3E E IR AREF (FiFEali) - 54,129
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17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL/FINANCIAL ASSETS 17.
AT FVOCI (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@ The amounts comprised investments in LPs and equity interests of an entity in the PRC
at amounts of approximately RMB67,172,000 (2020: RMB231,351,000) and RMBnil (2020:
RMB54,129,000), respectively, as at 31 December 2021.

(i) As at 31 December 2021, the Group invested in certain LPs in the PRC and
acted as a limited partner with capital contributions at a range of RMB20 million
to RMB60 million (2020: RMB20 million to RMB60 million) for each LP. The
contributions represented 1.9% to 42.5% (2020: 1.9% to 42.5%) of the total
contributions of the corresponding LPs. The Group revoked its voting right on
decision making over these LPs and therefore, the directors are of the opinion
that the Group did not have any control, joint control nor significant influence
over these LPs. These LPs invested in property development project companies
which are engaged in property development projects in the PRC which are
being developed by a property developer in the PRC (the "PRC Property
Developer”). The Group intends to hold these equity investments for receiving
investment income and will sell them out if the return is not optimal as
management expected.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no investment income was
recognised (2020: RMBnil). As at 31 December 2021, there was gross carrying
amount of approximately RMB26 million (2020: RMB26 million) investment

income receivables from these LPs (note 18).

©) R-T-—4+-A=+—08 28E8ERE
REBHRER—BRTEEEBHRANEREL
AR ®67172000( —BE T F: AR¥
231351,00070) RARBZET(ZZE_TF: A
R ¥ 54,129,0007T) °

0] RZZE=_—F+=-A=+—8  x5£E
EREREBARERTEETERE
% BEBRABIBEENTARE20
BETEARBOBETL(ZEZF :
ARB20BBETEAREOBST) T
o XEMREERERBTEN1I%
Z5%(ZTZTF 1 19%E425%) °
AEBHHERNZEERESBARER
= A EERALNEEURES
R R AT (AT e il - LR il sk
BAVE -ZZHEREBRERYER
BEEQR  2EARNRTEYENE
BRIEEH MEBEEAPEYELRE
E(REmEERD ] - REER
BEZSESRENERRERA - &
BT ER BTN EENEEER
R EHE -

HE-FT-—F+=ZA=+—HL*F
B WEBEREERA(ZZZTF : A
REZTI) RZTZZ—F+=ZA=+—
B REZSEERAENREKIZERA
(1) ABARE 6ESTL(ZEZ
TE: ARB2EET) °

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL/FINANCIAL ASSETS
AT FVOCI (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(Continued)

(ii) The Group made an additional capital contribution of RMB30,000,000 to the
joint venture entity, Henan Microfinance Limited (“Henan Microfinance”)
(formerly named “Zhongzhou Huilian Internet Financial Service (Shenzhen)
Limited"), due to a restructuring of this company during the year ended 31
December 2017. Prior to the capital contribution, the Group invested in 40% of
the equity interests in Henan Microfinance as joint venturer as at 31 December
2016. Upon completion of the capital contribution and restructuring of Henan
Microfinance on 17 May 2017, the Group's equity interests was diluted to 5%.
As the Group no longer acts as a joint venturer, interest was changed from a
joint venture to financial asset at FVOCI. The fair value loss on the financial asset
of approximately RMB54,129,000 (2020: fair value gain of approximately
RMB13,829,000) was recognised in the other comprehensive income during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value by using recent
transaction approach and classified as Level 2 (2020: Level 2) fair value
measurement.

Certain property development project companies invested by the LPs and the equity
interests of the Group in Henan Microfinance in PRC have been seized by the Bureau
due to the Unsettled Repayment Funds. Accordingly, the change in fair value for the
investments in these LPs of approximately RMB128,838,000 has been recognised in
profit or loss.

On 29 December 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with an independent
third party to subscribe for assets-backed securities (“ABS") in the PRC for a
consideration of approximately RMB40 million. The subscription amount represented
10.5% of the entire units of the ABS. According to the agreement, the Group shall
receive a variable return over the agreement period. The ABS will expire in September
2026. The Group's investments in ABS and the equity interest in Henan Microfinance
have been seized by the Bureau due to the Unsettled Repayment Funds. Accordingly,
the change in fair value for the investment in ABS of approximately RMB31,808,000 had
been recognised in profit or loss.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

(ii) BE-_T—+F+-_A=+—8LF
B ARAREMR AEERLAEER
AEERRNEERER 2B (RN
B ) (AT [ o0 BB B B A8 & R AR OF
J)BRAANDEIINETEARYE
300000007C ° EE R RZE—XNF
+ZA=+—8 AEEEAREERR
BHRRENEA%ES - R_F—+FH
At+tBRR+TRNETKTERER
% REBHRAESEERZ5% o BR
AEETHAEEN  EmBEEQR
HBARAFEFAELMEZERENS
BE-BE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—8
IEFE - Y ARYE 54,129,000 TR S BLE
EATEEE (224 AVEKE
# AR 13,829,0007T) B R H At 2 E UK

I ETIRAEST E AR P EED
FEHERSFAE-ER(-2-2
% BB ATENE -

HERABKRENE TYWERFEER RAFIRE
SERFHBEEHPRNEORAERERSEE
SMEBHHINM - Bt - WHREEREBHE
BEHAFEEZBY 128838000 LD A IB2EHE
2 6
RIE—RNF+-A=-+hB AEFEEB
FE=HEI—DE ARBOARBI0EE
TREPHEERKIPFZSR([ABS]) - RE ST
{5 ABS BAIHI105% © RIKWE - AEBE KR
ek BRI R EBUZ BRI 3R - ABSR =T =~"F N A
fEiM o AEBEABS P R/NERAKIGEDRE
RFEEE WHBIIR - IRt - HABSHIRER
NEEZL #31,808000 LERIEERIER °
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18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

191

18. ERREWIRRR

2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ihE=s AR¥ TR ARET T
Pawn loan receivables FEUTHE B B a 1 11
Entrusted loan receivables B EEE K b 1,327 1,327
Financial consultation services income JFEE Uk B 7965 R P AR S LA
receivables c 6,952 6,956
Investment income receivables FEUIE B WA d 26,000 26,000
Platform services income receivables UL & IR AU A e 4,568 3,868
Finance lease receivables FEW s ERE I f 258 258
Other loan receivables HEmmlER g 45,637 46,362
84,753 84,782
Less: non-current portion B FERENER Y
Other loan receivables HithpE Ul E g (3,540) (5,242)
81,213 79,540
Less: loss allowance of loans and B B R B AR RE B
accounts receivables (note 36) (B 5% 36)
(79,597) (69,485)
Current portion mEE s 1,616 10,055
a. Pawn loan receivables represented the short-term loan of a. RZTE-_—F+ZA=+—H" kK

approximately RMB11,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB11,000) arranged in the PRC. Customers were obliged to settle
the amounts according to the terms set out in relevant contracts,
with the option to renew the loans granted for a period up to 183
days. Interest rates offered were based on the assessment of a
number of factors including the borrowers’ creditworthiness and
repayment ability, collaterals as well as the general economic
trends. The pawn loans bore effective interest rate at 2.7% per
month as at 31 December 2021, and the maturity date for each loan
contract was not more than 183 days.

BEBEFERTEZHENOARE
TOTTREPER(ZE_FF : A
R#110007m) - BRFEAREBEEBEE
DTGB EFIE - FEARIEH
FrEEHESZ 1830 « FIR IR
HEEARMFTHMER  ZERE
BREEBRANEAEREEZES K
AR —REEBE - R —
FH+-A=1+—8 HEEKLEA

BERFZE27%5T 8 - FERELHE
IR %1 1838
BB REERERAR —E_-FFH
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18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Entrusted loan receivables represent loans to borrowers through
certain banks or other financial institutions in the PRC. In an
entrusted loan arrangement, the Group enters into a loan
agreement with the borrower and a bank or other financial
institution. The borrower repays the loan to the bank or the other
financial institution and then the bank or financial institution returns
the principal and accrued interest to the Group. While the bank or
the other financial institution exercises supervision over the
arrangement and receives repayment from the borrower, the bank
or the other financial institutions does not assume any risk of default
by the borrower. The effective interest rate on entrusted loan
receivables are 0.46% (2020: 0.46%) per month as at 31 December
2021. Independent third parties have guaranteed these entrusted
loans with maturity dates between 1 month to 2 years (2020: 1
month to 2 years).

For financial consultation services income receivables, the credit
period is 30 days and customers are obliged to settle the amounts
according to the terms set out in the relevant contracts.

Investment income receivables represent income from the
investment in LPs as described in note 17(a)(i). The receivables are
typically settled 3 months (2020: 3 months) after the date of the
board meeting of the LPs.

Platform services income receivables represent service income
charged to the platform users who are obliged to pay service fees
to the Group. There is no credit period and customers are obliged
to settle the amount according to the terms set out in the relevant
contracts.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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18. EXRREWIRR (&)

FEWETEFIESBTENSE TRIT
SHMEMEBEERERAREINE
Ko ERTERTHH - AEBEEE
RAR R T E M S BT
B o BRARBRITREMES
BREEZEER  MRITHEmEERE
BEAS REFFEBHETAER -
HRIRTTR B S BB s o i
TEBREBEWERAET  BIRTTH
Hth & BRSO TR ET (A BE EA
BEHMBIBENER - RZTZ—F
+ZA=1+—8 BREZAEZREA
HOANN BB E(ZZE T F:
046%) 5T B - ZXEFHABILE=FH
ER HENT1ERERE(=
E-ZTFEAERF)

FEU B T B RIS A (E & /A & 30
B - BEFPBEREMEREE AMHE R

BIERA -

JE W B UL A FE 2R 8 BT RE 17)G) Pt
BRERARABARINWA - ZEM
FE-—BRAREREBRARIEFTES
ZARBR=EA(ZZ_ZF: =&
HA)&EH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &

=
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18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

f. For finance lease receivables, borrowers are obliged to settle the
amounts according to the terms set out in relevant contracts and
acquire the leased assets at the end of the lease period. The interest
rate is 9.5% (2020: 9.5%) per annum as at 31 December 2021 with
lease periods of less than one year (2020: less than one year).

The finance lease receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are

further analysed as follows:

18. ERREWIRR (&)

f. BERREHEHEFEME  ERAR

RIFRRE S L PTE

3T fih £ NI
FFBERIE - W

AREERERNUEEEEE =
T —F+-_AZT—HOFANRA
95%(—ZT_FF : 95%) * HEHL
R—F(Z2_2F : LR—F) o

— = —

J
P —

—FR=-F
=+—B  EhRET

—ZTF+=HA
EFUEE—F

DT

Minimum lease Interest Present

R-ZZE-—%F payments income value

As at 31 December 2021 +=A=+-H REHEENR FMEWA RE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥TR ARBT T ARBT R

Not later than one year TER—F 258 - 258

Minimum lease Interest Present

RZE-ZF payments income value

As at 31 December 2020 +=-A=+—8 RIEBEER T FLEBA RAE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREEFT AREEFT AREEFT

Not later than one year TER—F 258 - 258
EHSBBEERERAT —T-—F5%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

f.

(Continued)

The present value of future lease income is analysed as:

18. EXRREWIRR (&)

f. (&)

AREEERANREIHOT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T R ARETTT

Current assets mENEE 258 258
Non-current assets ERBEE = -
258 258

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the equipment
leased and guaranteed from independent third parties. The Group
is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of
default by the leasees.

Other loan receivables represent loans to borrowers including
individuals and entities at fixed interest rate ranging from 5% to 15%
(2020: 5% to 15%) per annum with loan periods of 1 to 10 years
(2020: 1 to 10 years). Included in the other loan receivables were
long-term loan of approximately RMB6,269,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB7,234,000). Such loan bears fixed interest rate of
6.09% (2020: 6.09%) per annum and will be repaid over a period of
10 years (2020: 10 years).

Based on the commencement date of the loans as stated in the relevant
contracts, the ageing analysis of the gross carrying amounts of the Group's

loans and accounts receivables is as follows:

FE W it B T E SR M) AE R IA H AR
YRR B B =R - RNEE
TEEABEAREORER T R EMR
W) SRR o

Hi B ERERERA (B2EES]
ATRER)BLEOER  BEFF
BAF506FE15% (T _FF : 5% 5
15%) EERA—ZE+F(ZE=F
F:—EFF)e T —F+=H
T+t HOERHEFRHDARE
6269000C( ZFE_FF: AR
7,234,000 7C) B R E MK E R © %
BEREETEFHNEc0w(ZE=F
F:609%) 5T BEHETF(Z

TTF AF) o

BEREBANHANESRFABAY A&
B SRR R ERRENRR S

R
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2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETFT

0 to 30 days 0&30H 27 -
31 to 90 days 31THEOH 673 -
91 to 180 days 9THZ=180H - 2,954
Over 180 days 180 HIA 84,053 81,828
84,753 84,782
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

18. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

18. ERREWIRR (&)

Ageing analysis of the gross carrying amounts of the Group's loans and

ANEE B RIR BB B E % E U BR A BR
BROMTIT ¢

accounts receivables, before impairment allowance, is as follows:

2021 2020

=B —F —ECTEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTFT

Neither past due nor impaired B e HA TN oAROR (B 700 20,555
0 to 30 days past due BEIOE30H = =
31 to 90 days past due #HEI31ZE90H - 2,588
91 to 180 days past due #wH 91 =180 H - -
Over 180 days past due #EF180 H A £ 84,053 61,639
84,753 84,782

Impairment losses in respect of loans and accounts receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amounts is remote, in which case the impairment losses
are written off against loans and accounts receivables directly. Based on
this assessment, the movements in impairment of loans and accounts
receivables are as follows:

B e AR SR R (E B 1R A s HE BR A
5 BEAKER /T KA K EZE
BORUBER THEBESERRER N
FEU R SRS - ERULFTE - BB
R EEEZEMT -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZETHF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ET T ARETT

Balance at 1 January R—A— B 69,485 38,243
Loss allowance in loans and accounts receivables B R E R N B R SR 1R R

recognised (note 36) (P 7 36) 10,173 35,979
Recovery of impairment of loans and accounts W 8] A 1 T 2R ) B K B B LK BR R

receivables previously recognised (note 36) A (P 5% 36) (61) (4,737)

Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—HMN&EH 79,597 69,485

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group received guarantee from
independent third parties to secure the balances of gross carrying amount
of other loan receivables and entrusted loan receivables approximately of
RMB5,543,000 (2020: RMB6,269,000) and RMB1,327,000 (2020:
RMB1,327,000), respectively.

RIE - FR-_E_TF+_A=+—
B REEBTE=FEEGER UE
BEMERERRETENEREREE
DRI ANRBES5543000L(— BT
F: AR¥6,2690007T) & AR 1,327,000
T(ZZEZFF : ARM1,327,0007T) B3
o

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

19. DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

19.

ENEE ANREREME

RECEIVABLES WA
2021 2020
=B —T-ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETT
Deposits paid (note a) BfT&e (M) 190 905
Prepayments AN E ] 171 1,181
Other receivables (note b) HAth pE I8 (B 5T b) 1,217 137,529
1,578 139,615
Less: other receivables, non-current portion o B ERIE - IERE S - -
1,578 139,615
Less: loss allowance on other receivables, L HAEBGRIE BB R E B
in aggregate (471) (134,000)
Current portion mENES o 1,107 5615
Notes: B 5E
@ As at 31 December 2021, deposits paid comprised rental and various deposits @ RZE-_—F+-A=+—8 " EfKEBE
amounting to RMB190,000 (2020: RMB905,000). ARHE10000070 (= F = B4 ¢ A RUE 905,000
TMHEEREERSE -
(b) As at 31 December 2020, the gross carrying amount of other receivables mainly (b) RZZ_ZTF+_A=+—RH - EhEKKE
comprised (i) the consideration concerning the disposal of financial assets measured at WEEmAEFZRE)HERATEFABR
FVTPL of approximately RMB48.5 million (2021: RMBnil); (ii) earnest money paid to third NEMEEGHNRENAREB48BET(Z
parties for the future acquisition of Chongqing Beibu New District Baosheng Small Loan Zo—F: ARBZ X)) B REE
Co,, Ltd of approximately RMB20.4 million (2021: RMBnil); (iii) loan to independent third Chongging Beibu New District Baosheng Small Loan
party of approximately RMB36.9 million (2021: RMBnil); iv) sale of loan receivables to Co, LdEZRNFE=ZFTHNHELHDARKE 2047
factoring companies of approximately RMB15.6 million (2021: RMBnil) in relation to the B (ZZ—F: ARBZI)  (BIE=
financial service platform operation; and (v) cash advances to staff in amount of FEROARE6IBET(ZT=—F: AR
approximately RMB1.5 million (2021: nil). Those amounts were written off during the BT (WAREBARLERESRRBE S
year ended 31 December 2021. E¥BEROERERDARKE 1S6BBT(ZF
——F:AR¥ETR) RWHETEINRER
FOAREISEET(ZZZ—F: AREBZT
) REFREERBEE_ZT_—F5+=1A
=+—BIEFEME -
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

20.

21.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM A NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST/(TO) A SHAREHOLDER

The balances due were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. As at 31 December 2020, the balance amount of approximately
RMB11,506,000 was due to Mr. Zheng a former chairman, executive
director and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Zheng resigned
as a chairman, executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company on 26 March 2021. Upon his resignation, amount of
RMB14,489,000 was waived.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents represented cash in hand and bank balance. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB amounting to approximately RMB12,178,000 (2020:
RMB7,035,000), and were kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Segregated clients’ accounts

The Group maintains segregated client’s accounts with independent
online financial centers which are affiliated to licensed banks in the PRC to
hold clients’ deposits arising from normal business transactions in
connection with the provision for financing platform business. As at 31
December 2021, clients’ account not dealt within these consolidated
financial statements amounted to approximately RMB3,073,000 (2020:
RMB3,755,000).

20.

21.

R FERER (BN RR

FIE

MR REERR . 2 REKRERE
cHRZEZEF+—A=+—H " #E
4 A B B8 11,506,000 7T FE £ F A8 A &) Bl =
CHITESERITRBHBEE - B4
R —F=A -+ HEEARF T
& MITEERITHRAE - EEEE - A
R #514,489,000 B TTHIFRIBERA R -

ReRkREEEEHE

2% e

ReFASEEHEEIEFHAS MIRITE
fhe R ET-_—F+_A=+—8 &&%E
EMEekReEEBEEUAREE
DRIE A ANREE121780000( — T T4 ¢
AREE70350007T)  WEBRFE - AR
A ERLRAHEME  BHPEE
& 2B 52 P B U RO BE 5BR HIFTARBR ©

BIEFERF

AREBNRPEFEETZHBEBLB LS
BHRLERBLEFER  UBBEXRAES
BREMEVFEEBNETEBRIZE
FrER - R_E-_—F+_A=+—8"
AR EREVBHEREENEFREF®
B BANRE307300T(ZE-ZTF : A
R #37550007C) °

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R M ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

22. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

22. HIHRIR - Bt ERARAEME

PAYABLES NRIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Receipts in advance (note a) FEWFRTE (F5Ea) 979 807
Accruals FEETEH 6,561 5,587
Other payables (note b) H 4o FE A FE (M3 b) 63,344 44,257
70,884 50,651

Notes:

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

As at 31 December 2021, the receipts in advance mainly comprised RMB760,000 (2020:
RMB760,000) received from LPs as investment income in advance.

As at 31 December 2021, other payables mainly comprised (i) the amount of
approximately RMB16.3 million (2020: same) representing the provision made for the
settlement of the legal action against two PRC subsidiaries of the Company (note 39); (i)
the amount of approximately RMB12.9 million (2020: nil) representing the provision
made for the settlement of the legal action again the PRC subsidiary of the Company
(note 25); (iii) other payables to various independent third parties for technical service
fee of approximately RMB5.8 million (2020: RMB6.3 million); (iv) other tax payables of
approximately RMB4.1 million (2020: RMB4.2 million); (v) other payables for purchasing
the leased assets under finance leases of approximately RMB1.8 million (2020: RMB1.6
million); and (vi) deposits received from finance lessees of approximately RMBO0.6 million
(2020: RMBO0.6 million).

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

)

RZZE-——F+-A=+—R8 BEUREIE
BREEEREBARBIERRERAHARE
760000 T (ZE =T 4 « AR 7600007T) ©

R-ZE-_—F+-fA=+—8 " EtENKE
FEREORBRAE AR MR A EMNE QA
RAAREERITHIEEOBEREHARE
163BET(ZZ =4 : HRA) (MF3E39) : i)
BERRE AR R P EMB QR A EITEIER
HBREREOARENIBET (S -2 :
) (MeE25) : (NEEMRE BRSNS Z 2B L
FEZFHMEMRBOAREsAET(ZT =
THF: ARBIBEER)  (VEMENREL
ARBLIBEL(ZZZZF : ARB42B8E
L) (EEREREE THESEMNEMER
HBHOARB18ABTL(ZZE24 : ARE16
BET) RVIARERERIMNESHAR
BocEBIL(ZE=2F : ARB6EET) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

23. ENEE

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
+=—A=+-—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Contract liabilities arising from: ATIHEEEANENEE

Receipts in advance TR FRIA 4,555 3,712
4,555 3,712

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities FESHNABLEN RN REHAT

are as follows:

A contract liability which arises in respect of the Group's financial
consultancy service is recognised as revenue relating to the general

AEBEPBERRBEENGORERRA
PR H R R A — R B R R R

financial advisory services at the time of the services rendered to the IR -
customers.
Movement in contract liabilities EHEBEEE
2021 2020
—E-—F T TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Balance as at 1 January n—A—B#%& 3,712 2,466
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AHBEERSE Wﬁﬁwﬁ"ﬁ%ﬂu‘f}\
recognising revenue during the year that EHBEMWETRE D
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (3,712) (2,466)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of S4B ERIERETE Mg
billing in advance 4,555 3,712
Balance as at 31 December R+—A=+—H&% 4,555 3,712
EHSBBEEREGRAT T —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

24. LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR 24,

The loan was unsecured, interest-free and repayable within six months. As
at 31 December 2021, the loan of approximately HK$3,500,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,862,000) was due to Ms. Wan Suyuan, an executive director of the

RE—REBZEX

ZERBERT RERERNEARNE
B -R_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H" 4
3,500,000, 7T (#8 & 7 A K ¥ 2,862,000 7T )

Company. NERBENTARRNTEEEEZE KL
THIFRIA -
25. BANK BORROWINGS 25, RITHER
2021 2020
—E=-— —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Secured (note a) B (FizEa) - 12,745
Unsecured and guaranteed (note b) IR T A ER (M 5k b) 2,705 2,990
2,705 15,735
Analysed into: DA
Current BNEA 2,705 15,735
Non-current JERNER - -
2,705 15,735
Note a: 5T a:

The Group's bank borrowing of RMB12,745,000 is secured by the Group's investment properties
(note 16) and bore interest at the rate of 5.39% per annum for the year ended 31 December
2020.

During the year, in respect of a bank borrowing with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB12,745,000 as at 31 December 2020, the Group breached certain of the terms of the bank
borrowing, which was primarily attributable to the seizure of pledged investment properties by
the Bureau. On discovery of the breach, the Group has informed the lender and commenced a
renegotiation of the terms of the loan with the relevant banker. As at 31 December 2020, the
negotiation had not been concluded. Since the lender has not agreed to waive its right to
demand immediate payment as at the end of the reporting period, the bank borrowing has
been classified as a current liability as at 31 December 2020.

In November 2021, the Company became aware that the lender has sought and obtained a
PRC civil judgement to discharge the loan agreement and to require the Group and the
guarantor of the bank borrowing, Mr. Zheng, to settle their join and several liability of
approximately RMB12,947,000. Accordingly, the bank borrowing of RMB12,947,000 was
reclassified as other payable as stated in note 22.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

BHE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=1+—AHLLFE KEBEET
& AR 12,745,000 70 R AN &% B % & W 26 (BT 16) #E
o RFRFE539% 5B o

FR - BF—FR_T_TF+_A=+—BEHEEYD
BARME12745000 THRITIERM T » ANEBERR
TEINETERR  FZHAREMEES BHA -
REBERENRN  AEBEBRMNERA @ WRGEERTT
HERERRAETES R _FF+=-A=1+—
B EEEATE BHRERALRAEREELRNEK
HHARERAFERNERN R_ZT_TF+_H
=+—8  ZBTEFRERIAERBEE -

RIB-—F+—f AQRAHNBFERAESRILE
TEFRERABAERBAEETEFODARE

12,947,000 7T ° At + AR¥E 12,947,000 THIERITIEKE
B E AN 22 Tl A H b A FUE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25.

26‘

B BHmRME ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZE=-ZF =

—&EtoA=t—BiLER

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Note b:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has obtained a new bank facility of
RMB3,000,000 from a PRC bank. This bank facility is unsecured and guaranteed by Ms. Guo and
bore fixed interest rate of 9.45% per annum. The new bank facility amounting to RMB3,000,000,
of which RMB2,990,000 had been utilised as at 31 December 2020. As Ms. Guo was held in
custody by the Bureau as detailed in note 1, pursuant to the loan agreement, the bank
borrowing of RMB2,990,000 became immediately repayable.

25.

SRITE R ()
B 5 b:
HE-Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE  ~A5EHE—

AR B SR TS A ER1 TR A AR5 3,000,000 7T © 2 R
TMEAREER BESZTHTER YRETEE
9450518 - FIRTTRLVE BELARHE3,000,0007TH

REZZEZZF+-A=+—HEHH AR 299,000
JT e EBYZZDW&HEE#L HRIBLZETEHD BAE - K

RIBE R - RITERARE 2,990,000 T AR
88 -
The bank borrowings are scheduled to be repaid as follows: RITEFCAEEEBRAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTF T
On demand or within one year BMERSKNR—FA 2,705 3,578
More than one year, but not exceeding two years —F AL BT EBME - 3,719
More than two years, but not exceeding five years — FRELA F + (B RNEIBRF - 6,462
After five years hFEE - 1,976
2,705 15,735
Note:  The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates in the loan agreements. MisE : BIEAGRIE AR Bk Fr i FE AT @ s B HA st
ﬁ )
LEASES 26. HE

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)
The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions from which it
operates. In some jurisdictions it is customary for lease contracts to
provide for payments to increase each year by inflation and in others to be
reset periodically to market rental rates.

The Group also leases motor vehicle, which comprise only fixed payments
over the lease terms.

HETHNHEE (EAEHEAN)

AEBEEGCEMENRZERTEESE
W TR AEERE  HEGHNBRER
TEFZNMERSARS WK ML M-

MRS AhEE R Alg TS 2 E HH
#® o

AEBNEERSE  EE3HHANEE
K -

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK

201



202

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R M ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

26. LEASES (CONTINUED) 26. HE (&)
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) HETHHWMHE EAERBAN)(E)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities and the movement AEEHECEFEAERTANEENT ¢

during the year are as follows:

Lease liabilities HEAE
Other
buildings
leased for
own use
carried Motor
at cost vehicle Total
BRI ER
HEBAK
HiigF RE HEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREFT ARBFL
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF—H—H 6,447 98 6,545
Additions NE 2,041 - 2,041
Disposals k=4 (6,588) (98) (6,686)
Interest expense FEZH 391 - 391
Lease payments HEMNZ 2,116) - 2,116)
Exchange realignment P& 5 % (20) - (20)
At 31 December 2020 and R-ZE-ZTE+-A=+—H
1 January 2021 k=—Z-—F—H—H 155 - 155
Additions NE 529 - 529
Interest expense FEZ 36 - 36
Lease payments HENR (330) - (330)
Exchange realignment fE 5 AR (8) - (8)
At 31 December 2021 WZE-—%+=-A=+—H 382 - 382

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

26. LEASES (CONTINUED) 26. HE (&)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) AEETEHHNMEE EEEABA)(E)
(Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

HEAE(E)
ARBENFKBEBERAT

Minimum

lease
payments Interest Present value
REHEENR ME RE

31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 2021 2021
—B--F —BC-F —B--f
+=A=+-8 +=A=t-8 t=A=t-7
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT ARMET T AR®BTT
Not later than one year TER—F 294 (31) 263
Later than one year and not BR—FENERMF
later than two years 123 (4) 119
Later than two years and not BRAMEETNERASF
later than five years - - -
Later than five years ERhE - - -
At 31 December 2021 RN-ZE-—F+=-A=+—H 417 (35) 382
Minimum
lease
payments Interest Present value
RIEHERT )N BE
31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2020 2020
—ToRF it Sk 32 —B-TF
+tZA=+—H +ZA=+t—8 +ZA=+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT ARETT
Not later than one year TER—F 159 4 155
Later than one year and not BRI —FETERMF
later than two years - - -
Later than two years and not BRMFENERASF
later than five years - - -
Later than five years BRAF - - -
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZTF+-A=+—H 159 @) 155
EMSBBRHERERLAT —Z-—FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R M ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

26. LEASES (CONTINUED) 26. HE (48)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) HETEMMHE (EAEBEAN)(E)
(Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The present value of future lease payments are analysed as:

HERE(E)
ARBEENFRENTR

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETT
Current liabilities mENARE 263 155
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 119 -
382 155
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BA
2021 2020
—E--F e 223
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares Amount shares Amount
EREREA SE  TEREE ©H
000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
TR AR®ETR T ARETT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREE BATHLAk
At 1 January and 31 December R—HA—Bk
+=-A=+—8H 5,000,000 407,450 5,000,000 407,450
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEBE AT AER
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRE
+=-—A=+—8 1,731,433 142,004 1,731,433 142,004

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. UEREERMDAER 2R

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all shareholders on 20
December 2011. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to the eligible participants for their contribution to
the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by
the Group shall not exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in
issue from time to time. The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group to each
grantee in any 12-month period share shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being. Any further grant of
options in excess of the limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meeting.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share
options; (i) the average Hong Kong Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer; and (jii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer.

ARBRBEEEBRER_-_Z—F+_-A
“tHRABBNERRZEREMN —ABERE
T8I ([FERERtE])) - IERERT 8RB /Y
RERNBEAERSEE R AEBEPE
ZER

AR IR B AR AT 81 I AN 5% B P BR A B0 ()
Hip st I R ERKRITEZME
AITEBRERTERY FTREREITZ
B &S8HETFEBARRNRE T
PR 230% » IMIRIR BB T & R AR B
ERE BB R SR 2 BIREETT®
BMBETHAEHTEITTEEARAZK
7 B 1218 A B NS BB A R 7]
BREEITRAZ 1% - BBt EREEM
E-TBRERROASERRERAS
FHbE -

BRENTEERESRETE  EMATER
AT &@E () AR BB R B R
BEIEE BB 2 WHIE () AR A K
MRERRL B AR S ER B
R FWRTE ¢ K i) R R BB R
HE#zEE -

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Equity-settled share option scheme

On 17 December 2015, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
70,000,000 shares of the Company were granted by the Company
to the existing directors and employees of the Group under the
Share Option Scheme (2015 Scheme”). 30% of share options have
an exercise period from 1 June 2016 to 19 December 2021 (“Share
Option 1), 30% of share options have an exercise period from 1
June 2017 to 19 December 2021 (“Share Option 2"); and the
remaining share options have an exercise period from 1 June 2018
to 19 December 2021 (“Share Option 3"). All share options are
subject to the fulfillment of relevant profit targets by the Group, and
share options shall not be vested if any of the profit targets is failed
to meet.

On 15 January 2018, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
90,200,000 shares of the Company were granted by the Company
to the existing directors and employees of the Group under the
Share Option Scheme (2018 Scheme”). 10% of share options have
an exercise period from 1 June 2018 to 14 January 2023 (“Share
Option 4"), 20% of share options have an exercise period from 1
June 2019 to 14 January 2023 (“Share Option 5”), 30% of share
options have an exercise period from 1 June 2020 to 14 January
2023 (“Share Option 6") and the remaining share options (40%) have
an exercise period from 1 June 2021 to 14 January 2023 (“Share
Option 7). All share options are subject to the fulfillment of relevant
profit targets by the Group, and share options shall not be vested if
any of the profit targets is failed to meet.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

(a)

28. t;g%ﬁ%%’ﬂifﬁ%%@Zﬁ%ﬂ

R EERERE
R-ZE—RFE+-_A++H &xAF]
REBRETSRAEEREEER
RERTIERE  ATAEREARAR
70,000,000 8% B 3 ([ =& — A F 7t
) o Hrh30%BRENITFERAE
E—RNEANA—HEZZE-—F+=
BTAB(TERKE) - 30%EAIER
TERAE-ZE—+tFA—BE=Z
——F+=-At+hB(EREI -
M THBRENTERE-_Z—N\F
NA—BEZZT-_—H+=-A+thB
(TEEREMD - FTEBREARFAE
BEENERAFNBIZREAAEE - i
KRECEKBEET BIZ - BIRETSE
FLARRE -

RZZE—-NF—A+HB ' AQFIR
BEBRETHNAERREEERE
ERLERE TAEREARA
90,200,0000% B 5 ([ =& — )\ & &
Bl]) o Hrh10% BRENITESR A
E—N\FERNA—HE2-_E-_=9F—AH
0B (TERRE V) - 200 B M #E B
AERA-Z-AFAAA—BE-ZT
—=ZF—-A+tmB(ERREV])
0% BIRENITHEHAZT TN
A—BZE=Z-_=F—A+WmA(E
A Vi) - R 88 T B8 AR A (40%) O 1T
FHAE-_ZET-_—F<A—HE_Z
—=F—A+mAa ([ER&E ) -
FIEBIREASASEENEHAAT
BEEGIEE - WAREERKEHAR
FIEZE  BRETSTUAES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. LESEEROAER 2T
(CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) (a) HERLEHEBIRESTE(8)
Details of the specific categories of options are as follows: SEEREREFBIT
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Vesting conditions
R BH HEAH Ggd: HE BBEHRYE
HKS
BT
Share Option 1 17 December 2015 31 May 2016 1 June 2016 to 1046 Profit after income tax (but before share-
B —T-1F —E-RF 19 December 2021 based payment expenses) according to the
+=A+tH AA=+—H ZE—RF audited consolidated financial statements of
NA—HE the Company for the year ended 31 December
“E-—-F 2015
TZAThH

—  Equal to or more than RMB35 million,
100% of Share Option 1 shall be
vested:

—  Equal to or more than RMB25 million
but less than RMB35 million, 50% of
Share Option 1 shall be vested; and

— Less than RMB25 million, no Share
Option 1 shall be vested.

BREARRHE_Z-RFt_A=1—
B FENERREAMBRE - BAE
B (B ARMBRB RS R A

—  AERAEZRARESHET:
RIEBBRRE /) 100% :

—  HASREZRARES BELR
PRARESS BEL BERE
BRI 50% &

— DRARBESHET IBEER
BRI -

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Date of grant

RHAMS

(#&)
(a)

Vesting date
BEAHS

Exercise period

i

Exercise price
TR

HKS

BT

28. IERGEEROA/ER ZHX

ESEERRESS (R)

Vesting conditions

BERME

17 December 2015
1%
+=A+tA

Share Option 2
B

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

1 June 2017 to
19 December 2021
“E—+F
NA—HE
—E-—F

+ZAthA

31 May 2017 1046
“T—+tF

AA=+—H

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

Profit after income tax (but before share-based
payment expenses) according to the audited
consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December
2016

—  Equal to or more than RMB65 million,
100% of Share Option 2 shall be
vested;

—  Equal to or more than RMB50 million
but less than RMB65 million, 50% of
Share Option 2 shall be vested; and

— Less than RMB25 million, no Share
Option 2 shall be vested.

BREARRHE-Z-—"Ft-A=1—
AUFENEEREEMBRE  RAE
B (B ARMBRB R ) &R A

—  HERIEZRARBGHET:
BIESBERIE I/ 100% ;

—  HERIZRARB0EERLE
PRANRESHEL HIEABE
BRI I850% : R

—  DORARESHERL BHER
B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

28. LIERGEERODA/ER ZHR

(CONTINUED) (&)
(@) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) (a) ERLEBIRESTS(E)
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Vesting conditions
R B BEAH Cigd THE BEHRYE
HKS
BT
Share Option 3 17 December 2015 31 May 2018 1June 2018 to 1046 Profit after income tax (but before share-based
BN 1% —ZN\E 19 December 2021 payment expenses) according to the audited
+=ZA++tA AA=+—-H ZE-N\F consolidated financial statements of the
NA—HE Company for the year ended 31 December
“E--F 2017
TZA+HH

SRR IERERAR

—  Equal to or more than RMB100 million,
100% of Share Option 3 shall be
vested;

—  Equal to or more than RMB80 million
but less than RMB100 million, 50% of
Share Option 3 shall be vested; and

— Less than RMB80 million, no Share
Option 3 shall be vested.

BREARAHE-Z—tHFt-A=1—
HUFENERLEAMBERE - BAE
B (B ARMBRB FREAS) R A

—  HERIZRAREI0EET
AR5 B B 111 69 100%

—  ASERIEZRARBOEELE
PRARBI0EETL BIERE
BRI 11 /Y 50% : J%

—  JORAREOBEET
BEERREN -

RBAR

—EC-FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R M ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

28.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Date of grant

RHAMS

Vesting date
BEAHS

Exercise period

i

28. IERGEEROA/AER ZHRK

(#&)
(a)

Exercise price
TR

HKS

BT

ESEERRESS (R)

Vesting conditions

BERME

Share Option 4
BN

15 January 2018
—E-N\F
—AthA

1 June 2018 to
14 January 2023
“E-N\F
~NA—RZE
“EC=F
—A+mA

31 May 2018
—E-N\F
AA=1-H

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

0.842

Profit after income tax (but before share-based
payment expenses) according to the audited
consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December
2017

—  Equal to or more than RMB100 million,
100% of Share Option 4 shall be
vested;

—  Equal to or more than RMB80 million
but less than RMB100 million, 50% of
Share Option 4 shall be vested; and

— Less than RMB80 million, no Share
Option 4 shall be vested.

REARRHE-Z—tHFt-A=1—
AUFENEEREEMBRE  RAE
B (B ARMBRB R ) &R A

—  HERIZRAREI0EET
AR5 B RBARAE IV #)100% :

—  HSRIZRAREOEELE
PRAREI0EETL BIERE
BRI IV B9 50% 5 T2

— JIRARB0BET MBER
BRBEY -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. LESEEROAER 2T
(CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) (a) HERLEHEBIRESTE(8)
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Vesting conditions
R B BEAH Cigd iEE BEGYE
HKS
BT
Share Option 5 15 January 2018 31 May 2019 1 June 2019to 0842 Profit after income tax (but before share-based
kY —E-N\E —Z-NF 14 January 2023 payment expenses) according to the audited
—A+&A AA=+—-H ZE-NF consolidated financial statements of the
NA—HE Company for the year ended 31 December
ZE-=F 2018
—A+mA

—  Equal to or more than RMB150 million,
100% of Share Option 5 shall be
vested;

—  Equal to or more than RMB100 million
but less than RMB150 million, 50% of
Share Option 5 shall be vested; and

— Less than RMB100 million, no Share
Option 5 shall be vested.

REFAREE-Z-\F+_A=1—
HUFENERLEAMBERE - BAE
B (B ARMBRB FREAS) R A

—  HERISZRAREISEET
AI/AGBRARIE VA 100% :

—  HEERIZAAREI0BETR
PRAREIS0EETL BIERE
SRRRAEV A9 500% ¢ ]2

—  LPRARKI00BETL AIBER
BEEMREY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Date of grant

RHAMS

Vesting date
BEAH

Exercise period

i

28. IERGEEROA/AER ZHRK

(%)

Exercise price
TR

HKS

BT

Vesting conditions

BERME

Share Option 6
BREV

15 January 2018
—E-N\F
—AthA

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

1 June 2020 to

14 January 2023
St 23
NA—HZ
—F_=f
—R+mA

31 May 2020
—E-FE

—R ==

TA=+—H

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

0.842

Profit after income tax (but before share-based
payment expenses) according to the audited
consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December
2019

—  Equal to or more than RMB200 million,
100% of Share Option 6 shall be
vested;

—  Equal to or more than RMB150 million
but less than RMB200 million, 50% of
Share Option 6 shall be vested; and

— Less than RMB150 million, no Share
Option 6 shall be vested.

REFAREE_Z-NEF+T_A=1—
AUFENEEREEMBRE  RAE
B (B ARMBRB R ) &R A

—  HERISZRARE00HET
AR5 B RBARAE VI #)100%

—  HEERIZARAREISOBEELR
PRARE00EETL BIERE
BBRIE VI B 50% 5 It

—  ORAREISOEET:
BEREY

AlBRR
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

28. LIERGEERODA/ER ZHR

(#&)
(a)

EEEERRESS (R)

Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price  Vesting conditions
BB BEAHS TEH TEE BEE4G
HKS
BT
Share Option 7 15 January 2018 31 May 2021 1 June 2021 to 0842 Profit after income tax (but before share-based
BRI —E-N\E —E—-F 14 January 2023 payment expenses) according to the audited
—A+&A AA=+—-H ZE=-F consolidated financial statements of the
NA—HE Company for the year ending 31 December
“EC-=F 2020
—A+mA

—  Equal to or more than RMB250 million,
100% of Share Option 7 shall be
vested;

—  Equal to or more than RMB200 million
but less than RMB250 million, 50% of
Share Option 7 shall be vested; and

— Less than RMB200 million, no Share
Option 7 shall be vested.

BREARAHE_Z_TFE+_A=1—
HUFENERREAMBRE - RAE
B (B ARMBRB RS R A

—  HERISRARESEET
ARSI BBARAE VI 9 100% :

—  HERIZRARE00HELE
PIARENIEETL  HIERE
BERRREVIIBY50% ¢}

—  DORARE200EET BHBER
BRI -

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

28. t;g%ﬁ.%ﬁﬂiﬁ%%@Zﬁ%ﬁ

Set out below are details of movements of the outstanding options

granted under the Share Option Scheme during the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020:

(a)

R EBRESTE (&)

TREFEEZZE - —FRZFT=F
FH+- A=+ BIEFERIEERE
TR MM ARITEBREN E e

e
Number of share options
BREHE

Outstanding

asat
QOutstanding 31 December Outstanding
asat Addition Exercised Lapsed 2020and  Addition  Exercised Lapsed asat
Bxercise 1 January during during during 1January during during during 31 December
price 2020 the year theyear  the year* 2021 the year theyear theyear* 2021

R

ZRCEE
+=A R
N =t-8R “BZ-F
Z%2%% —g--f% tZh
—A-H -B-EH =+-§
nRE  mAE  FRFE EROR FAXNT MAGE  ERRE  ERAE ERAM*  HERGOE

2015 Scheme —E-TEHE
Directors g2 HKS1.046 870 18500000 - - (5000000 18,000,000 - - (18,000,000) -
Employees €8 HKSTO46787C 25000000 - -~ (4000000% 21,000,000 - - (21,000,000) -
2018 Scheme it SIE

Directors g2 HKS0842/87 10350000 - - (3810000) 6,540,000 - - (5500,000) 1,040,000
Employees €8 HKS0842/87 35730000 - - (17610000 18,120,000 - - (16,060,000 2,060,000
Total a5t 89,580,000 - - (259200000 63,660,000 - - (60,560,000) 3,100,000

Lapsed share options were resulted from (i) the resignation of employees; (i) a

failure by the employees to satisfy the vesting conditions for the respective

years; and (iii) expiry of the exercise period of the options.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

28. LIERGEERODA/ER ZHR

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
Share options and weighted average exercise price are as follows

(#&)
(a)

EEsERERETS (&

HE A R R AEFHTTEE

for the reporting periods presented: 5T -
2021 2020

—E--F —ECEE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
InREF INHETFH
# A T8 A 1TEfE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BRHEARTE 63,660,000 0.967 89,580,000 0.941
Granted 254 - - _ _
Exercised BT - - _ _
Lapsed BRI (60,560,000) 0.973 (25,920,000) 0877
Outstanding at 31 December R+ZA=+—H#HAX{TE 3,100,000 0.842 63,660,000 0967
Exercisable at the end of the year  TAFE R AJT{E 3,100,000 0.842 59,796,000 0.996

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1 year (2020: 1.4 years) and the
exercise price of HK$0.842 (2020: HK$0.967).

FREARTTEE A R0 HIAE T 19 R
EBHHER/IF(ZT_FF 14

F) {1FEEAR82ETT

1 0967787TT) °

SRR IERERAR

—TE—F

—= =

—EC-FEH

215



216

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
2015 Scheme

The total fair value of the share options under 2015 Scheme at the
grant date on 17 December 2015 was HK$43,472,000. The following
information is relevant in the determination of the fair value of
options.

28. t;g%ﬁ%%’ﬂifﬁ%%@Zﬁ%ﬂ

Rt ERERESE (E)
—E-HFFE
RZE—RAF+-_A+tHEEEAB
) BT -REE 0 BRE
Z N (B 4A5E 543,472,000 JT © LA
TEAEHETCERENAFENE
e

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Share Share Share Weighted

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 average

BB BREN FBREm InfE¥13

Option pricing model used 5 AR B i e (B AR A Binomial

option pricing

ZIHARREEE

Fair value per option at R BB E0 ERE HKSO51IT  HKS057/87T  HKS062787T  HKS0.5727%8 7T
grant date ZAYE

Exercise price (B HKS1.046 78 7T

Contractual life BHHIR 6 years F

Expected volatility BER IR 83%

Expected dividend rate B B K -

Risk-free interest rate 13 b | &

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns, is based on a statistical analysis of daily
share prices over the last three years. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no share option
expenses was recognised in expense in relation to share options
under 2015 Scheme.

Of the total number of share options outstanding as at 31
December 2020, no share option had not vested and were not
exercisable as at 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the outstanding
share options under 2015 Scheme had expired on 19 December
2021, end of the exercise period.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

1.17%

RIERT B fE B RV R R = R B AR
BRRVIRBEBE=FFBRENG
AHBEOMAESL - THBARE
BRERHEF A gEH N FEMTEKE

2 48
-2

HEe_Z - FR-_T-_FTF+_H4
—t+—BHLFE BER-_T—AF
STEIFTS B RRAE 2 A S MR AR M
E‘Zo

W=B-BHE+=A=+—BMHK
TR R B o+ LA
—EoEF+- A=+ ARERE
AT -

HE_Z-—F+-_H=1T—HLF
B ZZE—hFFEBETRERTE
EREER —_E-_—F+-A+hB
(FTEHAER ) B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR M (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z%E

R —F+ZA=+—BILFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a)
2018 Scheme

The total fair value of the share options under 2018 Scheme at the
grant date on 15 January 2018 was RMB31,850,000. The following
information is relevant in the determination of the fair value of

options.

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

28. LIERGEERODA/ER ZHR

(#&)
(a)

R EBRESTE (&)
—E-N\F5d
RZE—NF—A+HAEEA
) BIE-_T— N\FiE - BIRE
2 A HERRE A AR 31,850,0007T °
LUTRBEHEETERENATENE
o

Share Share Share Share Weighted

Option 4 Option 5 Option 6 Option7 average

BRENV fBREV BREVI  BREW MY

Option pricing model used FRNERETEER Binomial

option pricing

EERTERE

Fairvalue peroptionat grant date MR AEASMHERE  HK026/8T  HKS030TT  HKS033EL  HKS035IL  HKS033 87T
ZAYTE

Exercise price T HKS0842 78T

Contractual life BHHR 5 years

Expected volatility EHKE 59%

Expected dividend rate EHREE 2%

Risk-free interest rate BB X 167%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns, is based on a statistical analysis of daily
share prices over the last three years. Changes in the subjective

input assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no share option
expenses was recognised in expense in relation to share options

under 2018 Scheme.

Of the total number of share options outstanding as at 31
December 2021, no share option had not vested and were not

exercisable as at 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

SRR IERERAR

RIERT BB B R AR R = R B AR
RRRVIRBEBE=FFBRENG
AHEEOMAESL - THBARE
BRERHEF A gEE N FE[BTEKE

2 48
-2 X

HEe_Z - FR-_ZT-_FTF+_H4
=+—BIEE HBER -_T—N\F
ST & 2 BN TE R ST N RE R B A i
S‘Zo

R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HHMHAK
TEBRESEESR  HEBRER
—E-—F+-_A=Z+—HKRER
B TRETFE(ZZE_ZFF: 8
) e

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. UREREEROGABER AR
(CONTINUED) (#&)

(b) UEZEHEZRBEELN

(b) Equity-settled service contract

On 17 December 2015, the Company entered into separate services
contracts with 5 individual advisors (the “2015 Advisors”) to provide
advisory services to the Group for six years. In consideration of the
services provided by the 2015 Advisors, the Company granted in a
total of 6,000,000 share options to them.

Set out below are details of the share options granted to the 2015
Advisors:

(i) All share options are granted with an exercise price of
HKS$1.046 per share;

(i) All holders of share options have to follow the vesting date,
vesting conditions and exercise period under 2015 Scheme
as mentioned in note 28(a);

(i) 6,000,000 share options were lapsed during the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: nil). There were no exercised share
options as at 31 December 2020; and

(iv)  All of the outstanding share options had expired on 19
December 2021, end of the exercise period.

The total fair values of the share options granted to the 2015
Advisors on 17 December 2015 were approximately RMB3,000,000.
These fair values were based on the terms and conditions stated in
the service contracts.

On 15 January 2018, the Company entered into separate services
contracts with 6 individual advisors (the “2018 Advisors”) to provide
advisory services to the Group for five years. In consideration of the
services provided by the 2018 Advisors, the Company granted in a
total of 7,800,000 share options to them.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

RZE—RAFF+=A++tH ' AQFH
HREAZEABRR(—E—HEE
) st A S BR M AR N F AR
REETIBIREEN - EBZ
—AFBERRERBHORE A7
M\ E R H A 36,000,000 17 BE AL -

TXEINET -_ZE-RFBRRANER
RIS -

() FBEEROBRENITEREY
BEM1.046 8T

iy FMIBEBRERAAGXHE
8@ — T —HEFER
BEH - BERGFRITERR
PR

(i) 600000010 FERERBE_Z
T+ - A=+—HIEE
KU(ZEZZF T) - R
T_TFE+_A=+—H " #
W EEITE &

vy FIBRTEBREDR -F
——FtZATNABGTEEE
RZBF) [ o

R-Z—RF+-A+tA HF=
FTRAFERNBREN D FERE
M AREE3,0000007C © ZERFE
THAR R B 755 & 40 P 8K 16 5K B AR 4 5t

= o
o

RZZF—-NF—A+HB  KRQFH
RIEEANZBAABEB(ZE—N\FE
D st AR EERE AR F AR
RIEFI BRI EH - EA=Z
—NEFEBREREHRE  AQF
A 4R A $£ 7,800,000 17 B AL -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. UERGZERMDAER ZMAR
(CONTINUED) (#&)

(b) UESEHEZBRBESN (&)

(b) Equity-settled service contract (Continued)

Set out below are details of the share options granted to the 2018
Advisors:

0) All share options are granted with an exercise price of
HKS$0.842 per share;

(i) All holders of share options have to follow the vesting date,
vesting conditions and exercise period under 2018 Scheme
as mentioned in note 28(a);

(i) 3,120,000 share options were lapsed during the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: 2,340,000). There were no exercised
share options as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The total fair values of the share options granted to the Advisors on
15 January 2018 were RMB2,535,000. These fair values were based
on the terms and conditions stated in the service contracts.

The weighted average exercise price of the share options under
2018 Scheme is HK$0.842 per share (2020: under both 2015 Scheme
and 2018 Scheme is HK$0.931 per share) and the weighted average
remaining contractual life is 1 year (2020: under both 2015 Scheme
and 2018 Scheme is 1.6 years).

No expense was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021
in relation to share options granted by the Company to the 2015
Advisors and 2018 Advisors (2020: nil).

SRR IERERAR

TXHEIETF _ZE—-N\FEMNER
RIS -

() FBEERHBRENITEEY
B 0842TT

iy FMBEBRESAABXHE
28@) Fity — T — \F5H 8B
B BERAFRTEHR
PR

iy BEZZE-_—F+ZH="1—
B 1t [ A 3,120,000 17 B A% #E
LR ( = F = F 4 : 2,340,000
B RZBEZ—FR=-FT=-F

RIETTRE -

RZE—NF—A+HB  BTZE
FERBRENA T EEEAARE
2,535,000 7T © 25~ FETIRE RS
BRI RIEHETE -

ZE— \FEE TR AR A ik
HIFEEAEERSNEBTL(ZE-Z
F:ZE-RAFHEIR=ZZT—N\F5
2T AER0931EIT) » INEFY
Fer B WHBRABIF(ZE_ZFF
TE-REHEE T N\FHET
HE164F) o

MERARATEF - —AFEME
2 \FEENBRERREE
E-_—F+-_A=t+—BIFENH
X(ZEZEF &\ o

—EC-FEH
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

29. AT BMBARR R

COMPANY
2021 2020
—¥=—F ZF2F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M ARET ARET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRRIMIRE 2 48,257
Amounts due from subsidiaries il N NS B 91,456 134,265
91,458 182,522
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR R J o R YR IR = 103
Cash and cash equivalents RekBESEEHEE 1,541 120
1,541 223
Current liabilities REAERE
Accruals and other payables fEETE A M E b RN 08 8,437 7451
Amount due to a shareholder FERE SR FRIE - 12,409
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERBT B A BRI 133,661 135,366
Dividend payable FEAT R B, 103 106
142,201 155,332
Net current liabilities REEESEE (140,660) (155,109)
Total assets less current liabilities BEABERRBERS (49,202) 27413
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS BE(BE) F8 (49,202) 27413
EQUITY R
Share capital % 27 142,004 142,004
Reserves B 30(b) (191,206) (114,591)
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE (49,202) 27413

On behalf of the Board of directors

Zhang Gongjun
RAME
Executive Director

HITEF

Leung Man Kit

R

Executive Director

HITEF

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

REEFS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR M (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &

30. RESERVES

(@) Group

Details of the movements on the Group's reserve are as set out in

g =my T —asga T IRl = S = et

30. {#E

(a)

REHE

AEEFEEDNFBHNGREES

the consolidated statement of changes in equity. BH)R o
(b) Company (b) AT
Share
Share Exchange option Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
RDEE ERiffE BRERE BB ok
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARETT AR®TT ARET:
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZT5—-HA—H 217853 12435 28,013 (366,662) (108,361)
Loss for the year EEEIE - - - (7.343) (7343)
Exchange difference translating BN EBRHRENESR
foreign operation =5 - 1113 - - 1,113
Total comprehensive income FEZRNGEE
for the year - 1113 - (7,343) (6,230)
Share options lapsed (note 28) B R R B (P 5E28) - - 2,727) 2727 -
At 31 December 2020 and RZZE-TF+_A
1 January 2021 =+—Bk
—E-_—%—HF—H 217,853 13,548 25,286 (371,278) (114,591)
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (93,061) (93,061)
Exchange difference translating BINEBRERE K
foreign operation =5 - 1,957 - - 1,957
Total comprehensive income FEEANTZESE
for the year - 1,957 - (93,061) (91,104)
Share options lapsed (note 28) B R R B (P 3% 28) - - (24,219) 24,219 -
Waiver amount due to a shareholder 445 [ {1 iR 52 448 - - - 14,489 14,489
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+ZRA=1t—H 217,853 15,505 1,067 (425,631) (191,206)
EHSBBEERERAT —T-—F5%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

30. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Share premium

Share premium account of the Company and Group
represents the excess of the proceeds received over the
nominal value of the Company's shares issued.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Reorganisation and represents the difference between the
nominal value of the registered capital and capital reserve of
Guangdong Huijin and the nominal value of the shares of the
Company issued pursuant to the Reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the
Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit after tax (after
offsetting any prior years' losses) determined in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to
the statutory reserve until the balance of the reserve fund
reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital. The statutory
reserve can be utilized to offset prior years’ losses or to
increase capital, provided the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve is not less than 25% of registered capital.

Exchange reserve
Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

(o fREfE
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

30 f#fE (&)

MMEE R AZ

gria]

AR R AL B e B 4 B AR
BEMAEFRBREBLEARFD
BT EERESE -

BptRE
AEENAHHEFEREEME
A REERESTEMEARARE
AEEOHERARRREE
MBETHRNDMEE RN E
B o

EEME

RIBRBERQRDE  ARARRH
B A 1 A B B A &) 7B 2 10%
BIEFE ARG RAETE
FREETHRIRE R (IR
BT FERIE) B A TR
BEERBOABENRERT
& A H50% & LE » K EREE
AN B EFEEESA
RIGE - AT RENSRET
B LR M E A 25% o

B
PE X BB RSB RRIEINE
BHREMELNMEEN Z5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

30. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 30. f## (%)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) () REENMHERAZE(E)

(v) Share option reserve (v) MBRREREE
Share option reserve represents the cumulative expenses EREREENGERERE
recognised on the granting of share options to the directors, T EERERELBRER
employees and advisors over the vesting period. R BETHX o

(vi) Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) (vi) REEF,(RsTEE)
The amount represents accumulative net gains and losses ZRIBERERERN R
recognised in profit or loss. wmREERE o

(vii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (vii) SFAEME2ERERBHNAF
reserve &
Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve FEAH A 2 E W R R AT
comprises all gains/losses arising on the revaluation of BEEEEATFESAEMEER
financial assets at FVOCI. WaEHNEREESHEENM

Bl EA -

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. B A AlEE

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEMBRATMFBTEINNT

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Description of
fully paid up
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered ownership interest's/
Name establishment  Place of operation and principal activities capital held voting rights/profit share
iEeiREs
e/ BrBx/ fiERRE/
£R HE BEBURIERY AMERRE R/ NBEIREAM
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
Limited liability company
EREALT
Mega Rising Investment Ltd Hong Kong Provision of financial consultation services 1 share HKS1 - 100%
in Hong Kong
RARERRAT B ERAREIBERRE 1R1%Er
Sunny Sino Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and provision of 1share HKS1 - 100%
otherloan services in Hong Kong
HZEEERAT B REBRREFEREAMETRE 1R1E
Flying Investment The PRC Provision of financial consultation and HKS$50,000,000 - 100%
investment income services in the PRC
EBRE i ERERMM KRR RRERARE 500000007
Qianhai Flying Financial PRC Service The PRC Provision of financial consultation services HK$300,000,000 - 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited inthe PRC
ASER BRE (R BRAR G EhERHNBERRE 3000000007
Huilian E-Home Internet Financial Services The PRC Provision of financial consultation services - - 90%
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd inthe PRC
EWSZLHEERRE (RINARRR ErERHNBERRE -
Profit Success Technology Limited The BVI Investment holding company in the BVI U1 51% -
Profit Success Technology Limited AEERRES ARARRNSNREBRAT 1T

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited



Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)
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31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &

31. B AFE (&)

TEMBRATANFEHIINT : (&)

Description of
fully paid up
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered ownership interest's/
Name establishment  Place of operation and principal activities capital held voting rights/profit share
fisE Ry
EMEL/ BrBx/ fiekEs/
£ R BEBRRTEER AMEARRE R/ NBIREAL
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
Shenzhen Flying Financial Internet The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB50,000,000 = 51%
Financial Services Corporation
AImER I RELRREARAR i EhERMIEERRE AR 500000007
Shenzhen Huilian Huishenghuo Intemet The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC - - 63%
Financial Services Limited
AIMEREEZRRRLBRBERAR EhERHNBERRE -
Shenzhen Huilian Huiyoufang Intemet Financial ~ The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB7,000,000 - 63%
Services Limited
MIMEREFEERRCRRHRERAR TR BERER AR 70000007
Zhongxi Rongzi Zulin (Shangha) Limited The PRC Provision of finance lease services RMB200,000,000 - 100%
inthe PRC
hERAEE(LE)ARRA i ERERMBERERE AR 200000000 7T
Le Dao Internet Media (Shenzhen) Limited The PRC Provision of finance consultation services in the PRC RMB3,000,000 - 54%
LEERBER(RI)ERAT el EhERHNBERRE AR 30000007
Shenzhen Huidun Technology Company Ltd. The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB20,000,000 - 8%
AITEENSARLT i EhERMIBEARE AR 200000007
Zhongxi Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Limited  The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%
hERERA(LE)ERAT el EhERHNBERRE ARH100000007T
Huilian Technology Data Service ( The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB20,000,000 - 90%
Shenzhen) Limited
BRI EE R (R BRAR q: ErERMMBERRE ARH200000007T
EMSRREERERLR TR -FER
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e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31. B A RIS (&)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

TEMBRATANFEHIINT : (&)

Description of
fully paid up
Place of share capital/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered ownership interest's/
Name establishment  Place of operation and principal activities capital held voting rights/profit share
fisERY
e/ BRRA/ fiekEs/
£ R BEBRREEEYR EREAZE FE/ABIREA
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
Huilian Yuanjing Investment Management The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%
(Beijing) Limited
ERERREER (IR ARAA G R ERAI KBRS AR 10000000 7T
Shenzhen Qianhai Yuanbo Financial Service The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB5,000,000 - 70%
Limited
MITRETHSRREARAR # B R R AR 50000007
Zhuhai Huilian Zhitou Technology The PRC Provision of financial consultation services in the PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%
Service Limited
REERERMEREARAR G EhERENBERRE ARH10000000 7T
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the BEERA LR Z2ARNRMNBE AR EHAR
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or SEAFEXEEEATESEAEEE
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details EFEIERRD EFSRAMILE
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in B AR ZER  BERBIEBNILE -

particulars of excessive length.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Profit Success Technology Limited, a 51% owned subsidiary of the Group,
has material non-controlling interests (“NCI"). All other NCI of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries are considered as immaterial.

Summarised financial information of Profit Success Group, for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, subsequent to acquisition and before
intra-group eliminations, is presented below on a consolidated basis:

32, FERES

FAS1%EREAMEBRR) EAEAIFER
([ IR ER]) - k2 EMB AN
PIA M IR R TR R TEK -

RWEZEEBE AR R KR S MEAT
Profit Success R BHE T - —F K LT
EF+ A=+ —HULEFENMBERE
BIRIRAFEEZHWT ¢

2021 2020
—E-F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFT
For the year ended 31 December BE+=-RA=+—HILEE
Revenue B - =
Loss for the year FEEE (189) (4,361)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEIHmKREEE (54,318) 9,468
(Loss)/Profit allocated to NCI DT IR ER N (BB), S5 F (93) 4,639
Accumulated non-controlling interests R IR (26,616) 4,382
For the year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HLFE
Cash outflows from operating activities K EFHEE R (282) (4,534)
Cash inflows from investing activities KREFEBRSRA (9) 3
Cash inflows from financing activities BEEBR SN 301 4,401
As at 31 December R+=—A=+-—H
Current assets mENEE 2,150 2,331
Non-current assets ERBEE 98 54,227
Current liabilities mENBE (3,401) (3394)
Non-current liabilities FEMEBERE - -
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE)  EEFH (1,153) 53,164

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

33. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group does not have other material related party transactions during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Compensation of key management personnel
The emoluments of directors who are also identified as members of key
management of the Group during the year are set out in note 11(a).

34. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash addition to right-of- use
assets and lease liabilities of approximately RMB529,000 respectively,
in respect of the lease arrangement of the office buildings.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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34.

BELTHKE

BRGEVBRESBEREEN  AEERE
EE_—FR-_FBE_ZEF+_A=+—
ALFETEEMEABELRS -

FEEBEBASZHE
RAFEE  TEBRASEIEZEEEKXE
MEZENMESERE 116 -

REREREBRME

(a) EXFBRERS
FR - AKERPLEFHENTEE
ZHMEGEAEEERTEEREE
REIE MM A REE 529,0007T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

34. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

34. GERTRERMTE (F)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) METBFELANEBZEHIER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from TRFAVNAEBEHREEBFIELARN
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. BE2E DRSS NIEREE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which BB EETEEN BB ZBERKNEK
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's ReERsYNAEBRRMETHTRE
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities. EHRERARE -
Loan Amount Total
from duetoa Bank Lease liabilities from
adirector  shareholder  borrowings Dividends liabilities financing
(note 24) (note 20) (note 25) payable (note 26) activities
REES BEEE
ZEF  EfRERE RS HESR FREEH
(K& 24) (M3 20) (M3 25) ERRE  (Wii2e) BE4E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AREFR  ARETR  ARETR
At January 2021 WoE-—%-f-B - 11,506 15,735 106 155 27,502
Changes from cash flowss: Renesy:
Advance from a director EEEE 2,904 - - - - 2,904
Repayment of bank borrowings BEROER - - (285) - - (285)
Lease payment RERR - - - - (204) (204)
Interest paid BITFIE - - - - (36) (36)
Payment of nterest on bank borrowings STRITER A S - - (192) - - (192)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERLRERDLE 2,904 - (477) - (330 2,097
Other changes: EhEE:
Effective interest expense ERFEHR - - 192 - 36 228
Exchange adjustments ERA% (42) Iy] - (3 8) 370
Additions of leases BEEN - - - - 529 529
Transferto other payable ERZERERTA - - (12,745) - - (12,745)
Walver of amount due to a shareholder HEENERHE - (11,929) - - - (11,929)
Totel other changes EHEDEE (#2) (11,506) (12,553) B) 557 (23,547)
At31 December 2021 RZE--F
TZA=t-H 2,862 - 2,705 103 382 6,052
EHSRBEERERAT —Z—F5H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R M ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

34. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

34. GERTRERME (F)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

(b) MEEBFELENEBZHIR

activities (Continued) (&)
Total
Amount Bank Lease liabilities from
duetoa borrowings Dividends liabilities financing
shareholder (note 25) payable (note 26) activities
BEED
RITIER MERRE FTEEM
FERTRE IR (Bk25) FEfRT AR 2 (K3k26) AEES
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:
At 1 January 2020 RZZZZF-A-AH 13442 14360 113 6,545 34,460
Changes from cash flows: RemEEy
Advance from a shareholder RE 4436 - - - 4436
Repayment to a shareholder BERTHREA (5676) - - - (5,676)
Repayment of bank borrowings 1@ BRITER - (5,345) - - (5,345)
Proceeds from bank borrowings ROTERAEIE - 6,720 - - 6,720
Lease payment HEMNR - - - (1,725) (1,725)
Interest paid BRFE - - - (391) (391)
Payment of interest on bank borrowings 3¢ (R TR ZEIF S - (793) - - (793)
Total changes from financing cash flows BB B &R S8hi % (1,240) 582 - 2,116) 2,774)
Other changes: Hib 28 -
Effective interest expense ERFISHY - 793 - 391 1184
Exchange adjustments R A (696) - 7 (20) (723)
Additions of leases mERN - - - 2,041 2,041
Derecognition of leases RIBERAE - - - (6,686) (6,686)
Total other changes B @shesg (696) 793 ) (4,274) (4,184)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z_ZHF
TZA=t-H 11,506 15,735 106 155 27,502
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e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

35. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 35. R ERIE oW REER SR
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEHSE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as FHECoRTENREHHNEREEREBERT -
at the reporting date are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F S 3
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
SREE NYE REE NFE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥TR ARETT ARETR
Financial assets cTREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRNEREE
— Equity investments —ERRE 67,172 67,172 231,351 231,351
— Debt investments —EBRE - - 31,808 31,808
Financial assets at FVOC| BRTEFARMEEREL
— Equity investments —ERRE - - 54,129 54,129
Financial assets at amortised cost RREKAHE SREE
— Loans and accounts receivables — B R ENEER 5,156 5,156 19,896 19,896
— Deposits and other receivables —Re R HEMEWRIE 936 936 3,956 3,956
— Amount due from a non-controlling interest  — fE Ut JE% AR IE 25 FUB 1 1 1 1
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekReEEER 14,086 14,086 7,324 7,324
Financial liabilities tREE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost IR EMAF E 7 SR AE
— Accruals and other payables —EtBA R EMEN IR 65,777 65,777 45689 45689
— Loan from a director —KREEEZER 2,862 2,862
— Amount due to a shareholder — B EZE - - 11,506 11,506
— Dividend payable — ERRE 103 103 106 106
— Bank borrowings —RITER 2,705 2,705 15,735 15,735
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 382 382 155 155

SRR IERERAR

—FER
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise financial asset at
amortised cost, financial assets at FVTPL, financial assets at FVOCI, loans
and accounts receivables, deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, accruals and other payables, lease liabilities, amounts due to a
shareholder, loan from a director, amount due from a non-controlling
interest and bank borrowings. These financial instruments mainly arise
from its operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments approximated
their fair values as at the reporting date. Fair value estimates are made at a
specific point in time and based on relevant market information on the
financial instruments.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and
matters of significant judgment, and therefore cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. As the Group's
exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum, the Group has not used any
derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does
not hold or issue any derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The board of directors of the Company reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 36. KRR ERE (&)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair value or future
cash flows of financial instruments which arise from changes in interest
rates. Floating interest rate instruments will result in the Group facing the
risk of changes in market interest rate.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balance, interest-bearing bank borrowing and lease liability. The Group
currently does not have a policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
The interest bearing bank borrowing and lease liability bear floating
interest rates and are denominated in RMB.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for variable-rate bank borrowing. The analysis is prepared
assuming that the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding at the end
of each of the reporting periods were outstanding for the whole year. 100
basis points increase or decrease represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in the interest rates of borrowing.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent interest rate risk as the exposures at the end of the reporting
periods do not reflect the exposures during the years.

If interest rates on bank borrowing at the end of reporting period had
been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the potential effect on the Group's post-tax loss/profit for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follow:

I == 2 By
MERBENEEESEXN T ANR T
BERARRRERERBNRER < FEFIE
TEKBRASEEREMSHNEZSHNER
Bax o

AEEmREBESRITAER  SHERTT
ERREERENFRER K% B Al
Iﬁﬁfﬁ TRMEBH A EERAOBREK - R
’ Eii%ﬁf’%*ljﬁﬂ % WKERRE
B EAN KRR o 7 BRITER
&%H%EELX/%@J?’NJ/W&M C W AARE
FIfE -

AT #EED *ﬁ)ﬁ@?ﬂ%/ﬁz BIRITRERZH
KEBMETE - DMHEHDIBRREER
RERSHRHREERENSBEEME
FREARAKEE - 100 £ IR I5E
BERERN RN R IE R RS -

EBERB ARBERRZARTFR
MERZER  HEBEEITFREES
FlsE @S o

MR RS HAR A ERITIE AR L7+ &

T00 &R MATEEMAIZEAEERFTE
WHAEBRBEE T - —FAN T -_FF
ToA=t+—BULFERIEEER HF
REEREMT -

2021 2020
—E--F —ZT-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETT

(Increase)/decrease in loss for the year FAEEGEM), R
As a result of an increase in interest rate — EF & A mEE (20) (96)
As a result of a decrease in interest rate — EF R PR M E B 20 %

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

As the Group's revenue and expenses are mainly in RMB which is the
functional currency of most of the entities making up the Group, the
currency risk resulting from the Group's daily operations is considered not
significant. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
and FVOCI decrease as a result of changes in the levels of the equity price
of unlisted equity investments. The Group was exposed to equity price risk
arising from unlisted equity securities in the PRC classified as financial
assets at FVTPL and FVOCI as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. All of these
investments are unquoted securities.

All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term strategic
purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-annually against the
performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited information
available to the Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to
the Group's long term strategic plans.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change in
the fair values of the Group’s equity investments of which the directors of
the Company expect the possible future changes of financial assets, with
all other variables, held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

36. KRB ER (&)

IR B =z (&)

BRBE DT

TRINTHARBREZEHRREREE
AREINAKSEEaREZAFES
10% 282 §RE - DIRERBERRZ
REERE  MAEEBESERTE2E
RetERETE -

Decrease/
(increase) in
Increase/ loss before Increase/
(decrease) income tax (decrease) in
2021 in fair value expenses equity
BRATEH
AEE X AIER R
—BC-—fF #m/ R HD 8 i CRD)
% RMB’000 RMB’'000
% ARBT T ARBT R
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEFAEZNEREE
— Unlisted equity securities in the PRC — RERFE ETRAE S 10/(10)  6,717/(6,717) -
Financial assets at FVOC| BAFEF AR EE RS
HemEE
— Unlisted equity securities in the PRC — R IE ETIRAES 10/(10) - -I-
Decrease/
(increase) in
Increase/ loss before Increase/
(decrease) income tax decrease) in
2020 in fair value expenses equity
BR P15
YNSRI i Al &5 18 B
ZECTF #in/Chd) RS /GEm) EmORS)
% RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTT AREFT
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEFAEZNEREE
— Unlisted equity securities in the PRC — REEIE TR AES 10/(10)  23,135/(23,135) -
Financial assets at FVOC| BAFEFAEMZERE
HEREE
— Unlisted equity securities in the PRC — R IE EIRAES 10/(10) - 5413/(5413)
Bk SR REERERAT R -FFR
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Credit risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its cash and cash
equivalents (note 21), loans and accounts receivables (note 18), other
receivables (note 19), amount due from a non-controlling interest (note
20) and other financial assets at amortised cost and at FVTPL. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL included unlisted debt security held
for strategic purposes. Credit risk refers to issuers to these financial
instruments failing to discharge their obligations under the terms, leading
to a financial loss to the Group. The Group monitors the financial status
and credit rating of individual issuers by reviewing the financial
information provided by issuers on a regular basis. Please refer to note 17
for the details of the Group's investments.

In respect of loans and accounts receivables and other receivables, the
Group's policy is that all borrowers who wish to obtain loans from the
Group are subject to management review. The Group holds collaterals
directly or indirectly to cover its risks associated with loans receivable.

All collaterals of loans and accounts receivables and other receivables are
held directly by the Group.

For loan and accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collaterals from customers on accounts receivable.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate also
has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. The Group's exposure
under certain outstanding loans and account receivables are secured by
the pledged assets of the customers as disclosed in note 18.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

36. KRB ER (&)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which mainly comprise
of cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and financial assets at
FVTPL, arises from potential default of the counterparties, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. Credit risk in
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash is mitigated as cash is
deposited in banks with high credit rating.

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts receivable at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group's exposure to
credit risk and ECLs for accounts receivable as at 31 December 2021 and

&R (&)

AEEAMEREE (ER2ERAL MRS
FEER - HfbREKIBERRAFERA
BRzeRMEE)NEERRRERSHTF
REBTEEY MEsABRESFNZETLA
MEHEE - Re MRS FERE RZRH
RemEERRERREFREERER
EFHREVERTT M AR A ©

AEBFERYRFTHEIERE - 88
ENRAREBREEFENFRABBREE
BEeHE ANAKENEEEEEERL
BREAAZTPOMcHNBREEAEERXR
Z82 HERBHRENEREETERN
AEEZEEPERZEE—FERD

TR -_ZFE-_—FR-_ZF_ZFTF+-A
—t—HBAEEEBROEKREREERR

2020: RIEREEERER

Gross

carrying
amount Average Net carrying
brought expected Loss amount after
forward loss rate allowance impairment
Y1} RS RE®R
As at 31 December 2021 R=—B-—-F+=A=+—-H BERHE | f=Ed BREAE HREFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR % AR¥TRT AR¥ETR
Current (not past due) BIH3 (k@) 700 0% - 700
0-30 days past due BHMOE30H - - - -
31-90 days past due B3I EQOR - - - -
91-180 days past due eI 1808 - - - -
Over 180 days past due BH180BIAE 11,078 100% 11,078 -
11,778 11,078 700

EMSRREERERLR TR -FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

36. KRR ER (&)

Credit risk (Continued) EERB (&)

Gross

carrying
amount Average Net carrying
brought expected Loss  amount after
forward loss rate allowance  impairment
T TR B
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF+-A=+—H BEREE BRE EEEE REFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT % ARBTT ARBTRT
Current (not past due) BIE3 (k@) = = - -
0-30 days past due BWH0E30H - - - -
31-90 days past due WEI31 90 A - - - -
91-180 days past due W91 £180 B - - - -
Over 180 days past due w180 AL 11,082 100% 11,082 -
11,082 11,082 -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over one year.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 36. KRR ERE (&)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has adopted the general expected credit loss model for
material financial assets in relation to loans and other receivables. A
summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group's expected credit

loss model is as follows:

EERR (&)

A LB E AR A MER TR AN E
KRS BAE RN —REREE B RES -
FRAEEEREEEAER 2 BREE
T

Basis for recognition of expected credit loss

Category Company definition of category provision
5l NEHBZENTR RACEFRRENREIEE
Performing Customers have a low risk of default and a strong  12-month expected losses. Where the expected
capacity to meet contractual cash flows lifetime of an asset is less than 12 months, expected
losses are measured at its expected lifetime.
E® EFEARRE  BmEAABRLRERTRK N2EARREE - MEENTARFRIN 12 @

Underperforming

2pEd

Non-performing

TR

Write-off

EVRE 7158

Loans and other receivables for which there is a
significant increase in credit risk as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if interest and/
or principal repayments/other receivables are 30
days past due

WFE & HIEEERS H i UG IE B
Hi30 B - AIBREEERRBELN - BlE
R e EAth R s R TR O A5 B R B B b K 3 N
FRA

Interest and/or principal repayments/other
receivables are 90 days past due

FE R SHIEEERS H i UK IE 8 A
90 H

Interest and/or principal repayments/other
receivables are 180 days past due and there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery
FER,/NEEEARS A B IE B
180 A B BIH) & 12 TEH

Interest bearing loans receivables are generally pawn loan receivables and
entrusted loan receivables. Other receivables includes amount due from
third parties and income receivables derived from investment in debt
investments at amortised cost.

A RIEHERRERFRAE

Lifetime expected losses

EHEE

Lifetime expected losses

FRATEHEE

Asset is written off

EUGFT B ER— R BRI E &R &K
RAER - HitBEFERERERRE =7
FIANMKAREHR A ENERREN
WA -

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 36. MEEKRER (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EEmEE (%)
The Group accounts for the above items’ credit risk by appropriately AREEBALEREHZEEREBERES
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating the BREZE LRTBENEZEERRE  c R:TEE
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for each HEEEEXRE AEEEZEFHET
category of customers/investments, and adjusts for forward- looking B/ ENBEEERR - WitH YR
macroeconomic data. The Group provides for credit losses against loans Blme T RAE e REBR T - —
and other receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: ER_E_ZEF+_A=1+—HHREFTKL
Hi W IAFEEEBBRRBEESHINT -
As at 31 December 2021: R=ZB=-—%+=-A=+—-H:
Carrying
Basis for Estimated amount
Expected  recognition of gross (netof  Basis for
Company internal  External credit  expected credit carrying impairment  calculation of
credit rating credit rating lossrate  loss provision amount  provision) interest revenue
fREE
HBEE BHEE RHGEBRER fest  (HREE
DARPEETR AR BEZX NRIEE BEEE BB TENERKEHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARBTRT AR¥TR
Performing Baal - 12-month expected losses - - Gross carrying amount
% 1218 ARHER BREE
Underperforming Caal 16.8  Lifetime expected losses 6,479 5392  Gross carrying amount
BT ERAEHRER BEREE
Non-performing 100 Lifetime expected losses 67,902 - Gross carrying amount
TR ERAEHRER BEREE
Total loans and other
receivables
ERRHMERRE
wmE 74,381 5,392
ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020:

241

36. KRB ER (&)

FERR (&)
R=E-TE+-A=+-8:

Carrying
Basis for Estimated amount
Expected  recognition of gross (netof  Basis for
Company internal External credit  expected credit carrying  impairment  calculation of
credit rating credit rating lossrate  loss provision amount provision)  interest revenue
fRmEfE
SMFEE BHEE RHEEEREE feat  (HBRIE
RRINFEERFR IR BEE  OHEREE BEREE B) AENBREMNEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETT ARBTR
Performing Baal - 12-month expected losses - - Gross carrying amount
I 12 {8 AT EE R BERHEE
Underperforming Caal 34 Lifetime expected losses 18,503 17,870 Gross carrying amount
s FRATEHEE BEREE
Non-performing - 100 Lifetime expected losses 191,770 - Gross carrying amount
TR FRAEHER BEREE
Total loans and other
receivables
ERRH MR RKIE
By 210273 17,870
No significant changes to estimation techniques or assumptions were RBEERE - et EENE

made during the reporting period.

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 36. MEEKRER (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EEmEE (%)
The closing loss allowance for loans and other receivables as at 31 EXLEMEWRER T -_—FR_F
December 2021 and 2020 reconciles to the opening loss allowance for TEFE+ A=+ HRHREERER
that provision, and the gross carrying amounts are as follows: BB ERE 2 IR MEREmENT ¢
Under- Non-
Performing performing performing Total
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZB--f+=-A=t+-H E% 2D TR st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR%®TR AR%®TR

Gross carrying amount for loans and other —E-—F+-R=1+—HEX

receivables as at 31 December 2021 REMENGIBEREE - 6,479 67,902 74,381
Less: Expected credit losses: B EEBEEBE
Opening balance as at 1 January 2021 —E_-F-R—-BH0EH - 634 191,770 192,404
— Loss allowance provided for the year -FREERE - 879 9,725 10,604
— Recovery of impairment of other receivables - U [t fE I ZUE (B - - - -
— Amounts written off as uncollectible -HHEAEEKC S - - (134,019)  (134,019)
— Transfer: -8 -
Under-performing to non-performing BEETR - (426) 426 -
Closing loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 —E-Z—F+_-/=+—H

HARERRRE - 1,087 67,902 68,989

Net carrying amount for loans and other “E-—%+-fB=+—HEX

receivables as at 31 December 2021 Rt ENGRIBIRE FE - 5,392 - 5,392

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 36. M EMEE (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EERB (&)
Under- Non-
Performing performing performing Total
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-TF+-A=+—H % )z TR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETR AR%TR
Gross carrying amount for loans and other —E-ZE+-A=+—HEX
receivables as at 31 December 2020 RE MR B IRE (B - 18,503 191,770 210,273
Less: Expected credit losses: A EHEEBE
Opening balance as at 1 January 2020 “E-TFE-A—AHTER 2 3,348 108,363 111,713
— Loss allowance provided for the year -FNEBREE - - 86,185 86,185
— Recovery of impairment of other receivables - Ut [B] £ fth FE Ut 2k B Rl {E 2) ) (5,375) (5381)
— Amounts written off as uncollectible -8 B bl & 58 - 113) - (113)
— Transfer: -
Under-performing to non-performing BEIETR - (2,597) 2,597 -
Closing loss allowance as at 31 December 2020 —E-Z&F+-A=+—H
HARBERE - 634 191,770 192,404
Net carrying amount for loans and other “E-EE+-R=1+—HEX
receivables as at 31 December 2020 R M UGB IRESHE - 17,869 - 17,869
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of loans and accounts FNABET N FEWEE R DA K H b e Uk 3
receivables and other receivables during the year is as follows: TEMEEREEEIT
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Balance at 1 January R—HA—R&#H 203,486 124,182
Loss allowance recognised during the year FRERRBERE 10,601 89,535
Amounts written off as uncollectible WEE A AU 0] & 58 (134,019) (113)
Recovery of impairment of loans and accounts U [B] LA 1 e s D B B B LR BR 3R
receivables and other receivables previously K E A JEU IR E
recognised - (10,118)
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—B8%&% 80,068 203,486

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HE T - —&F+ - A=+—HIFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 36. MEEKRER (&)
Liquidity risk RENE LR
Management of the Group monitors current and expected liquidity AREBEEBERSHMNERERHNESS
requirements to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient reserves of Ko UBERASEENEHAEEHARNEFT
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. EHIRSHEUNERBNERBESENK -
The Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately RIZE-_—F+-_A=+—H K&EEH
RMB75,623,000 as at 31 December 2021. MOBEBLERDEENOARK
75,623,000 7T °©
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the reporting IRBEYRBBNTHEE  REFER
date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, are as follows: ESHH SR B ENEEROT -
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted  Repayable Within Within ~ More than
amount cashflow  ondemand Tyear  2to5years 5years

FEE ReREAE HBEREE  R-Fn RCEDfR 0 ZFNL
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000
AREBTR  ARETT  ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARETR

At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-%+-A=1-AH
Accruals and other payables A ERRAtERTUR 65,777 65,777 - 65,777 - -
Loan from a director REEZZET 2,862 2,862 - 2,862 - -
Dividend payable ERRE 103 103 103 - - -
Bank borrowings RITEH 2,705 2,705 2,705 - - -
Lease liabilities HEBE 382 417 - 294 123 -
71,829 71,864 2,808 68,933 123 -

At31December 2020 R-B-2%+-A=1-8
Accruals and other payables Bt ER R E M ENZE 45,689 45,689 - 45,689 - -
Amount due to a shareholder ER R 11,506 11,506 11,506 - - -
Dividend payable ke 106 106 106 - - -
Bank borrowings RITER 15735 18,105 - 4446 11631 2008
Lease liabilities HEEE 155 159 - 159 - -
73191 75,565 11612 50,294 11,631 2028

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 EHZE=F

37. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

—EtmA=t-BILEE

37. TR T AMNAFERAFER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A
Fair value A¥E
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments, REESF T B (GRE K AT BREERIN
other than those carried at amortised costs, are as follows: MEREBENMAFERT -
Carrying amounts Fair values
HREE AFE
2021 2020 2021 2020
- T CZBZ-§ _—T-TH
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TT AR¥TR ARETR
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVTESFABRNERERE
— Equity securities — unlisted —FLETRAES 67,172 231,351 67,172 231,351
— Debt securities — unlisted — ¥ EMEBES - 31,808 - 31,808
Financial assets at FVOCI ROV EAH M
2EANBENEREE
— Equity securities — unlisted — I LT RAE S - 54,129 - 54,129

Management has assessed that the fair values of the financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's risk control team is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The risk control team reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the risk control team analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process and results
are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

EREEFEREERAIRNEREER
BEMNAFEREREERLI TE2H
RZETETRERREE -

AEBERBEZETESEEETSRTAR
FEFENBELER - BRZEHEEE
BERMBRENERZESRER - NEWR
SEH - BREFEEsTERTAEBE
MEE  EERERBNIEGARE -
HEAMBRERL BFMADAAT
HREFEMHRERECZESIWME
RF MR -

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. TR ITENAFERAFRERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets are included at the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of equity instruments and debt securities have been
estimated using a discounted cash flow valuation model or guideline
public company marketability model based on assumptions that are not
supported by observable market price or rates. The valuation requires the
directors to make estimates about the expected future cash flows
including expected proceeds on subsequent disposal of the debt
securities.

The directors believe that the estimated fair value of the equity
instruments and debt securities based on valuation technique, and the
related change in fair value, reasonable, and represents the most
appropriate value at end of the reporting period.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

& (&)

D FE ()

TREEZCATERENRZTETAR
RHpZEBAEK BHHEEHETER
ER - AREFAFEZITEARBRRAT

BETARBEHEFOAFEERLER]
BEEMERERERERENBRREATE
RenEBRHEEASEFELTARMER
BUERNAMGTE - HEEREFEMEFTEER
XRenE (BREKIESFRERERYAR
BFIR) °

EERA AEERTMEEMRETA
REBES G A FEARERAFEE
BUBAIE  TAREHRNKSER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

37. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain unlisted equity
instruments and debt securities classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss were seized by the Bureau and pledged pursuant to
the Guarantee Documents for the settlement of the Unsettled Repayment
Funds as stated in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. As
advised by the Company’s PRC legal advisor, and with reference to the
valuation report issued by Eidea Professional Services Company Limited, in
view of the low probability and feasibility for the Group to recover their
carrying amount, the Group recognised RMB176,941,000 for the fair value
changes in financial assets at FVTPL in respect of those seized unlisted
equity instruments and debt securities.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation as
at 31 December 2021 of the remaining unlisted equity instruments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL which is not seized by the Bureau.

37. ERM T AMNAFERAFER

& (&)

AFE (&)
BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—RILtFE
ETIELETRETARSBAZATER
ABENeREENESFDEY RN
MERBERXEFAER - BELERR
BEES  REAMBHREMT 1M -
BIBEAQNRPEEEBERARSE  W2E
EEIERBARAGHANGERS -
ENAEBWEHREBERN R LM RA1T
MRE  AEERZEMMIELTRET
AEREHERZAFTEFAEENEHE
ERNFEEEH AR 176,941,000 7T °

TXROBER/BAFEFABRENEHE
ENSRTELTREIA(LEES BN
MIR-_F-_—F+-_A=1+—HWMHEN
EXTAIEERBARBEHRE -

Significant Range of
Valuation unobservableinput  estimates  Sensitivity of the input to fair value
EXTAEE AHEBABE
it BARE A EE ZHRE
As at 31 December 2021
RZB=Z-§F+=ZA=+-8H
Financial assets at FVTPL
BAVEFARBNEREE
Equity instruments — unlisted Discounted cash flow Timeline of the 267years  Earlier receipts of the investment income in the
method — Future cash underlying projects determination of timeline of each underlying
flows are estimated projects will result in an increase in the fair value
based on expected of the unlisted equities securities and vice versa.
return, discounted at a
rate that reflects risk of
underlying assets
FEMBETA FRREeREE —RE ARRENERR 260 EERAERENSHRERFHEIRER
BHE®RETRRRS AEEEGE FTHRAZESNRATEL &
ME - WARBIEEE IR -
ERBAOMNEER
Weighted average 29%  Anincrease in WACC will result in a decrease in
cost of capital the fair value of the unlisted equity securities and
vice versa.
IEFHERKA 29%  IETHIERKRA LS EEE FTRAE

FORFETE - RZTFA

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HZE—Z——&+_-_A=+—HItFE

37. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of

financial instruments as at 31 December 2020:

37. ERM T AMNAFERAFER
& (&)

UWTAER-_ZE-_EF+_A=+—H&m

TABEZERTABRERABEBEHNE

Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable input estimates  Sensitivity of the input to fair value
EXFUEE AFERABE
e BARE B EE ZHBE
As at 31 December 2020
RZB-Bf+=-A=1+-H
Financial assets at FVTPL
BATESARENEREE
Equity instruments - unlisted Discounted cash flow Market price/selling RMB12261/sgm-  An increase in the market price/selling price of
method - Future price of the RMB46,087/sqm  the properties/lands in the underlying projects
cash flows are properties/lands in will result in an increase in the fair value of the
estimated basedon  the underlying unlisted equities securities and vice versa.
expected retumn, projects
discounted at arate
that reflects risk of
underlying assets
FEMRETA FRReREE HEEENNE/ ARB161T/ HEEEENNE Lt mE/ EBLAE
- REEHERE o TE/EE Fhxk-  BEEITREABFNAFEL  RZT
AARKBELR AR¥46087L/ Ko
- WARMUA PR
BEERBRNF
LR

Timeline of the
underlying projects

RERENERE

Weighted average cost
of capital (“WACC")

IEFHEARRA

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited

0.5 year - 3 years

05FE3F

4% -9.3%

49% % 9.3%

Earlier receipts of the investment income in the
determination of timeline of each underlying
projects will result in an increase in the fair value
of the unlisted equities securities and vice versa.
Er&AREENEHARERERIRE R
AREEGE FTRAZFNAFELT &
IR o

An increase in WACC will result in a decrease in
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities and
vice versa.
MEFHERKAR A BB FHRAE
FEAFETRE - RZI% -
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

37.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. ERM T AMNAFERAFER
& (&)

Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable input estimates  Sensitivity of the input to fair value
ERTAEE ATERABE
ftf BARE EEE ZHBE
As at 31 December 2020
(Continued)
RZBZBE+ZA=+-H(&)
Financial assets at FVTPL
(Continued)

EATEHABRNEREE ()

Debt securities - unlisted Discounted cash flow Credit premium plus the 737%  Anincrease in the short term interest rate will
method - Future average market result in a decrease in the fair value of the
cash flows are mortgage rate unlisted debt securities and vice versa.
estimated based on
expected return
discounted at arate
that reflects risk of
underlying assets

FIMERER FREERE EEREMTATS 737%  REANE FAEESEE LTERESNLT

E-RBEEHE  RIBEE BT RZTA -
BRIt AKRE &
ME - WARER
HHEEERRH
MBI

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR M (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HE T - —&F+ - A=+—HIFE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37Z. EMITEN A ATFERLATFEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (')
Fair value hierarchy NEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the TRAEASESR TANATEFZER

Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: BAFEFEEE -

Fair value measurement using
BRTIRENAVETNE

Quoted price  Significant  Significant

inactive  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EATERE EXARTBR

ERTSHRE BARE BARE

(B—EB&R) (B-EHRK) (B=ER) #et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2021 R-BE-—-f+=-HF=+-—H
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABRRN
CREE
— Equity securities — unlisted — Ik ETRAES - - 67,172 67,172
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-EF+-A=+—-H
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATESABREN
CHEE
— Equity securities — unlisted — 3k LEIRAE S - - 231,351 231,351
— Debit securities — unlisted — ELHEBES - - 31,808 31,308
Financial assets at FVOCI BAVES ARG EKEN
cTREE
— Equity securities — unlisted —FETRAES - 54,129 - 54,129

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR M (&)

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER2021 HZE—ZE_—_—&F+_A=+—HItFE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37Z. ERM I AN A FERAFERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AEEER (&)
The movements during the period in the balance of these level 3 fair value F=ERATEFEHREHHANEZHOT

measurements are as follows:

2021 2020
=B —F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFABENEREE
Unlisted equity securities JELTHERES
At 1 January ®n—AH—H 231,351 590,791
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss FARFTABRH AT EEE
during the year (164,179) (359,440)
At 31 December W+—_A=+—8 67,172 231,351
Unlisted debt securities ELEMEBHES
At 1 January m—H—H 31,808 34,640
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss FRFTABRH AL EEE
during the year (31,808) (2,832)
At 31 December W+-—A=+—H - 31,808
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFT
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFESAEMEEREN
tREE
Unlisted equity securities FE TR ES
At 1 January n—H—H - 40,300
Disposal k= - -
Changes in fair value recognised in other ﬁlﬁqﬁ(\ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬁ S HER
comprehensive income during the year NEEEF) - 13,829
Transfer to Level 2 HEE_ER - (54,129)
At 31 December R"+=ZA=+—8H - -
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the fair value of financial assets HE - FEF+-_A=+—HItFEE -
at FVOCI were valued using the recent transaction approach. The fair value BEATEFAEMZERENESHEES
measurement was reclassified to Level 2. NEETVERMERZ SR HE o AF{ES
EDNEFIEE_ER -
The Group did not have any liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 REBR ST —FK T -FTF+— A
December 2021 and 2020. =+—HIY®EIZATEIAENAE -

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives include:

(i) to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it continues to provide returns for owner's benefits for other
stakeholders;

(i) tosupport the Group's stability and growth; and

(i)  to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Group’s risk

management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder’s returns, taking into
consideration the future capital requirements of the Group and capital
efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating cash
flows, projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment

opportunities.
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39. LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

M

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26 March 2021, a
writ of civil summons (“Writ") have been issued against two previous
directors of the Company (namely, Mr. Zheng Weijing ("Mr. Zheng") and
Ms. Guo Chanjiao (“Ms. Guo")), two PRC subsidiaries of the Company
(namely, Qianhai Flying Financial PRC Service (Shenzhen) Limited (“Qianhai
Flying Financial”) and Flying Investment Service (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (“Flying Investment”)) in October 2020 in relation to the
repayment of certain loans and interest accrued thereon. Pursuant to the
Writ, (i) Mr. Zheng was demanded for the repayment of an aggregate
amount of RMB16,306,300 (“Claimed Amount”), alleging to be the principal
and interest accrued thereon pursuant for a loan agreement in 2019; (ii)
Ms. Guo, the Company, two PRC subsidiaries of the Company and a
number of PRC companies independent to the Group were alleged to be
guarantors of the Claimed Amount under a guarantee in 2019 (“2019 Loan
Guarantee”) in favour of the claimant under the Writ to secure the Claimed
Amount.

Pursuant to the judgement dated 24 February 2022 of Shenzhen Qianhai
Cooperation Zone People’s Court ORI BIE S 1EIE A RIEBR) (the *SZ
Qianhai CZ Court”), the SZ Qianhai CZ Court determined that, among
others:

(1) Mr. Zheng failed to repay the loan of RMB15 million (the “Loan”)
received from the lender (the claimant in the Writ);

(2)  the private lending as referred to in the Writ was not evidenced to
relate to the crimes of suspected illegal fundraising;

(3)  the relevant document was only signed by Mr. Zheng and Ms. Guo
without the rest of the then board members of the Company at the
material time and there was no evidence to show that the Company
provided guarantee to the Loan, accordingly, the SZ Qianhai CZ
Court did not agree and did not rule that the Company shall be
responsible for the joint and several liability of the repayment of the
Loan;

(4)  Mr. Zheng was ordered to repay the Loan, the corresponding
outstanding interest of the Loan and relevant legal costs, to the
lender; and

(5)  Qianhai Flying Financial, Flying Investment, Ms. Guo, and two other
third party PRC corporate defendants shall be jointly and severally
liable for the civil liability of Mr. Zheng in relation to the Loan. They
are entitled to claim against Mr. Zheng following their fulfillment of
their responsibility under the relevant guarantee.
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39. LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES (CONTINUED)

(2)  As stated in the Company's announcements dated 8 December 2020 and
26 March 2021, Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo, and three employees of the Group
have been held in custody since the evening of 7 December 2020 by the
Nanshan Branch of the Shenzhen Public Security Bureau R AZ B
FLLU%5 /3, the “Bureau”) in the PRC in relation to investigation regarding
certain suspected illegal absorption of public deposits (collectively, the
"Custodies”). The Custodies are related to certain unsettled repayment
funds (the “Unsettled Repayment Funds”) in relation to the online
financing intermediary business conducted by a PRC subsidiary of the
Company, Shenzhen Flying Financial Internet Financial Services
Corporation (“SZ Flying Financial”), the operation a peer-to-peer lending
platform of which has already been ceased in the fourth quarter of 2019
(the "Platform”).

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 26 March 2021,
certain assets of the Group had been seized by the Bureau during the year
ended 31 December 2020, including the Group's investment properties of
approximately RMB47,870,000, unlisted equity securities classified as
financial assets at FVOCI of approximately RMB54,129,000 and the equity
interests of the Group in certain property development projects through
limited partnerships in which the Group’s investments classified as
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately RMB128,838,000 (collectively,
the “Seized Assets”). The Seized Assets owned by several PRC subsidiaries
of the Company which are subject to certain guarantees (the “Guarantee
Documents”) provided by these PRC subsidiaries of the Company for the
Unsettled Repayment Funds. As further disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 26 March 2021, due to the tightening regulatory
environment in the PRC in 2019, the Group ceased the operation of the
Platform in the fourth quarter 2019. The then board of directors of the
Company (apart from the former directors Mr. Zheng and Ms. Guo)
became aware of the Guarantee Documents not long before 26 March
2021 when investigation was made by the Board and the PRC Legal
Counsels in relation to the Custodies. The Company was informed by Mr.
Zheng in March 2021 that, in order to provide the Guarantee Documents
to the relevant PRC authority and to exit the business of the Platform, the
Seized Assets were pledged pursuant to the Guarantee Documents for the
settlement of the Unsettled Repayment in November 2019. The Guarantee
Documents included signature of Mr. Zheng or Ms. Guo, and/or the
company chop of Qianhai Flying Financial, SZ Flying Financial or Flying
Investment, and stated all lenders/investors of the Platform to be
guaranteed party (without specifying any particular person/entity as
counterparty to the Guarantee Documents). For clarity, the Company did
not execute the Guarantee Documents, and the Seized Assets were not
authorised to be pledged by the Company in order to provide the
Guarantee Documents to the relevant PRC authority and the Company
could not speculate the details of interactions between Mr. Zheng and the
relevant PRC authority. According to the Company's record, SZ Flying
Financial did not borrow from the Platform and shall not have incurred
indebtedness to the relevant lenders/investors of the Platform. With
reference to the October 2021 Judgement, it was determined by SZ
Nanshan District Court that, among others, Mr. Zheng was the actual
controller of SZ Flying Financial and Mr. Zheng was the decision maker of
the use and allocation of the raised funds in relation to SZ Flying Financial.
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39. LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES (CONTINUED)

@

(Continued)

The Group contacted the Bureau through its representative and advisers
and were informed that the Seized Assets were not expected to be
returned to the Group, in particular, they were considered by the authority
in the PRC to be pledged in favour of the lenders of the Platform in
relation to the Offence of illegal absorption of public deposits.

Following the relevant investigations of the PRC authority and criminal
proceedings of first instance trial in the PRC, a criminal judgement was
made by the People’s Court of Nanshan District of Shenzhen (“SZ Nanshan
District Court”) on 18 October 2021 (the “October 2021 Judgement”)
against Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo and the three former employees of the Group.
With reference to the October 2021 Judgement, SZ Nanshan District Court
determined that, among others,

(1) Mr. Zheng was the actual controller of SZ Flying Financial. Mr. Zheng
had actually controlled the illegal fundraising activities of SZ Flying
Financial (through online and offline channels) and was the decision
maker of the use and allocation of the raised funds;

(2)  Ms. Guo was the general manager of SZ Flying Financial, who was
responsible for the daily business of SZ Flying Financial including
the organization of the fundraising activities (through online and
offline channels), the sales of private placement products, etc,

(3)  the three former employees of the Group were responsible for the
relevant matters of operation, finance and risk control of SZ Flying
Financial, respectively;

(4)  the Company and SZ Flying Financial were not regarded as subject
of crime. The criminal offence of illegal absorption of public deposits
(the “Offence”) was individually committed by Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo
and the three former employees of the Group;

(5)  Mr. Zheng, Ms. Guo and the three former employees of the Group
were all convicted of the Offence and were sentenced to 18 months
to 7 years of prison with monetary penalties;

(6)  Mr.Zheng and Ms. Guo confessed to committing the Offence;

(7)  the three former employees of the Group confessed to committing
the Offence and their respective sentences; and

(8)  the outstanding amount in relation to the Offence subject to refund
to the investors was approximately RMB680 million. The assets
seized (which included the Seized Assets) in relation to the Offence
shall be distributed to the relevant investors in accordance with the
applicable PRC law and regulations.
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LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND DISPUTES (CONTINUED)

Following online search (but without any access to the court documents),
the Company became aware recently that the Shenzhen branch of China
Guangfa Bank Co, Ltd. (ZERITIRM AR 2 &R I 51T) (the “CGB
Bank”) has sought and obtained a PRC civil Judgement in November 2021
to discharge the loan agreement entered into between the CGB Bank and
Qianhai Flying Financial in August 2016 (the “CGB Agreement”), as well as
to require Qianhai Flying Financial, Huilian Technology (concerning the
Investment Properties) and Mr. Zheng to settle their joint and several
liability of approximately RMB12,947,000 (being the outstanding principal
and interest of bank borrowing under the CGB Agreement and the cost of
the civil litigation). As at the date of this report, the Company was not
aware of any change of status of the said PRC civil judgement sought and
obtained by CGB Bank in November 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting date, there are some changes in the board of
directors of the Company as follows:

(@)  On 30 December 2021, the Company entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with Shenzhen Jiaxuan Shuzhi Development
Company Limited (AT ZE T EREGR A F)") to dispose
of Expand Wealth Limited, Profit Success Technology Limited and
Expand Thrive Limited (collectively referred as “Target Companies”)
for consideration of HK$15 million (the “Disposal”). The Disposal was
subject to the Company’s shareholders’ approval at the
extraordinary general meeting. As the Company did not have any
controlling shareholder, the Disposal was not considered as highly
probable.

On 1 June 2022, the Disposal was approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on that
date. The Disposal was completed on 29 June 2022. The detail of
the Disposal was set out in the circular dated 10 May 2022 and the
announcement dated 26 January 2022.

Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(CONTINUED)

(b)  On 6 May 2022, the Company received a letter from the Stock
Exchange stating that the GEM Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange has decided to cancel the Company’s listing under Rule
9.14A of the GEM Listing Rules as the Company failed to satisfy all
the resumption guidance issued by the Stock Exchange (the
“Resumption Guidance”) by 28 March 2022 (the “Delisting

Decision”).

On 17 May 2022, the Company submitted an application requesting
the Delisting Decision be referred to the Listing Review Committee
for review. The review hearing (the “Review Hearing") of the Listing
Review Committee of the Stock Exchange to the review of the
Delisting Decision has been scheduled for 10:30 a.m. on Wednesday,

3 August 2022.

() On 23 May 2022, the directors of the Company proposed to
implement the capital reorganisation which will involve the share
consolidation, the capital reduction and the share sub-division (the

"Capital Reorganisation”), details were as follows:

(i) every fifty (50) issued and unissued shares of the Company of
par value of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
will be consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of par
value of HK$5.00 each in the share capital of the Company

(the “Proposed Share Consolidation”);

(i) The capital reduction will be implemented upon the Share
Consolidation becoming effective, pursuant to which (a) any
fractional consolidated share in the issued share capital of the
Company arising from the Share Consolidation will be
cancelled; and (b) the par value of each of the then issued
consolidated shares will be reduced from HK$5.00 to HK$0.01
by cancelling the paid-up capital of the Company to the
extent of HK$4.99 on each of the then issued consolidated

shares (the “Capital Reduction”);

(i) Immediately following the Capital Reduction, each of the
authorised but unissued consolidated shares of par value of
HKS$5.00 each will be sub-divided into five hundred (500) new

shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(Continued)

Before the Capital Reorganisation, the authorised share capital of
the Company is HK$500,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 shares
of the Company of par value of HK$0.10 each, of which
1,731,432,500 shares were issued and fully paid.

If the Capital Reorganisation become effective, the authorised share
capital of the Company will be HK$500,000,000 divided into
50,000,000,000 new shares of par value of HK$0.01 each, of which
34,628,650 new shares will be in issue and the issued share capital
of the Company will be HK$346,286.50, assuming no shares will be
issued before the effective of the Capital Reorganisation. As at the
date of the approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
Capital Reorganisation has not yet become effective. Detail of the
Capital Reorganisation was set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 May 2022.

On 23 May 2022, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with a company (the “Subscriber”) indirectly wholly-
owned by Ms. Niu Chengjun. Mr. Leung Man Kit, the executive
Director of the Company, is also a director of the Subscriber.
Pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue 36,042,067 new shares at the subscription price of
HKS$0.72 per subscription share to the Subscriber (the “Share
Subscription”). As at the date of the approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the Share Subscription has not yet completed.
the Detail of the Capital Reorganisation was set out in the
Company's announcement dated 23 May 2022.

41. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 30 June 2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBEE

Below is a summary of the Group's results for the last five financial years and the
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018 and
2017, as extracted from the published audited financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018 and 2017. The amounts set out in
this financial summary are prepared as if the current structure of the Group had
been in existence throughout the years presented.

TRAREEBE R EA BFERERARER
— = E —EEF _T-AF-
TNAER=B—+FET - A=T— EM&F&E
BEE Eﬁﬁ@a%%@ =B —F -
—EF B F % \ER-E—LF
T A=t B FELEXUBRE - MK
BEME R AREEREGRERNN 2R
FEABFEMRER

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—¥=-F —ZT-Tf "EB-NF ZE-\f ZEB+F
RMB'000 RMB'OO_O RMB'OO_O R\MB’O@ RMB'O@
ARBTRT ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARET:x
Revenue Izs 20,059 19721 104,390 220,353 384,604
Other (expense)/income, net Hi (B /WA B8 (47,829) 12675 (3022) 3,984 643
Employee benefit expenses EERFES (7,774) (25322) (48,847) (68,120) (59,141)
Other administrative expenses HEtTHES (23,235) (28552) (53,101) (71629) (79017)
Provision loss BEBR - (16,306) - - -
Fair value changes in financial assets at BATE QW\TE i EREE
fair value through profit or loss NFEER (195,987) (362,272) (522,747) 65,133 -
Impairment loss on goodwill ﬁ%mﬁ}éﬁﬁ - - (48316) = =
Impairment loss on intangible asset R AERERS - - (19,810) - -
Loss allowance on financial assets SRHEEREAR (10,601) (89,539) (108,272) (13243) -
Equity-settled share-based payments ERGEERN BER 2 (TR - - 2,169 (7,607) (7,248)
Share of results of a joint venture F&“fEAﬁQ Al $E - - - 7553 868
Finance costs R (228) (1184) (7,330) (15127) (16,890)
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense &%Fﬁ SHES A (EE),/WH (265,595) (490,775) (704,886) 121,297 223819
Income tax credit/(expense) RERES/ (BY) (9) 20428 5624 (22372) (70,961)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BE)/ A (265,604) (470,347) (699,262) 98,925 152,858
Other comprehensive income Hh2Ees
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit orloss: A @ EHHEEIBHAER
— Changes in fair value of equity —RAFERHALBEE
investrents at fair value through W AR R A
other comprehensive income ATEEY (54,129) 13829 (10,648) 999 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HETsEin BEEEN
to profit or loss: R :
— Exchange differences on translating —BNEBRENER S
foreign operations ‘ (843) 965 (4,083) 6,990 (2870)
— Change in fair value available-for-sale —EHERENTEE
investment - - 810
Total comprehensive income for the year FEPHNGERE (320,576) (455,553) (713993) 106914 150,798
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: FERERE (B518) /%7 -
Owners of the Company KAREBA (265,276) (468,725) (673,713) 102,575 152,762
Non-controlling interests R (328) (1622) (25,549) (3,650) 9%
(265,604) (470,347) (699,262) 98925 152,858
Total comprehensive income for the year EEEEEANEEE:
attributable to: .
Owners of the Company KRAREBA (293,725) (455,972) (688,444) 110,564 150,702
Non-controlling interests JEERR R (26,851) 419 (25,549) (3,650) 9%
(320,576) (455,553) (713,993) 106914 150,798
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets EEmE 88,205 394,665 854816 1,743,025 1,126,165
Total liabilities AfaRE (92,589) (92962) (975587) (269,.860) (225472
Net (liabilities)/assets af)/ EETE (4,384) 301,703 757,229 1473,165 900,693

EHSRBREERERAE —T--FFRK
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REVERHE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 R—ZE_—fF+_-_A=+—H

Attributable
interest of
Location Building Usage Tenure the Group
rEE
uE BFRR ERFH FEiL RS
Unit 3201-3212, Block D of Area 1 The investment property comprises 12 apartment Granted the land use rights of 100%
in Shenzhen Bay Technology and units on level 32 of a residential building completed the property until 17 August
Ecological Park, West of Shahexi Road in about 2016. 2061.
and South of Baishi Road,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC
FERYITRELRAAREKE ZREVEBENR_Z—XR"ELH BRZYEN T MERAESR 100%
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